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FINANCIAL REVIEW BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

Statement of Accounts

The Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31 March 2007 has been prepared and published in accordance
with the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 and the Code of Practice issued by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy in June 2006. The Statement was approved by the Audit & Performance Committee of
the Council on 28 June 2007.

The Statement provides comprehensive information about the costs and income of the Council and its assets and
liabilities. Specifically, it includes the following information;

- A Statement of Accounting Policies setting out policies adopted for preparation of the accounts (Page 19).

- Income and Expenditure Account containing a summary of revenue expenditure and income and the resources
used (Page 27).

- Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance summarising the movements in the general fund
balance during the year, after adding back items required by statute to be excluded from the Income and
Expenditure Account (Page 30).

- Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses analysing the movements on the main Funds and Reserves
(Page 32).

- Balance Sheet showing the overall financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2007 (Page 33).

- Cash Flow Statement showing cash movements on revenue and capital during the year (Page 34).

- Details of the various funds and special accounts for which the Council is responsible, including the Housing
Revenue Account, Collection Fund and Parking Places Reserve (Pages 63 to 71).

- Group Accounts consolidating the Council’s ownership of CityWest Homes (Page 79).

The statements include some technical terms, which are explained in the Glossary of Financial terms.

Accounting Policies

This year, the Statement of Recommended Practice (SORP) for local authority accounting for 2006/07 has resulted
in some significant changes in presentation to the Statement which brings it more into line with generally accepted
accounting practice for financial statements in the private sector.
The main changes are:

- The removal of the requirement to make a capital financing charge.

- Changes to the format of the statement of accounts, being the replacement of the Consolidated Revenue
Account and Statement of Total Movement in Reserves with an Income and Expenditure Account, a Statement
of Movement on the General Fund Balance and a Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses (STRGL).

- A requirement to group the core financial statements together (i.e. Income and Expenditure Account,
Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance, STRGL, Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement)
followed by the notes to the core statements followed by the ‘supplementary’ statements (e.g. Housing
Revenue Account and Collection Fund) with the notes to each supplementary statement following the relevant
statement.

- A disclosure on the income received and expenditure incurred in relation to the City of Westminster Local Area
Agreement (LAA).

Council Finances

Local authorities receive income from Government grant and from households in the form of the Council Tax, in
addition to revenue from fees and charges. Every year the Government works out the amount of local government
spending it is prepared to support through grant.

One of the main sources of funding which the Council receives is formula grant, which comprises redistributed
national non-domestic rates income and revenue support grant. In determining formula grant allocations, the
government takes into account the relative needs of different authorities, including population, the number of
commuters and visitors to an area and relative deprivation levels. In 2006/07, Westminster received a formula grant
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

allocation of £160.2 million, a like for like increase of 3.1% compared to 2005/06. In the light of retrospective
revisions made to the Office of National Statistics’ (ONS) mid year population estimates the Government
retrospectively revised the 2004/05 and 2005/06 local government finance settlements. Following these amending
reports the Council was required to repay £0.1 million in overpaid grant to the Department for Communities and
Local Government which was netted off by the government against the 2006/07 grant.

From 1 April 2006 schools funding was no longer funded primarily by formula grant and Council Tax but was
instead provided through a ring fenced Dedicated Schools Grant paid directly to the local education authority by the
Department for Education and Skills. The Council received £86.0 million in Dedicated Schools Grant in 2006/07.
This funding change had the effect of reducing the Council’s formula grant baseline and substantially increased the
proportion of this which is met by redistributed business rates relative to revenue support grant (i.e. general
taxation).

Local residents pay the Council Tax. This is a property-based charge and the amount payable depends on the
value band that the property is placed into (using estimated property prices as at 1 April 1991) by the Valuation
Office Agency of HMRC. There is a discount of 25% where there is only one resident eligible to pay Council Tax
and, from 1 April 2004, the discount for long term empty properties and second homes in Westminster was reduced
from 50% to 10%. The Council Tax base is calculated in accordance with a nationally prescribed formula and
represents the equivalent number of Band D properties within the area.

Owners of businesses and commercial properties pay the national non-domestic rate (NNDR) set by Central
Government, based on values again set by the Valuation Office Agency. These ‘business’ rates are collected by the
Council and paid over to the Government who then re-distribute the national pool to each local authority in line with
need as part of their total formula grant income. In 2006/07, the Council collected £992.0 million for the national
pool and received back £134.0 million.

Three Business Improvement Districts (BIDS) now operate within the City: the Heart of London, Paddington and
New West End Company. The sums raised from the businesses in the areas are applied to improve the local
environment. The Council also received £10.2 million from the new Local Authority Business Growth Incentive
Scheme during 2006/07, as a result of the relative growth in business rateable values in Westminster between
December 2005 and December 2006. Depending on the outcome of a judicial review against the scheme by Corby
and Slough Borough Councils which is due to be heard in summer 2007 it is possible that the Government may
award up to a further £4.3 million in LABGI funding to the Council for 2006/07. The Council agreed that all but £1.4
million of this funding will be ring fenced primarily to support One City and economic development initiatives.

Council owned housing costs are met wholly from Government subsidies, rents and charges paid by tenants. No
contribution can legally be made from the Council Tax. The format of the Housing Revenue Account follows the
requirements of 2006 SORP relating to the HRA.

Landlord services to the Council’s 21,000 tenants and lessees are provided by City West Homes Ltd, a Council
owned company, set up under the Government’s Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) arrangements in
April 2002. The summarised accounts for City West Homes Ltd are included within the Statement of Accounts.

Budget and Council Tax 2006/07

The strategy for the setting of the Council Tax was driven by the need to prepare the budget in accordance with
service priorities and the need to maintain an affordable level of Council Tax. The budget proposals reflected these
priorities, and growth items and income shortfalls were substantially offset by savings items within the budget.

The net budget for Westminster’s services was set at £202.1 million, and after providing for Contingencies levies
and PFI grant income (but before provisions and the use of balances) the budget was determined by the City
Council in March 2006 at a total figure of £210.1 million. In addition, the Council planned to draw down £6.2 million
of general balances to support the budget and apply £3.0 million to fund residual school deficits following the
opening of the new academies in north Westminster. This gave a total net requirement for the Council’s own
services and levies of £206.9 million which was to be met from Central Government support (77%) and the Council
Tax (23%).

The precepting authority - the Greater London Authority (GLA) - receives a direct share of revenue support grant,
police grant and redistributed national business rates. The GLA demand on the Council Tax for 2006/07 was set at
£36.3 million. The Greater London Authority includes four functional bodies: Transport for London, the London
Development Agency, the Metropolitan Police Authority and the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority.

The total Council Tax for a Band D property was set at £659.0 (compared with £618.0 in 2005/06). This was the
second lowest in the country. The Council Tax included £370.4 (56%) for the Council’s own services and £288.6
(44%) for the GLA precept.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

Outturn for 2006/07

The actual net expenditure for the year was £199.4 million after exceptional items, 6.4% below the approved
budget. Details of the comparison between the Original Estimates and Outturn for the year are shown on page 84.

Following receipt of Counsel’s advice, a provision of £30.5 million was set up in the 2004/05 Accounts for Council
Tax and NNDR credit balances over six years old. Since that date these credit balances have been reviewed in line
with the agreed protocol for tracing and contacting relevant taxpayers and, as a result, £3.1 million has been written
back to the General Fund in 2006/07 (£20.8 million in 2005/06). This write back is shown as an exceptional item on
page 35.

During the year the Council also transferred £12.6 million from general fund balances to reserves, including £7.1
million to a One City reserve, £4.5 million to an Economic Development Strategy and Enterprise Reserve, £0.3
million to a Census of Population Reserve, £0.4 million to a Building Schools for the Future (BSF) reserve and £0.1
million to a Go Green Fund.

Carry forward provisions totalling £1.1 million have been earmarked in respect of unspent budget items to fund
further costs arising from Pimlico School’s move into special measures (£0.5 million), implementation of the BSF
programme (£0.5 million) and an additional post to assist the Council in delivering its equality objectives (£0.1
million).

At 31 March 2007, the General Fund balance amounted to £66.9 million, compared with £59.4 million at 31 March
2006. After allowing for earmarked balances of up to £1.1 million, a planned reduction in balances in the 2007/08
budget of £9.6 million, and a subsequent rebasing to reduce the budget by £10.1 million, the remaining available
balances are forecast to be £66.3 million at 31 March 2008.

Capital Expenditure and Funding

Capital expenditure on the provision of new or enhanced assets is largely met from borrowing, capital receipts and
contributions from third parties. A review of Council spending priorities covering the following five years is
undertaken each year to ensure that the programme of spending can be funded from affordable borrowing,
forecasts of capital receipts from sale of Council land and other assets, Housing contributions and grants and
available revenue budgets. Capital expenditure for the year totalled £135.0 million compared with £133.2 million in
2005/06. Details of capital expenditure and funding are shown on page 47. Under the Prudential Code, accruals of
capital expenditure at 31 March 2007 were also required to be funded.

Gross capital expenditure for the year (before application of external funding) included the following major
schemes:

Scheme 2006/07 spend £’000

Repairs and improvements to council housing stock 56,000
Transportation infrastructure & Highways including local safety and street security
schemes. 15,548
Primary Schools - Repairs, maintenance, refurbishments & extensions 6,655
Secondary schools & other educational institutions 5,029
Paddington Bridge Long Term Vehicular Access (Bishops Bridge Road) 3,852
Footway and Carriageway maintenance schemes 3,261
Paddington Recreation Ground improvement plan 1,430
Westbourne Green sports centre 1,210

A new national system of capital controls was introduced from April 2004. This self-regulatory “prudential system”
gives local authorities freedom to decide their own borrowing levels, provided these are affordable, prudent and
sustainable. Under the Prudential Code, the Council has set prudent indicators on the basis that borrowing will be
limited to the level supported by Government through the grant system. The indicators are subject to review
annually.

Tenders have been submitted to the Council for new build and refurbishment work under the Building Schools for
the Future Programme. The Council has received a provisional allocation of £152.0 million for this work and will
also be incurring associated costs on its own account, both capital and revenue. Building works are planned to
commence in 2007/08.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

Objections to the Accounts

An objection was made to the 2003/04 accounts in respect of the recovery of the Designated Sales Surcharge and
the settlement reached with former Councillor Dame Shirley Porter. The investigation by the District Auditor has
now been completed and the report was issued on 15 March 2007. The District Auditor concluded that the Council
acted reasonably in the recovery action that it took and a reasonable settlement was agreed in the circumstances.
The full public interest report can be viewed on the Audit Commission's website: http://www.audit-
commission.gov.uk/pir/downloads/109117.pdf

Financial Prospects

2006/07 saw the start of a new Grant system with a two-year allocation and the ring fencing of schools funding
through the new Dedicated Schools Grant. Whilst this is welcome for planning purposes, the grant allocation
methodology is neither clear nor transparent, and technical officers will continue to lobby Central Government via
the London Councils and the Local Government Association to specify the drivers which will affect future funding
decisions. The impact on the Council’s financial position moving forward of the 2007 Comprehensive Spending
Review which is expected to be much tighter than the last three year round, changes to the ONS’s methodology for
calculating population and changes to the formula grant distribution formulae will be monitored during 2007/08 in
the lead up to the announcement of the three year settlement allocations for 2008/09 to 2010/11 in December
2007.

The Council’s formula grant for 2006/07 was £160.2 million. The Council’s 2007/08 grant allocation is £166.9 million
- a 4.6% increase on a like for like basis compared to 2006/7.

Looking forward, the Council faces a number of challenges, which are likely to impact on its financial position.
These include:

The Lyons Inquiry and the Government’s Response

The final report of the Lyons Inquiry was published in March 2007 and contained a number of recommendations in
relation to local government finance and funding. In response to the recommendations the Government reaffirmed
its commitment not to revalue domestic properties for council tax purposes for the lifetime of the current parliament
and stated that it does not therefore consider it feasible to change the banding structure or introduce new bands at
the current time. The Council shares the Government’s view that a revaluation would cause too much disruption to
individuals and families. This announcement by the Government removes a significant uncertainty in the short term,
but remains a risk for both local taxpayers and the Council’s funding position for the future

The Government also announced that it intended to bring forward proposals to reform the Local Authority Business
Growth Incentive scheme during the summer of 2007. The Council will examine the proposals with interest as it has
received over £14.0 million from this scheme since it was introduced in 2005/06.

The Government also confirmed that it would take forward the recommendations on reforming business rates
including examining options for a supplementary business rate. The Lyons inquiry recommended that in London the
33 boroughs and the Mayor should agree a single rate across the capital to facilitate a city wide approach to ensure
investment is appropriately targeted. The Council will be working with London Councils to ensure that a significant
proportion of any revenues raised are available to be spent in the borough in which they are raised and that
decisions on the application of this funding must be agreed with the City Council and the local business community.

Population Estimates and Grant Distribution

A continued upwards trend in the City’s population estimates, that accurately match the additional population and
costs of that population, is of significant importance for the Council’s funding position moving forward. In advance of
the 2011 census, the Council has been working to ensure that a robust methodology is put in place to measure
inter-authority and international migration as well as the impact of second home ownership on the City’s population
count. However on 24 April 2007 the Office for National Statistics (ONS) announced provisional revisions to their
previously issued population estimates for 2002-2005 - which for Westminster represented a 15,500 reduction to
the original 2005 figures. The impact of this reduction, if confirmed, is likely to increase the likelihood of the Council
being at the floor for the Comprehensive Spending Review 2007 period.

As the ONS’s population revisions are retrospective, the Council may also be liable to repay up to £4.7 million of
formula grant (of which £1.3 million relates to 2006/07) which represents our combined grant increase above the
floor guarantee in 2006/07 and 2007/08. The decision as to whether the 2006/07 and 2007/08 settlement will be
revised to reflect the population changes will be a matter for ministerial judgement and may not be confirmed until
late 2007. Any repayment would be netted off against the Council’s 2008/09 revenue support grant. A sum of £4.7
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

million was provided within the three year projections presented to Cabinet in the 2007/08 Budget and Council tax
report in February 2007 which was agreed by full Council on 7 March 2007.

The government also introduced a number of changes to the formula grant distribution arrangements for the
2006/07 grant settlement, which included the replacement of the formula spending shares regime with a new
system known as the four block model. A number of changes to the grant distribution formulae were also
implemented. The most notable resulted in a significant reduction before damping in the Council’s share of national
funding for children and younger adult social services. This was equivalent to around £25.0 million in formula grant
before damping (15% of the current allocation). In order to ensure that there was no immediate impact on front line
services, all authorities were given a year on year funding increase by the government of at least 2.7% for younger
adults and children’s social services. However, there is no guarantee that this level of funding will continue into
2008/09 which represents a significant and material risk to the Council’s financial position in the medium term.
These formulae are also used to distribute a number of specific grant funding streams from the Department of
Health and Department for Education and Skills and if they are not revised, Westminster’s share of national social
services funding is expected to decline over time. Westminster will be lobbying the Department for Communities
and Local Government (DCLG) during 2007/08 to encourage them to retain the existing damping arrangements in
advance of the 2008/09 settlement.

Other risks in relation to government grant and other external funding will be monitored closely. The key events are
the publication of the 2007 Comprehensive Spending Review in October 2007 and the subsequent three year
formula grant settlement announcement for 2008/09 to 2010/11. Mitigating action may then need to be taken.

Parking Revenues and the Congestion Charge

The ongoing impact of the increase in the congestion charge from July 2005 combined with the extension of the
charging zone from February 2007 has put further pressure on the Council’s parking revenues. This impact will be
closely monitored to ensure that the Council’s long term budget strategy is sustainable.

Savings Challenges

The achievement of a balanced budget for the next three years will largely depend on the delivery of planned gross
general fund savings which total £55.5 million, of which £24.1 million is due to be achieved in 2007/08. These are
challenging targets and will be monitored as part of the ongoing business planning process. The Council has
launched a business transformation programme, WorkSmart, designed to achieve cashable efficiency savings
whilst maintaining or improving service standards.

Pension Fund

The last actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund as at 31 March 2004 and issued in January 2005 indicated that the
fund was 71% funded. This funding gap is planned to be bridged over the next 30 years. The next valuation of the
fund as at 31 March 2007 is due to be received during 2007/08 (with changes in contribution rates applying fro
2008/09).

Summary

2006/07 has been a very successful year for Westminster. The Audit Commission has confirmed its status as a 4
star Council and one that is improving strongly, making it one of the top 10 Councils in the country. The Council
also received the maximum possible score of four in the 2006 CPA Use of Resources assessment and was one of
only two boroughs in London to be given the highest rating for value for money.

The Council is determined to continue moving forward. It is now in the second year of its One City Programme,
which has been developed to focus our priorities to meet the needs of the community, whilst delivering efficiencies
and innovative services, over the next five years. In the first year of the One City Programme (2006/07) the Council
has already delivered improvements to meet residents’ primary concerns. For example, we have extended our
Civic Watch crime reduction scheme city-wide, developed a new Housing Strategy and helped over 600
disadvantaged job seekers into employment. In 2007/08 the Council will deliver 18 new projects covering key
issues for residents.

The Council remains committed to delivering value for money for residents and was able to set a headline Council
Tax for 2007/08 of £681.7 – the second lowest in England. The Council’s Cabinet also agreed in February 2007 to
continue the policy agreed in February 2006 that it was minded to recommend annual increases in the local
Westminster element of the Council tax of no more than 2% for the next three years subject to the need for financial
prudence.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW BY THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

The authority is in a strong financial position, with the balance sheet as at 31 March 2007 showing non earmarked
revenue balances of over £60.0 million. The level of balances is a key element within the Council’s forward financial
planning strategy. It is kept under review to ensure that the level is commensurate with the need for working
balance requirements, potential medium-term financial implications and to provide a reasonable allowance for
unquantifiable risks which are not already covered within the budget and contingency sum.

The Council’s medium term plan highlights some significant financial risks and challenges. There are a number of
uncertainties about future funding, including the impact of the Comprehensive Spending Review and changes in the
ONS population methodology. There is also uncertainty about the future level of inflation and its impact on the
Council. The Council has determined that, in order to cover these risks and to allow for slippage in the savings
programme, it will keep the General Fund Balance at a minimum of £15.0 million, within the context of a balanced
budget.

In summary, the objective of the Council remains to achieve excellence in absolute terms. It is committed to
delivering the One City vision of strong communities supported by excellent services. It will continue to manage its
financial resources so as to ensure that the objective is met and the vision is delivered.

Nick Bell
Director of Finance and Resources
Westminster City Council,
Westminster City Hall
64 Victoria Street,
London SW1E 6QP
24 September 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER  COUNCIL

Opinion on the Financial Statements

I have audited the financial statements and pension fund accounts of the City of Westminster Council for the year
ended 31 March 2007 under the Audit Commission Act 1998. The financial statements comprise the Income and
Expenditure Account, Statement of the Movement on the General Fund Balance, the Balance Sheet, the Statement
of Total Recognised Gains and Losses, the Cash Flow Statement, the Housing Revenue Account, the Collection
Fund, the Group Accounts and the related notes. The pension fund accounts comprise the Fund Account, the Net
Assets Statement, and the related notes. The financial statements and pension fund accounts have been prepared
under the accounting policies set out within them.

This report is made solely to the City of Westminster Council in accordance with Part II of the Audit Commission Act
1998 and for no other purpose, as set out in paragraph 36 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and of
Audited Bodies prepared by the Audit Commission.

Respective Responsibilities of the Chief Finance Officer and Auditor

The Chief Finance Officer’s responsibilities for preparing the financial statements, including the pension fund
accounts, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and the Statement of Recommended Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2006 are set out in the Statement of Responsibilities.

My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements
and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

I report to you my opinion as to whether the financial statements and the pension fund accounts present fairly, in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations and the Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2006:

• the financial position of the Council and its income and expenditure for the year; and

• the financial transactions of its pension fund during the year and the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets
and liabilities, other than liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme year.

I review whether the statement on internal control reflects compliance with CIPFA’s guidance, ‘The Statement on
Internal Control in Local Government: Meeting the Requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003’
issued in April 2004. I report if it does not comply with proper practices specified by CIPFA or if the statement is
misleading or inconsistent with other information I am aware of from my audit of the financial statements. I am not
required to consider, nor have I considered, whether the statement on internal control covers all risks and controls. I
am also not required to form an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s corporate governance procedures or
its risk and control procedures.

I read other information published with the financial statements, and consider whether it is consistent with the
audited financial statements. This other information comprises only the Financial Review prepared by the Director
of Finance. I consider the implications for my report if I become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. My responsibilities do not extend to any other information.

Basis of audit opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Code of Audit Practice issued by the
Audit Commission and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices
Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the
Council in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the
Council's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

I planned and performed my audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which I considered
necessary in order to provide me with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming
my opinion I also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER  COUNCIL

Opinion

In my opinion:
• The financial statements present fairly, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations and the

Statement of Recommended Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2006, the
financial position of the City of Westminster Council and its Group as at 31 March 2007 and its income and
expenditure for the year then ended; and

• The pension fund accounts present fairly, in accordance with the Statement of Recommended Practice on
Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2006, the financial transactions of the Pension Fund
during the year ended 31 March 2007, and the amount and disposition of the fund’s assets and liabilities
as at 31 March 2007, other than liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the end of the scheme
year.

L.J. Kidner, District Auditor
Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, LONDON SW1P 4HQ
Date:     27 September 2007
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE CITY OF WESTMINSTER  COUNCIL

Conclusion on arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Council’s Responsibilities

The Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper stewardship and governance, and to regularly review the
adequacy and effectiveness of these arrangements.

Under the Local Government Act 1999, the Council is required to prepare and publish a best value performance
plan summarising the authority’s assessment of its performance and position in relation to its statutory duty to make
arrangements to ensure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

Auditor’s Responsibilities

I am required by the Audit Commission Act 1998 to be satisfied that proper arrangements have been made by the
Council for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice
issued by the Audit Commission requires me to report to you my conclusion in relation to proper arrangements,
having regard to relevant criteria specified by the Audit Commission for principal local authorities. I report if
significant matters have come to my attention which prevent me from concluding that the Council has made such
proper arrangements. I am not required to consider, nor have I considered, whether all aspects of the Council’s
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

I am required by section 7 of the Local Government Act 1999 to carry out an audit of the Council’s best value
performance plan and issue a report:

• certifying that I have done so;
• stating whether I believe that the plan has been prepared and published in accordance with statutory

requirements set out in section 6 of the Local Government Act 1999 and statutory guidance; and
• where relevant, making any recommendations under section 7 of the Local Government Act 1999.

Conclusion

I have undertaken my audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice and having regard to the criteria for
principal local authorities specified by the Audit Commission and published in December 2006, I am satisfied that,
in all significant respects, the City of Westminster Council made proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources for the year ending 31 March 2007.

Best Value Performance Plan

I issued my statutory report on the audit of the Council’s best value performance plan for the financial year 2006/07
on 20 December 2006. I did not identify any matters to be reported to the Council and did not make any
recommendations on procedures in relation to the plan.

Certificate

Auditor’s responsibilities

Auditors have a duty under the Audit Commission Act 1998 to consider whether, in the public interest, to report on
any matter that comes to their attention in the course of the audit in order for it to be considered by the body
concerned or brought to the attention of the public.

On 12 March 2007 I issued a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission Act 1998 on the
recovery of surcharge due from Dame Shirley Porter. My conclusions did not include recommendations for the
Council to action.

Certificate

I certify that I have completed the audit of accounts in accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission
Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit Commission.

L. J. Kidner, District Auditor
Audit Commission, 1st Floor, Millbank Tower, Millbank, LONDON SW1P 4HQ
Date:    27 September 2007
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Authority's Responsibilities
The authority is required:
• to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure that one of its officers

has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In this authority, that officer is the Director of
Finance;

• to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets;
• to approve the Statement of Accounts.

Director of Finance’s Responsibilities
The Director of Finance is responsible for the preparation of the authority's statement of accounts and of its
Pension Fund Statement of accounts which, in terms of the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority
Accounting in Great Britain ('the Code'), are required respectively to present fairly the financial position of the
authority and of the Pension Fund at the accounting date and the income and expenditure for the year then ended.

In preparing these statements of accounts, the Director of Finance has:
• adopted suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently except where policy changes have

been noted in these accounts;
• made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent;
• complied with the Code.

The Director of Finance has also:
• kept proper accounting records which were up to date;
• taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Nick Bell
Director of Finance and Resources
24 September 2007

APPROVAL OF STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS

The Statement of Accounts was approved by the Audit and Performance Committee

Councillor Melvyn Caplan,
Chairman of the Audit and Performance Committee
24 September 2007
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STATEMENT ON THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 2006-07

1. SCOPE OF RESPONSIBILITY

Westminster City Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in accordance with the law and
proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically,
efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is also responsible for ensuring that there is a sound system of
internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council’s functions and which includes arrangements
for the management of risk.

2. THE PURPOSE OF THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council’s policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.

The system of internal control has been in place in the Council for the year ended 31 March 2007 and up to the
date of approval of the annual report and accounts.

3. THE INTERNAL CONTROL ENVIRONMENT

The key elements of the internal control environment are described below.

3.1 Establishing and monitoring achievement of the Council’s objectives

The Council produces an annual strategic review document, approved by Cabinet, which represents the first stage
of the annual business planning cycle. This document outlines the Council’s corporate priorities, as set out in the
annual speech by the Leader of the Council, and the key projects to be undertaken during the coming year. These
priorities are monitored through the Council’s performance management framework and progress is reported in the
annual Best Value Performance Plan.

The Council’s business planning framework ensures a consistent approach is applied across the organisation and
ensures key financial and performance information is captured in a systematic way.

The Council’s constitution sets out how decisions are made and the procedures that are followed to ensure that
these are efficient, transparent and accountable to local people.

The Westminster City Partnership (WCP) brings together representatives of the public, voluntary and business
sectors, to deliver a shared vision of providing outstanding customer focused services. The Council publishes a City
Plan, which is developed jointly with the partnership and is kept under regular review to reflect the changing needs
of the City and its people. The WCP has developed a Local Area Agreement (LAA) to reflect the Partnership’s
agreement to delivering fully integrated services and this took effect from April 2006.

Within the WCP, there are eight thematic networks which act as a forum through which community needs can be
identified and addressed. The Council’s community engagement and consultation framework ensures that the
views of the community inform Council objectives and priorities. The Council’s programme of Civic Renewal
continued throughout the year and, in spring 2006, was replaced by its successor ‘One City’. One City is the
Council’s vision for the next five years and addresses stakeholder concerns under four delivery programmes -
order, opportunity, enterprise and renewal.

3.2 Facilitation of policy and decision making

The full Council decides the Council’s overall policies and sets the budget. The Cabinet is responsible for
implementing the policies decided by the Council within the budget set. Most of the day-to-day decisions are taken
by the Executive (i.e. the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members), although a number of important decisions are
also taken by full Council or by regulatory committees or sub-committees. In general, meetings are open to the
public except where personal or confidential matters are being disclosed. Senior officers of the Council can make
decisions under delegated powers.
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STATEMENT ON THE SYSTEM OF INTERNAL CONTROL 2006-07

The Council publishes, on a monthly basis, a Forward Plan, which contains details of key decisions to be made by
the Cabinet, Cabinet Members and Chief Officers. The Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committees have powers
to call in and challenge decisions prior to implementation and refer these back to the Cabinet Member or refer the
matter to the full Council for further consideration.

Prior to submission of reports to Cabinet, they are subjected to an officer clearance process which confirms
consistency with corporate objectives and compliance with the Council’s procedures and legal formalities.

3.3 Ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and regulations

The Council has designated the Director of Legal and Administrative Services as the Monitoring Officer. It is the
function of this officer to oversee compliance with legislation and to report to the full Council if he considers that any
proposal, decision or omission would give rise to unlawfulness or maladministration. Such a report will have the
effect of stopping the proposal or decision being implemented until the report has been considered.

The Council has also adopted a local code of governance. This sets out how the Council’s business is conducted
and, along with the constitution, stipulates the regulations and standards required to be followed by officers and
elected members.

The Director of Finance and Resources is the Council’s Chief Financial Officer and is responsible for the proper
administration of the Council’s financial affairs. He discharges this role through publishing a set of Financial
Regulations which stipulate how the financial management of the Council is to be conducted, and through
monitoring the application and effectiveness of these in practice. The Regulations have recently been updated and
supplemented with a detailed set of financial procedures. Detailed rules for the letting, management and monitoring
of contracts are set out within the Council’s Contracts and Procurement Code which has recently been reviewed
and re-issued.

The Council delivers a significant proportion of its services through its strategic partnership contracts with Vertex.
The direction and performance of the partnership is governed through the Customer Services Initiative Joint Board
and the Partnership Management Board.

The Council has established an arms length management organisation (CityWest Homes) to manage its housing
stock. The organisation has adopted a formal code of governance, and manages its internal affairs and budgets
delegated to it through the Company Board and its Performance and Audit Committee. The Company is subject to
internal and external audit and inspection.

The Council maintains an outsourced internal audit service that operates to the standards set out in the Code of
Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government in the UK. The role of internal audit includes evaluating the
effectiveness of control systems in ensuring compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations.
Recommendations made are formally reported and followed up to confirm that they have been acted on.

The Council is subject to an annual programme of independent external audits and statutory inspections. The
external auditor reports on the Council’s governance, performance and accounting arrangements and highlights
any material weaknesses that need to be addressed. The annual CPA Use of Resources review examines
compliance with best practice in terms of financial management, financial reporting and internal control.

In May 2006 the Council re-constituted the Audit and Performance Committee as a full committee of the Council
(previously a sub-committee of Overview and Scrutiny), independent of both the executive and the overview and
scrutiny function, and with decision making powers. It met throughout the year and its remit includes maintaining an
overview of the Council’s regulatory framework, control systems and audit activity. It considers and contributes to
the development of the annual internal audit plan and reviews audit activity on a quarterly basis to ensure that
emphasis and resources are focused on priority areas. The Committee has also taken on an enhanced role in
reviewing the performance of key Council functions and reports its findings to Cabinet.

The Council’s Standards Committee exists to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by councillors and
monitor the operation of the Members Code of Conduct. The Committee also has the responsibility for maintaining
an overview of ethical standards across the Council and receives an annual ethical governance report.

There is an anti-fraud and corruption strategy and a whistleblowing policy in place, and both have been recently
updated. The Council’s major contractors are also required to have suitable arrangements in place.

The Council also operates a corporate complaints procedure and is subject to investigation by the Local
Government Ombudsman. There is a separate procedure for social services complaints to ensure compliance with
statutory requirements.
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3.4 Identifying, assessing and managing risks to the Council’s objectives
The Council has a risk management strategy. This sets out the processes for identifying, assessing and managing
risks, the respective roles of officers and members, and the monitoring and reporting arrangements. The strategy
requires the establishment of strategic and departmental risk registers to support the delivery of business
objectives, and the application of risk management techniques within key projects, partnerships, initiatives and
contracts.

Risk registers are monitored regularly by senior managers and members to ensure that mitigating actions are
implemented and are effective in reducing risks to the achievement of the Council’s objectives.

The Council’s success in managing risks is also reviewed indirectly through the performance management
framework and regime of regular monitoring reports. The Council’s top strategic and departmental risks are
summarised within regular performance monitoring reports. CityWest Homes has established its own risk register
and this is reviewed regularly by the Performance and Audit Committee.

The Council’s strategic customer services partner was selected following a detailed risk assessment exercise and
operates its own risk management policy. Risks are reviewed on a monthly basis and key risks are considered by
the Partnership Management Board with representatives from both the Council and Vertex.

The internal audit service operates a risk-based approach to its work. This involves the use of risk assessment
when developing the audit plan, reference to strategic and departmental risk registers, identification of risks at the
commencement of each project, evaluation of controls in place to mitigate these, and the agreement of
improvement plans.

The Council has business continuity plans in place to ensure that it can maintain delivery of its business critical
services. These plans are regularly reviewed and tested to ensure compliance with the Civil Contingencies Act
2004. The Council also has robust and regularly tested emergency planning arrangements in place.

There is a corporate health and safety policy and a framework of regular risk assessments. Insurance policies are
in place to cover the Council’s key financial risks and these are kept under regular review.

3.5 Ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources and securing continuous
improvement

The Council constantly seeks ways of ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for
securing continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised. Means of achieving this include
the Council’s commitment to low taxation, a customer charter setting out standards of service delivery, a corporate
complaints handling procedure, the continued development of the Customer Services initiative, production of an
annual efficiency statement, local public service agreements, local and national performance targets and reviews
by external auditors, external agencies and internal audit.

The annual CPA Use of Resources review examines the Council’s value for money arrangements. The Council has
a Procurement Modernisation Programme aimed at delivering cost-effectiveness and efficiency in the procurement
process.

The Council’s WorkSmart programme underpins the delivery of the One City vision. It aims to deliver cost reduction
and service improvement through introducing new ways of working and delivering services. The programme
currently comprises 20 individual projects, many of them cutting across departmental boundaries. The council has
prioritised 5 major projects that have the greatest impact on service delivery or which underpin the transformation
agenda. These are electronic records management, flexible working, Wireless City, end-to-end licensing
transformation and e-procurement.

3.6 Financial management and reporting

The Council has a medium term financial strategy, which is reviewed and updated annually to support the
achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities. The budget and policy framework outlines the process and
timetable to be followed each year when setting the Council’s budget.

The financial management of the Council is conducted in accordance with the budget and policy framework
procedure rules and financial regulations set out in the constitution. The Council has designated the Director of
Finance as Chief Financial Officer in accordance with section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972. This post has
responsibility for the proper administration of the Council’s financial affairs and for ensuring the lawfulness and
financial prudence of decision making.
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The financial management framework includes the submission of regular budget monitoring reports to the
Corporate Management Board, Departmental Management Teams, leading Members, and the Overview and
Scrutiny Committees.

During 2006/07 the Council commissioned a long-term review of its Housing Revenue Account (HRA) and the
options for future management of the housing service. The review concluded that the HRA was likely to be in a
healthy position over the next 30 years and that the existing management arrangements established with CityWest
Homes should continue.

3.7 Performance management and reporting

The Council has a documented performance management framework and a performance improvement team that
provides support and guidance to departments. The performance management system is driven by the annual
strategic review document which identifies key projects and initiatives to support corporate priorities. These
priorities are cascaded through the Best Value Performance Plan, departmental service plans, and individual
employee performance management plans and appraisals.

The Corporate Management Board, Cabinet Members, Overview and Scrutiny Committees and the Audit and
Performance Committee all receive regular reports covering progress against corporate priorities, financial
performance, service performance, project updates, key risks and achievement of key best value performance
targets. Corrective action is agreed where necessary to keep performance on track.

The Council is the accountable body for the Local Area Agreement (LAA) and has introduced comprehensive and
robust performance management arrangements to ensure that the outcomes of the LAA are delivered. These
arrangements have ensured that the LAA is rated as ‘green’ by the Government Office for London. As well as
providing regular reports to GoL, the performance of the LAA is reported quarterly to the Audit and Performance
Committee and relevant overview and scrutiny committees. Performance reports are also provided to the LAA
Board and Strategic Partnership Board.

CityWest Homes is accountable for the performance of a significant proportion of the Council’s housing
responsibilities. Performance is monitored both within the company, at its Performance and Audit Committee, and
through a regular review process with senior Council officers and members.

4 REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. The review is informed by the work of the internal auditors and the executive managers within the
authority who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the internal control environment, and
also by comments made by the external auditors and other review agencies and inspectorates.

The process that has been applied in maintaining and reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control
includes:

4.1 Governance

The Director of Legal and Administrative Services monitored and reviewed the operation of the constitution and the
proposed changes to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee structure were finalised and approved by the General
Purposes Committee and Council.

The Standards Committee met throughout the year. It responded in detail to the Standards Board for England’s
consultation on the Code of Conduct, and continued to arrange training on the Code. It also considered the
Council’s response to the ethical governance audit conducted by the Audit Commission and endorsed the
associated action plan. The Committee also received the first annual report on ethical governance in accordance
with its new terms of reference.

The Audit and Performance Committee met regularly throughout the year and established four sub-groups with a
remit of reviewing the Council’s arrangements in four key areas – people, property, procurement and process/audit.
Progress is being reported to each meeting of the Committee.

Complaints were monitored centrally through the corporate complaints recording system, at departmental level by
customer service officers and by senior management and members as part of the quarterly performance reporting
regime. Complaints that cannot be resolved through customer service officers are individually reviewed by the Chief
Executive and the response co-ordinated by the corporate complaints team. An annual review of 2006/07
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complaints performance is being conducted and the results will be reported to the Council’s Corporate
Management board and the Audit and Performance Committee. The Ombudsman also provides an annual report of
complaints to the Council, and the volume of complaints received via the Ombudsman decreased from 110 in
2005/06 to 72 in 2006/07.

4.2 Scrutiny

Following the review of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee structure the Westminster Scrutiny Commission
(WSC) has met to oversee the work of the four Overview and Scrutiny Committees and endorsed the work
programme of each. Where appropriate these Committees have established task groups to help deliver their work
programmes. In particular, the Resources and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee established a
member Task Group with the specific remit of overseeing officers’ response to an external compliance audit
conducted in 2005/06.

The results of the work undertaken are presented in an annual report to the WSC. Areas subject to scrutiny
2006/07 included secondary school performance, public transport, the Council’s open space strategy, implications
of the smoking ban, the recommendations of the Housing Commission and the Council’s WorkSmart initiative.

During the year the WSC invited members of the public to utilise the scrutiny website to submit questions to the
Council and held two public question and answer sessions with the Council Leader.

A review of the effectiveness of the new Overview and Scrutiny Committee structure is also being undertaken by
the WSC.

4.3 Internal audit

The internal audit service undertook a risk-based programme of audits during the year in order to provide the
Council with assurance on the adequacy of its systems of internal control. Each audit resulted in the production of a
written report to management highlighting key risks and including actions agreed for addressing control
weaknesses.

Significant weaknesses in control systems, and corrective action taken, and the results of follow-up work were
reported to the Corporate Management Board and the Audit and Performance Committee throughout the year. The
results of audit coverage of CityWest Homes were also reported to the Performance and Audit Committee.

Based on its work during 2006/07, the internal auditor concluded that the Council’s control systems were adequate,
that its internal control framework was improving and that it is effective in implementing recommendations where
problems are found. However, there were a number of important areas where the auditor considered that
improvements were required to strengthen the Council's control framework. These included administration of the
payroll system, operation of Criminal Records Bureau checks, income recovery and debt collection, business
continuity arrangements, control of parking refunds, controls within the loans and investments system and
prevention of duplicate payments. The Council has developed action plans to address these issues

Following the results of an external audit commissioned in 2005/06, increased emphasis was given during the year
to auditing compliance with the Council’s Procurement Code and Financial Regulations. The audits confirmed that
there was generally a high degree of compliance across all departments, although there was scope to improve
processes for raising orders and recording committed expenditure on the Council’s financial information system.

The performance of the audit contractor is measured against a set of targets and is monitored throughout the year
by Council staff and the Audit and Performance Committee. The internal audit service is also subject to regular
inspection by the Council’s external auditors and their work concludes that it is possible to place reliance on the
standards of conduct, independence, strategy and professional care of the internal audit team. There has also been
joint working between the two audit teams in a range of areas including auditing of core financial systems and best
value performance indicators.

The internal audit and anti-fraud contract was re-let during the year and a new contract takes effect from 2007/08.

4.4 Risk management

During the year the Council’s risk management strategy was reviewed and new methodologies introduced including
the use of risk scores, improvements to the presentation of information in risk registers, and better co-ordination
with performance monitoring reports. The use of technology was also explored to help improve the efficiency of the
process and new systems will be implemented in 2007/08.
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A major refresh of the Council’s strategic risk register was conducted and key strategic risks were subject to regular
review by the Corporate Management Board and the Audit and Performance Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Progress was monitored to ensure that mitigating actions had been successful in reducing the likelihood and impact
of the risks occurring. Individual departments produced risk registers to support their business plans and a process
of quality assurance was introduced to ensure that these were in line with the standards set out in the risk
management strategy.

A number of workshops were held to continue to raise awareness of risk management concepts and to further
embed these across the Council.

4.5 Performance management

The Council’s performance management system provides a continuous process of monitoring against 5 key areas
– performance indicators, finance, the Council’s One City vision, transformational projects and risks and
opportunities. The results for the year show an overall improvement in performance against best value indicators, a
budget underspend, completion of the majority of One City projects, good progress with WorkSmart projects and
progress with mitigating key risks.

The Council’s annual MORI resident’s survey again found that it had one of the highest satisfaction ratings for an
urban authority.

CityWest Homes performance management arrangements were reviewed during the year and will be strengthened
in 2007/08 through greater use of key performance indicators and the introduction of a financial incentive scheme
linked to performance.

4.6 External audit and inspection

The Council is subject to an annual programme of independent external audits and statutory inspections (including
Comprehensive Performance Assessment). The external auditor reports on the Council’s governance, performance
and accounting arrangements.

The Comprehensive Performance Assessment rated the Council as ‘four-star’ for a fifth year running. It also
concluded that the Council’s ’direction of travel’ is improving strongly and that it has a track record of securing
improvement in priority areas.

The Council’s arrangements for financial reporting, financial management, financial standing, internal control and
value for money were reviewed as part of the annual ‘use of resources’ assessment. The Council has shown
improved performance in this area and increased its overall score from three to four (the highest available) for
2006. The auditor’s report confirms that the Council is performing above minimum requirements in all theme areas
and well above the minimum in respect of financial management and value for money. It also concludes that sound
internal control is maintained through strengthened risk management and a clear assurance framework, and that a
strong anti-fraud regime is maintained.

The Annual Audit and Inspection letter summarises the conclusions and significant issues arising from the year’s
audit. It confirms the Council’s strong financial base and that it has been possible to issue an unqualified opinion on
the financial statements. It flags the need to keep the level of balances under review and to continue to monitor
risks within services provided under contract.

The Audit Commission also carried out an in-depth inspection of CityWest Homes and assessed the organisation
as providing an excellent three-star service with excellent prospects for improvement.

4.7 Line management assurance

Line managers are responsible for maintaining adequate systems of internal control. During the year a process of
management self-assessment was piloted in respect of some of the Council’s core financial systems. This will be
rolled out further during 2007/08.

An officer Compliance Group was also established in response to the findings of the external compliance audit
conducted during 2005/06. The Group has been responsible for developing and taking forward a detailed action
plan to promote compliance with the Council’s regulations and improve contract management within the Corporate
Property Division. The Group has reported on progress to the Corporate Management Board and to the Task Force
established by the Resources and Corporate Services Overview and Scrutiny committee.
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Managers have also regularly monitored progress against the significant internal control issues raised in the
2005/06 statement of internal control. Improvements have been made across all areas and, in particular, action has
been taken to:

 Increase the level of compliance with the Council’s Contracts and Procurement Code and Financial Regulations.
 Improve controls within the payroll system.
 Strengthen arrangements for IT server back-up.
 Introduce an employee code of conduct, and improve processes for registering employee interests and receipt

of gifts and hospitality.
 Strengthen contract management processes within the Corporate Property Division.
 Strengthen the Council’s anti-money laundering arrangements.

5. SIGNIFICANT INTERNAL CONTROL ISSUES

During the course of the year the Council’s monitoring processes identified a number of significant issues that
needed to be addressed to ensure the continuous improvement of the system of internal control. As a result action
was taken to improve separation of duties within the loans and investments system, to strengthen controls over the
issuing of parking refunds, to strengthen measures for preventing duplicate payments and to improve the
administration of the parking notice system.

In addition action is being taken in the following areas:

ISSUE ACTIONS REQUIRED
Further develop the Council’s business
continuity arrangements including
improving the dependability of back-up
and recovery arrangements.

Ac t ions  inc lude  rev iew ing  d isas te r
recovery/business continuity for all systems,
ensuring adequate backup of systems and data,
replication of data to assist in disaster recovery,
provision of mirrored storage, and provision of
standby servers and storage capacity at
alternative locations.

Implement further improvements to the
processes in place for administering
the Council’s payroll system.

Actions include improving documentation of pre-
employment checks on payroll files and
introducing sample checks on accuracy of payroll
input.

Strengthen arrangements in place for
the control and recording of Criminal
Records Bureau checks.

Actions include improving accuracy and
completeness of database records, adequacy of
audit trails, monitoring arrangements, security of
information, and guidance issued to managers.

Strengthen the processes in place for
debt recovery across key areas,
including commercial waste, social
services and payroll debts.

Actions include appointment of a debt manager,
review of debt management procedures, regular
monitoring, review of bad debt provision and
utilisation of additional resource to pursue payroll
debt.

Improve systems of budgetary control
and financial reporting to ensure timely
identification and accurate reporting of
capital and revenue underspends.

Actions include introduction of monthly challenge
sessions with Heads of Finance and formal
monthly sign-off of figures by CMB members.

Progress will be monitored and reported to the Corporate Management Board and the Audit and Performance
Committee.

Peter Rogers Sir Simon Milton
Chief Executive Leader of the Council
       September 2007        September 2007
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Introduction

Accounting policies are the principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by an authority that specify
how the effects of transactions and other events are to be reflected in its financial statements through recognising,
selecting measurement bases for and presenting assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes in reserves. The
accounting policies have been reviewed in accordance with FRS18.

General Principles

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 2006 - A
Statement of Recommended Practice (2006 SORP), issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accountancy (CIPFA), and the guidance notes on those statements of standard accounting practice, with the
CIPFA guidance notes on accounting standards (SSAPs) and Financial Reporting Standards (FRSs) relevant to
local authorities. They comply therefore with “proper accounting practice” under the terms of the Local Government
and Housing Act 1989.

The 2005/06 Accounts have been re-stated for changes introduced by the 2006 SORP and the substantive
changes included:

• The removal of the requirement to make a capital financing charge
• Credits for government grants deferred to be posted to service revenue accounts, support services and

trading accounts, rather than credited as a corporate income item
• Gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets to be recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account

The re-statement of the 2005/06 Accounts is shown on page 28 of these Accounts.

The general principles adopted in compiling the accounts are those recommended by the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). All Statements of Standard Accounting Practice, and Financial Reporting
Standards which CIPFA has so far determined as being relevant to local authority accounts, and the Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting published by CIPFA have been followed.

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Customer and Client Receipts – Customer and client receipts in the form of sales, fees, charges and rents are
accrued and accounted for in the period to which they relate.

Employee Costs – The full cost of employees is charged to the accounts of the period within which the employees
worked. Accrual is made for pay earned but unpaid at the year-end. Where retrospective adjustments or special
payments are required, for example, through pay awards or redundancy payments, the accounts are charged (or
credited) with the additional amount as soon as it can reasonably be estimated.

Interest – Interest payable on external borrowings and interest income is accrued and accounted for in the accounts
of the period to which it relates on a basis which reflects the overall economic effect of the borrowings.

Supplies and Services – The cost of supplies and services is accrued and accounted for in the period during which
they were consumed or received. Accrual is made for all material sums unpaid at the year end for goods or
services received or worked completed.

Audit of Financial Statements

The finances of the City Council are subject to continuous internal audit by the Director of Finance and his staff.
The financial statements are subject to external audit by the Appointed Auditor (Audit Commission) under the Audit
Commission Act 1998 and the Auditors' report is included herein. These Accounts include the information required
to be published as an abstract of accounts for the purposes of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003.
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Business Improvement District (BID) Schemes

BID projects are projects for the benefit of a particular area that are financed (in whole or in part) by a BID levy paid
by the non-domestic ratepayers, or a class of such ratepayers, in the BID area. There were 3 BIDs in operation in
2006/07 for which the City Council acts as an agent. The following amounts only are recognised in the billing
authority’s Income and Expenditure Account (I&E A/C):

 Any contribution made by the Council to the BID project (i.e. grant-in-aid), which would be shown as service
expenditure under the relevant service in the I&E A/C

 BID levy collection costs and associated (reimbursement) income, which are shown in Net Cost of Services
under the relevant service in the I&E A/C

A note to the accounts on BID schemes operating in the year, including a BID Revenue Account for each scheme,
is included in the Notes to the Core Financial Statements.

Charges to Revenue for Use of Assets

General Fund service revenue accounts, central support services and Direct Service Organisations (DSOs) are
charged with a depreciation charge for all fixed assets used in the provision of services. The charge for property is

based on depreciation of the buildings element of the capital value over the remaining useful life. Depreciation
charges for other assets are based on the useful life of the asset. However, Community Assets are not depreciated.

The aggregate charge to individual services is determined on the basis of the capital employed in each service. The
depreciation charge for dwellings, made to the Housing Revenue Account, is an amount equivalent to the Major
Repairs Allowance.

External interest payable and the provision for depreciation are charged to the Income and Expenditure Account,
but they are credited back to the Statement of Movements on the General Fund Balance (SMGFB). Depreciation
charges, therefore, have a neutral impact on the amounts required to be raised from local taxation.

Amounts set aside from revenue for the repayment of external loans, to finance capital expenditure or as transfers
to other earmarked reserves, are disclosed separately on the SMGFB.

Contingent Assets

Contingent assets are not recognised in the accounting statements, but are disclosed in the Notes to the Core
Financial Statements.

Contingent Liabilities

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the accounting statements, but are disclosed in the Notes to the Core
Financial Statements, if there is a possible obligation which may require a payment or a transfer of economic
benefits.

Cost of Support Services

The costs of management and administration, excluding those related to Corporate and Democratic core and Non-
distributed costs, are allocated to services. The costs of salaries are allocated on the basis of time spent by officers
on various services and the costs of administrative buildings on a floor area basis. Service agreements and fee
charging arrangements have been introduced for most support services.

Debtors and Creditors

Sums due to or from the Council are recorded at the time they become due or payable. The debtors shown on the
balance sheet therefore represent sums due to the Council which have not been received at the year-end.
Provisions are made for bad or doubtful debts. The creditors figure on the balance sheet shows the value of goods
and services received, but not paid for by the Council. In respect of Lender Option Borrower Option loans (LOBOS)
interest based on the average rate of interest payable on the loan, up to its estimated repayment date, has been
charged in the accounts.
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Deferred Charges

Deferred charges represent expenditure which may properly be capitalised, but which does not represent tangible
fixed assets. Under the capital accounting rules applicable from 1 April 1994, amounts previously included in
deferred charges in respect of assets transferred or sold were written off to the fixed asset restatement account.
Deferred charges relating to Renovation and Assisted Purchase and other grants are written off in the year in which
they are incurred and no balance is carried forward. Under the 2004 SORP, certain computer costs previously
included as deferred charges were transferred to the equipment or intangible assets heading in the Balance Sheet
as appropriate.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on fixed assets with a finite useful life (which is determined at the time of acquisition or
revaluation) according to the following policy:

• Freehold buildings are depreciated on the straight–line method over the remaining useful life of the building,
(range of two to sixty years).

• Dwellings are depreciated in accordance with HRA Resource Accounting requirements. The depreciation
provision is equivalent to the Major Repairs Allowance advised by the Government.

• Newly acquired assets are depreciated from the following financial year, although assets in the course of
construction are not depreciated until they are brought into use;

• Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over a period of three, five or ten years as appropriate
for equipment, over the useful life for infrastructure (range of five to twenty years) and over the remaining
period of the lease for the leasehold properties (range of 8 to 65 years).

Estimation Techniques

Estimation techniques are the methods adopted by an authority seeking to arrive at estimated monetary amounts,
corresponding to the measurement bases selected for assets, liabilities, gains, losses and changes in reserves. An
accounting policy will specify the basis on which an item is to be measured; where there is uncertainty over the
monetary amount corresponding to that basis the amount will be arrived at using an estimation technique.

Except where specified in the 2006 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting, or in specific legislative
requirements, the authority has determined the estimation techniques that most closely reflect the economic reality
of the transactions or other events to which the relevant accounting policy refers

Events After the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are reflected up to the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised for
issue. The date when the Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue and who gave that authorisation is
disclosed in the notes to the Statement of Accounts, including confirmation that this is the date up to which events
after the balance sheet date have been considered.

Where a material event after the balance sheet date, favourable or unfavourable, which provides evidence of
conditions that existed at the balance sheet date occurs (adjusting event) the amounts recognised in the Statement
of Accounts are adjusted.

Where an event that occurs after the balance sheet date is indicative of conditions that arose after the balance
sheet date (non-adjusting event) the amounts recognised in the Statement of Accounts are not adjusted, e.g. a
decline in market value of investments after the balance sheet date.

The following is disclosed for each material category of non-adjusting event after the balance sheet date:
a) the nature of the event, and
b) an estimate of the financial effect, or a statement that such an estimate cannot be made reliably.

Exceptional Items, Extraordinary Items and Prior Period Adjustments

Exceptional items are included in the cost of the service to which they relate or on the face of the Income and
Expenditure Account if that degree of prominence is necessary in order to give a fair presentation of the accounts.

Extraordinary items are disclosed and described on the face of the Income and Expenditure Account after dealing
with all items within the ordinary activities of the authority. There were no extraordinary items in the accounts.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Material adjustments applicable to prior years, arising from changes in accounting policies or from the correction of
fundamental errors, are accounted for by restating the comparative figures for the preceding period in the statement
of account and notes and adjusting the opening balance of reserves for the cumulative effect. The cumulative effect
of the adjustments should also be noted at the foot of the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses of the
current period.

Financial Relationship with Companies

The Council owns CityWest Homes Ltd, a local authority controlled company established with no share capital and
limited by guarantee. Under the terms of the guarantee, the liability of the Council as sole shareholder is £1. The
accounts of CityWest Homes Ltd are disclosed separately within the financial statements. (Group Accounts are also
shown in this statement which consolidates the accounts of CityWest Homes).

Fixed Assets

All expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis in the
accounts, provided that the fixed assets yield benefits to the authority and the services it provides, for a period of
more than one year. This includes expenditure resulting in substantial increases in thermal insulation, access for
disabled persons or safety from risk of fire in buildings, but excludes expenditure on routine repairs and
maintenance of fixed assets which is charged direct to service revenue accounts.

Fixed assets are valued on the basis recommended by CIPFA and in accordance with the Statements of Asset
Valuation Principles and Guidance Notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). Fixed
assets are classified into the groupings required by the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting. The
following bases are applied under the Code of Practice for Capital Accounting:

• Land and operational properties are included in the balance sheet at the lower of net current replacement cost
or net realisable value in existing use. The following valuation bases are used to determine net current
replacement cost:
a) non-specialised operational properties are valued on the basis of existing use value (EUV)
b) specialised operational properties are valued on the basis of depreciated replacement cost.

• In respect of Housing dwellings, the valuation is reduced to reflect the average 'Right to Buy' discount factor;
• Non-operational assets, including investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, are

included in the balance sheet on the basis of open market value;
• Vehicles, plant and equipment are included at historic cost less depreciation;
• Infrastructure assets and community assets were included in the balance sheet at outstanding debt at 1 April

1994. Subsequent additions are included at historic cost less depreciation where appropriate.

The surpluses arising on the initial valuation of fixed assets were credited to the fixed asset restatement account.
Subsequent revaluations of fixed assets are carried out on a five year rolling programme and surpluses/deficits
included in the account, although material changes to asset valuations are adjusted in the interim period as they
occur. The revaluations during 2006/07 of Housing dwellings were carried out in-house by the Director of Technical
Services (MRICS), CityWest Homes and revaluations of other Land and Buildings by Dunlop Heywood - Consultant
Surveyors. The revaluations of non-operational properties were carried out by Nelson Bakewell Ltd.

The value of each category of assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and if the value has reduced
materially in the period through impairment, the valuation is adjusted accordingly.

Where an impairment loss on a fixed asset occurs the loss is recognised, if it is caused by a clear consumption of
economic benefits (e.g. physical damage or a deterioration in the quality of the service provided by the asset, i.e. if
it is similar in nature to depreciation), in the Income and Expenditure Account. Other impairments (reflecting a
general fall in prices) are recognised in the fixed asset restatement account. Impairment was included in the
2006/07 accounts in respect of car parks (arising from an increase in the congestion charge) and Marylebone
Library.

Disposals

On disposal of Fixed Assets, the capital receipt is transferred into the Usable Capital Receipts Reserve. The gain or
loss on disposal of a tangible fixed asset is the amount by which the disposal proceeds are more (gain) or less
(loss) than the carrying amount of the fixed asset. This is included as a surplus or deficit in the Income and
Expenditure Account, but as this, under statute, does not impact on the amount to be charged to Council Tax, this
is reversed out in the SMGFB.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Government Grants and Contributions

Where the acquisition of a fixed asset is financed wholly or in part by a Government grant or other contribution, the
amount of the grant or contribution is credited when used for financing to the government grants-deferred account.
Amounts are released to the Service Revenue Account over the useful life of the asset to match the depreciation
charged on the asset to which it relates. Government grants and other contributions are accounted for on an
accruals basis and recognised in the statement of accounts when the conditions for their receipt have been
complied with and there is a reasonable assurance that the grant or contribution will be received.

Group Accounts

This statement includes Group Accounts incorporating the Council’s interest in CityWest Homes. Where the Code
of Practice requires changes to accounting policies for the preparation of Group Accounts, these are set out in the
Group Accounts section (page 79-83).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets under the 2004 SORP are defined as software licenses, licenses, trademarks and artistic originals
and patents. The Council has identified intangible assets in the software licenses category. These are valued at
historic cost less amortisation. The charge to revenue is based on writing down the historic cost over the
appropriate life of the asset.

Investments

General Fund investments in listed and unlisted companies and in marketable securities are carried at cost less
provision, where appropriate, for loss in value. Long-term investments are identified separately on the face of the
balance sheet. General Fund dividend income from investments is recognised when the local authority has a right
to receive the dividend. For dividends from quoted securities, this will be when the security is quoted ex-dividend.
For dividends from unquoted securities, this will be when the dividend is declared, except when the security is sold
before the dividend becomes receivable.

Listed investments are shown in the Pension Fund accounts at market value, determined by Stock Exchange prices
at the balance sheet date. Managed funds are valued at the price quoted by their respective managers on the last
trading day of the year, which is determined by the market value of the underlying investments.

Investment income of the Pension Fund (e.g. dividends and interest on Government Stocks) is accounted for on the
accruals basis. Foreign income has been translated into sterling at the date of the transaction. Foreign income due
at the year-end has been translated into sterling at the rate ruling at 31 March 2007. Acquisition costs of assets are
included within the historic cost of the assets.

Leases

The Council has entered into a number of operating leases mainly for equipment. The leased assets are not stated
in the balance sheet. Rentals are charged to revenue on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease and no
provision is made for outstanding lease commitments.

Long Term Contracts

Where the Council has entered into long term contracts for the provision of assets or services, the costs are
accounted for as they fall due for payment under the contract. This includes the Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
Scheme in respect of the provision of residential/nursing services at Forrester Court.

NNDR and Council Tax

NNDR and Council Tax income recorded in the Collection Fund accounts represents the net amount of demands
issued during the year. Adjustments to NNDR and Council Tax bills issued after the end of the financial year, are
recorded in the accounts at the time that the revisions are issued.

Pension Costs

The cost of providing pensions for employees is funded in accordance with the statutory requirements governing
the particular pension schemes or funds in which the authority participates. However, accounting for employees’
pensions under FRS 17 will be in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice subject to interpretations
set out in the Code.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The objectives of FRS 17 are to ensure that:
 financial statements reflect at fair value the assets and liabilities arising from an employer’s retirement benefit

obligations and any related funding;
 the operating costs of providing retirement benefits to employees are recognised in the accounting period(s) in

which the benefits are earned by the employees, and the related finance costs and any other changes in value
of the assets and liabilities are recognised in the accounting periods in which they arise; and

 the financial statements contain adequate disclosure of the cost of providing retirement benefits and the
related gains, losses, assets and liabilities.

The amounts charged in the Net Cost of Services within the Income and Expenditure Account is the current service
(pensions) costs, i.e. the increase in the present value of a defined benefit scheme’s liabilities expected to arise
from employee service in the current period. Past service costs, i.e. the increase in the present value of the scheme
liabilities related to employee service in prior periods arising in the current period as a result of the introduction of,
or improvement to, retirement benefits, are included in the Net Cost of Services section of the Income and
Expenditure Account – Non-Distributed Cost.

Where the payments made for the year in accordance with the scheme requirements do not match the change in
the authority’s recognised asset or liability for the same period, the recognised cost of pensions will not match the
amount required to be raised in taxation. This is represented by an appropriation to or from the pensions reserve,
which equals the net change in the pensions liability recognised in the Income and Expenditure Account.

Under the 2004 SORP, the discount rate for future defined benefit scheme liabilities was changed from the rate
determined by the Government Actuaries department, (based on the assumed long-term real rate of return
expected to be earned on a portfolio of long dated index-linked stocks), to the current rate of return on a high
quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities.

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Amendment) Regulations 2006 made a number of changes to benefits
with effect from 30 March 2006. One of these is to include the right of scheme members to elect to take an
enhanced tax free lump sum in return for a reduced annual pension (commutation of pension). In calculating the
pension cost information, the Council’s actuaries have advised that they assume that 50% of members will
commute the maximum amount of pension possible (i.e. so that their total lump sum is 25% of the value of their
pension) and that the rest will not commute anything.

Pension Fund

Accounting policies specifically applicable to the Pension Fund are shown on page 72.

Provisions

Provisions are made in the accounts where liabilities or losses have been identified, but where the amounts or
dates on which they will arise are uncertain at present.

Redemption of Debt

All loans raised by the Council are paid into the Loans Pool from which advances are made to finance capital
expenditure where required. (There is a statutory requirement, subject to the regulations, to charge a minimum
revenue provision to the General Fund for repayment of debt).

Reserves

The fixed asset restatement account represents principally the balance of the surpluses or deficits arising on the
periodic revaluation of fixed assets.

The capital financing account represents amounts set aside from revenue resources or capital receipts, to finance
expenditure on fixed assets or for the repayment of external loans and certain other capital financing transactions. It
also includes capital receipts receivable in future accounting periods.

The Pensions Reserve represents the difference between Westminster’s share of Pensions Fund assets and it’s
liability to pay future pensions. Its deficiency (-) in the Westminster and LPFA funds is disclosed as a negative
reserve on the Balance sheet.

The Pensions Reserve also includes the capitalised value of unfunded pensions which are charged directly to the
Income and Expenditure Account as a non-distributed cost on an annual basis.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Council maintains a number of other reserve funds as required either by statute or Council policy. The purpose
of the funds and the uses to which these funds can be applied are explained in the accounts.

Resource Accounting in the Housing Revenue Account

The Government has introduced a form of resource accounting in the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) from April
2001 and the form of the HRA shown within these accounts complies with the requirements. The Major Repairs
Reserve (MRR) has been established, which is used to fund expenditure for HRA capital purposes. The HRA is
consolidated into the appropriate sections within net operating expenditure or appropriations within the
Consolidated Revenue Account.

Statement of Accounting Policies for Group Accounts

The Council is required to prepare group accounts if it has interests in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.
There are a number of criteria by which the Council must determine whether the value of the entity and the
Council’s interest is significant enough for group accounts to be produced. After consideration of these criteria, the
Council has determined that a set of Group Accounts should be produced to consolidate the Council’s interest in
CityWest Homes. As required by the 2006 SORP, the Council’s accounts have been aligned with UK Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) by making the following amendments to the Income and Expenditure
Account:

 Incorporating profits on the disposal of fixed assets in the Net Cost of Services.
 Writing out notional interest charges on fixed assets from Net Cost of Services.
 Crediting government grants deferred amortisations to individual service revenue accounts in the Net Cost of

Services.
 Inserting a new line “Interest payable” after Net Cost of Services.

Unless otherwise stated in the notes to the group accounts, accounting policies of Group Entities are consistent
with those of the Council.

Usable Capital Receipts Reserve

The Usable Capital Receipts Account, shown in the balance sheet, represents income received or receivable from
the sale of land, buildings and other assets which has not been paid to the Housing receipts pool or used to finance
capital expenditure, repay debt or meet related selling costs. Interest earnings on usable capital receipts are
credited to the General Fund.

Value Added Tax

Value Added Tax (VAT) is included in income and expenditure accounts, whether of a capital or revenue nature,
only to the extent that is irrecoverable.

Work in Progress and Stocks

The work in progress shown in the balance sheet represents the cost price of works being undertaken by the
Council which will ultimately be charged to outside parties. The amount at which work-in-progress is included in the
balance sheet is cost less any foreseeable losses and, where relevant, payments received and receivable. Stocks
are included in the balance sheet at the total of the lower of cost and net realisable value of the separate items of
stock or of groups of similar items.

Works Costs Attributable to Lessees

As a result of advice from the Department of Environment issued in May 1995, on the operation of the ring-fenced
Housing Revenue Account in respect of properties sold on lease after 1 April 1990, no provision is made for future
works costs, either of a revenue or capital nature, attributable to lessees who have paid for indemnities, even
though no future charges can be raised on lessees under the indemnity terms. Such future costs will be financed
out of the Council’s resources, with revenue works costs being charged to the Housing Revenue Account and
capital works being met by either usable Capital Receipts, other balances or by borrowings.

Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme

The Waste and Emissions Trading Act 2003, places a duty on waste disposal authorities (WDA’s) in England and
Wales to reduce the amount of biodegradable municipal waste (BMW) disposed to landfill. It also provides the legal
framework for the Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme, which commenced operation on 1 April 2005 in England.
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STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Landfill Allowance Trading Scheme, like certain Emission Rights schemes, is a “cap and trade” scheme, which
allocates tradable landfill allowances to each WDA in England up to the amount of the WDA’s “cap”. Authorities
should adopt the accounting treatment in proposed UITF Abstract Emission Rights and In accordance with this
Abstract the Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme (LATS) gives rise to:

a) an asset for allowances held

b) LATS grant income, and

c) a liability for actual BMW landfill usage.

Allowances, whether allocated by the Department for the Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (DEFRA) or
purchased from another WDA, are recognised as assets and classified as current assets, and are measured initially
at their fair value.

Landfill allowances are issued free by DEFRA. The fair value of the allowances issued to WDA’s is a government
grant. Accordingly, the grant is initially recognised as deferred income in the balance sheet and subsequently
recognised as income on a systematic basis over the compliance year for which the allowances were allocated.

As landfill is used, a liability is recognised for actual BMW landfill usage. This liability is a provision and is
discharged by using allowances to meet the liability, paying a cash penalty to DEFRA or a combination of both. The
liability is measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to meet the obligation at the balance sheet
date. This will normally be the present market price at the balance sheet date of the number of allowances needed
to cover actual BMW landfill usage for the year. However, if, in a WDA’s best estimate, some or the entire
obligation will be met by paying the £150 per tonne cash penalty to DEFRA that part of its liability is measured at
the cost of the penalty rather than at the market price of the relevant number of allowances.

The value of landfill allowances after initial recognition is the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Local Area Agreements

A Local Area Agreement (LAA) is a three year agreement between the Government Office (GO) for the area and a
Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) representing the local authorities, other public, private, voluntary and community
interests for the area.

The LAA sets out the priorities for a local area in defined areas of activity and sets targets and the way success in
meeting those targets will be assessed. The upper tier local authority for the area must act as the Accountable
Body for the LAA. Westminster is the upper tier local authority for this area.

The Accountable Body receives all the pooled funding as LAA grant. The funding eventually agreed as pooled is
enshrined in a Grant Determination. The Determination is made to the Accountable Body, which is responsible for
the financial management of the LAA and for ensuring that robust performance management arrangements are in
place. An Accountable Body is responsible for ensuring that it has appropriate mechanisms in place to distribute
and account for funding passed to other partners.

LAA Grant channelled through an authority as Accountable Body is recognised as income only where the authority
in practice controls the award of grant. Where the Accountable Body does in practice control the award of grant, all
LAA grant receivable and payable is recognised as income and expenditure.

As Accountable Body, the authority undertakes to repay the GO any amounts of grant that has been misspent. If
such amounts are not recoverable from the ultimate recipient, the authority can find itself required to fund the
repayment from its own resources. Where a formal requirement to repay a known amount exists, a creditor is
recognised. Where it is probable but not certain that a repayment will be required, or if the amount of the repayment
is not known with certainty, provision is made. Where repayment may need to be made but it is not probable, a
contingent liability should be disclosed. Where it is virtually certain that the Accountable Body will be able to recover
some or all of any monies it is required to repay, it recognises a debtor for the recovery. Where recovery is
probable, a contingent asset is disclosed.

LAA Grant transactions recognised in revenue are apportioned between the services that are funded by the Grant.
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INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

Expenditure on Services 2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 2005/06
            Gross               Net               Net

Note Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure
Continuing Services £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Central Services 46,952 -35,850 11,102 9,053
Court Services 733 -538 195 186
Cultural, Planning and Environmental 123,822 -34,417 89,405 83,864
Education 163,066 -143,854 19,212 107,954
Highways, Roads and Transport 71,879 -21,604 50,275 25,591
Housing Services 277,493 -289,653 -12,160 -6,872
Social Services 145,130 -37,996 107,134 100,333
Costs of General Fund services 829,075 -563,912 265,163 320,109
Corporate and Democratic Core 8,095 -2 8,093 7,683
Non-distributed costs 24 3,455  - 3,455 3,586
Total-General Fund 840,625 -563,914 276,711 331,378
Street Parking  (see page 71) 40,922 -74,207 -33,285 -25,453
Costs of all Continuing Services 881,547 -638,121 243,426 305,925

Exceptional items: 1     
Release of provision for Mental Health Income -500 -2,055
Receipt from BCCI liquidator  - -241
Write back of NNDR Council Tax credit balances -3,123 -20,799
Release of Highways Deposits, etc.  - -1,188
Schools deficits 1,089 2,250
London Bombings July 2005 - expenditure 7 5,250
London Bombings July 2005 - reimbursement under s.31 LGA 2003 -7 -5,250

Sub-total: Net cost of services 240,892 283,892

Profit on disposal of fixed assets -732 -4,899
Levies 2,501 2,632
Interest payable 14,276 13,622
Private Finance Initiative Special Grant 2(i) -410 -410
Payment to Housing Pooled Capital Receipts 4,520 6,191
Interest and investment income  -19,671 -16,004
Interest cost (Pensions) 36,436 34,978
Expected return on Pensions assets -35,002 -30,931
Sub-total: Net operating expenditure  242,810 289,071

Transfer to/from (-) Collection Fund -242 -213
Demands on Collection Fund -46,663 -44,721
Revenue Support Grant -25,912 -163,560
Revenue Support Grant - Amending Report Formule 146  -
Local Authority Business Growth Incentive Scheme Grant -12,213 -3,805
Distribution of London Residuary Body surpluses -22 -33
Distribution from non-domestic rate pool 23 -134,235 -73,985

-219,141 -286,317

Surplus (-)/Deficit for the year 23,669 2,754

The Income and Expenditure Account brings together the income and expenditure relating to all the City Council's functions, including the
General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and Parking Places Reserve Account. The Pension Fund is excluded. The service analysis below is
as required under the Best Value Accounting Code of Practice and does not reflect the Council's Cabinet Member responsibilities. The
2005/06 comparison figures have been restated in respect of the removal of the cost of capital charges and the crediting back to services of
the amounts released from the Government Grants Deferred Account. 
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RESTATEMENT OF 2005/06 ACCOUNTS FOR CHANGES IN 2006  SORP

- Capital financing charges for the use of fixed assets are no longer made to service revenue accounts, support services and trading accounts

- Gains and losses on the disposal of fixed assets are recognised in the I&E Account.

( only figures that have changed are included in th e table):

Consolidated 
Revenue 

Account in 
2006/07 

Statement of 
Accounts

Removal 
of capital 
financing 

charges

Relocation of 
government 

grants 
deferred 

credits

Recognition 
of gains and 

losses on 
disposal of 

fixed assets

2005/06 
comparatives in 

Income and 
Expenditure 

Account
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Central Services 11,668 -2,438 -177  - 9,053
Court Services 204 -18  -  - 186
Cultural, Planning and Environmental 86,633 -2,769  -  - 83,864
Education 112,936 -4,436 -546  - 107,954
Highways, Roads and Transport 40,121 -9,472 -5,058  - 25,591
Housing Services 50,573 -45,594 -369  - 4,610
Social Services 100,958 -586 -39  - 100,333

Impact on Net Cost of Services 403,093 -65,313 -6,189  - 331,591

Gain on the disposal of fixed assets  -  -  - -4,899 -4,899

AMRA (Interest payable and similar charges in 2006/07)  - 65,313 6,189  - 71,502

Impact on Net Operating Expenditure 403,093  -  - -4,899 398,194

In the 2006/07 Statement of Accounts, the Council has adopted three significant new accounting policies that impact on the comparative figures
for 2005/06 in the Income and Expenditure Account:

- Credits for government grants deferred are now posted to service revenue acounts, support services and trading accounts, rather than 
credited as a corporate income item

These changes have had the following impact on the comparative figures for 2005/06 compared with those published in the 2005/06 Statement
of Accounts.
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Analysis of Continuing Services 
2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 2005/06

Gross Net               Net

Note Expenditure Income Expenditure Expenditure

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Central Services 
      Local Tax Collection 17,482 -14,628 2,854 4,278
      Registration of Electors 986 -19 967 708
      Emergency Planning 573  - 573 353
      Grants to Voluntary and Arts Organisations 2,832  - 2,832 2,876
      Customer Service Initiative/One Stop Services 19,045 -12,920 6,125 4,749
      Property Holding Account 7 1,993 -3,904 -1,911 -793
      Leadership Centre for Local Government 6(iv) 3,656 -3,656  -  -
      Other Services 385 -723 -338 -3,118

46,952 -35,850 11,102 9,053
Court Services 
      Coroner's Service 733 -538 195 186

733 -538 195 186
Cultural, Planning and Environmental
      Libraries, Arts and Archives 12,046 -1,100 10,946 10,532
      Westminster Sports 2,235 -1,168 1,067 971
      Community Safety 7,384 -1,833 5,551 4,863
      Leisure Centres and Outdoor Sports 2(iv) 2,536 -1,513 1,023 887
      Development Control and Planning Policy 16,046 -6,767 9,279 9,655
      Building Control 8 2,747 -2,822 -75 -99
      Licensing Services 10,589 -4,791 5,798 4,473
      Parks and Open Spaces 4,439 -582 3,857 2,570
      Street Trees 754 -26 728 803
      Refuse and Street Cleansing 41,929 -7,600 34,329 33,433
      Waste Transfer, Transport and Disposal 2(iii) 8,844 -5,278 3,566 3,120
      Public Conveniences 2,912 -54 2,858 2,651
      Cemeteries and Mortuary 1,418 -381 1,037 1,013
      Environmental Initiatives 1,473 -116 1,357 869
      Trading Standards 1,459 -15 1,444 1,549
      Environmental Health Inspection 7,011 -371 6,640 6,574

123,822 -34,417 89,405 83,864
Education
      Early Childhood Services 11,803 -10,169 1,634 4,383
      Schools 117,225 -108,526 8,699 89,330
      Social Inclusion 15,871 -10,430 5,441 10,949
      Student and Pupil Support Service 476 -55 421 448
      Adult Education Service 10,143 -10,071 72 -2
      Youth Service 5,372 -2,733 2,639 2,593
      Community Partnerships 2,176 -1,870 306 253

163,066 -143,854 19,212 107,954
Highways, Roads and Transport 
      Off Street Parking 2(vi) 17,435 -18,955 -1,520 -7,260
      Concessionary Fares / Taxicard Scheme 7,455  - 7,455 5,837
      Highways, Traffic and Street Lighting 46,989 -2,649 44,340 27,014

71,879 -21,604 50,275 25,591
Housing Services
      Housing Revenue Account Services (HRA page 63-67) 55,983 -86,641 -30,658 -31,602
      Rent Allowances and Rent Rebates 136,365 -130,934 5,431 3,939
      Homelessness 58,156 -54,439 3,717 7,183
      Supporting People 17,289 -17,033 256 1,266
      Other Services 9,700 -606 9,094 12,342

277,493 -289,653 -12,160 -6,872
Social Services
      Older People 43,106 -11,638 31,468 31,236
      Physically Disabled 11,148 -1,447 9,701 7,947
      Learning Disabled 23,240 -7,405 15,835 14,675
      Mental Health Problems 17,742 -7,472 10,270 10,848
      Children and Families 37,351 -3,361 33,990 33,386
      AIDS/HIV Service 770 -601 169 203
      Adult Asylum Seekers 2,771 -1,785 986 -558
      Community Support and Drugs & Alcohol 2,725 -1,342 1,383 1,317
      Service Strategy and Review 570 -16 554 520
      Assessment & Care Management (Adults) 2,870  - 2,870 826
      Other Services 2,837 -2,929 -92 -67

145,130 -37,996 107,134 100,333

Costs of Services 829,075 -563,912 265,163 320,109
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Note 2006/07 2006/07 2005/06 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account
but required by statute to be excluded when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets 28 -52,668 -34,312

Government Grants Deferred amortisation matching depreciation
and impairments 5,593 6,189

Amounts treated as revenue expenditure in accordance with the
SORP but which are classified as capital expenditure by statute
(i.e. Deferred Charges) 33 -5,475 -9,847

Net gain or loss on sale of fixed assets 732 4,899

Amount by which pension costs calculated in accordance with the
SORP (i.e. in accordance with FRS 17) are different from the
contributions due under the pension scheme regulations

-22,284 -74,102 -21,049 -54,120

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure
Account but required to be included by statute when
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for
the year

Statutory provision for repayment of debt 22 350 257

Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance 1,654 5,208

Transfer from Usable Capital Receipts equal to the amount
payable into the Housing Capital Receipts Pool -4,520 -6,191

Employer's contributions payable to Defined Benefit Pension 
Funds 10,114 7,598 8,096 7,370

Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that are
required to be taken into account when determining the
Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year

Statutorily required transfer of the surplus or deficit for the year on
the Housing Revenue Account calculated in accordance with
statute to the HRA balance (page 64) 9,260 8,231

Any voluntary provision for repayment of debt  -  -

Net transfer to or from earmarked reserves (*) 26,073 35,333 17,810 26,041

Totals -31,171 -20,709

* Analysis of net transfer to or from earmarked reserves:
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Parking Places Reserve Account (page 71)  - -2,263

Revenue Reserves 21 9,055 6,953

LMS Reserves 50(vii) 2,973 157

Pensions Liability 2,810 1,560

Major Repairs Reserve (HRA Note 8 on page 66) 11,235 11,403

Total 26,073 17,810

The Income and Expenditure Account shows the Council's actual financial performance for the year, measured in terms of the resources
consumed and generated over the last twelve months. However, the authority is required to raise council tax on a different accounting
basis, the main differences being as follows:

- Capital investment is accounted for as it is financed, rather than when the fixed assets are consumed. Retirement benefits are charged 
as amounts become payable to pension funds and pensioners, rather than as future benefits are earned.

- The General Fund Balance shows whether the Council has over- or under-spent against the council tax that it raised for the year, taking 
into account the use of reserves built up in the past and contributions to reserves earmarked for future expenditure.  See also notes 16 & 
17 to the Core Financial Statements
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE GENERAL FUND BALANCE

2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Generally Schools
available ear-marked Total General Total General
balance balance Fund balance Fund balance

Surplus or deficit (-) for the year on the Income and Expenditure Account

-23,669  - -23,669 -2,754

Surplus/deficit (-) on earmarked balances for schools  - 2,973 2,973 157

Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory proper
practices to be debited or credited to the General Fund Balance for the year

31,171  - 31,171 20,709

Increase or decrease (-) in the General Fund Balance 7,502 2,973 10,475 18,112

General Fund Balance brought forward 59,362 1,285 60,647 42,535

General Fund Balance carried forward 66,864 4,258 71,122 60,647

This reconciliation statement summarises the differences between the outturn on the Income and Expenditure Account and the General Fund
Balance.

31



STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES 

2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000

Surplus or deficit (-) on the Income and Expenditure Account for the year -23,669 -2,754

Adjustments shown on Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance 31,171 20,709

Movement on General Fund Balance 7,502 17,955

Surplus or deficit (-) arising on revaluation of fixed assets 349,551 -153,653

Acturial gains and losses (-) on pension funds assets and liabilities -7,300 25,073

Any other gains and losses required to be included in the Statement (* see details below) -66,036 -78,075

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 283,717 -188,700

* Details of other gains and losses are as follows:
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Fixed Asset Restatement Account (excluding movement from revaluations shown above) -78,764 -123,901

Capital Financing Account 20,257 22,045

Usable Capital Receipts Reserve -13,692 23,608

Pensions Reserve (excluding movement from actuarial gains shown above) -11,060 -12,953

Housing Revenue Account Fund 9,260 8,194

Specific Reserves 8,160 4,928

Collection Fund Balance -197 4

Total -66,036 -78,075
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BALANCE SHEET

Note 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
Fixed Assets and Other Balances:          £'000          £'000
Fixed Assets 27-32

Intangible Assets 134  -
Tangible Fixed Assets
Operational assets  
  - Council dwellings 1,444,414 1,227,276
  - Other land and buildings 297,366 328,948
  - Vehicles, plant and equipment 35,581 28,746
  - Infrastructure assets 157,321 147,140
  - Community assets 9,021 8,211
 Non-operational assets
  - Investment Properties 64,327 56,693
  - Surplus Properties 147,217 21,897

2,155,381 1,818,911
Loans made for the purchase and improvement of property 457 634
Other long term debtors 35 3,524 629
Long-term investments 36 262,655 277,516
Total long term assets 2,422,017 2,097,690

Current Assets:
Deposits and other investments 36 109,300 62,800
Stock and work in progress 37 1,110 949
Landfill Allowances 38 31 708
Debtors - amounts due within one year 39 88,695 112,417
Payments in advance 409 819
Cash at Bank - Paddington Bridge LTVA Account 40 3,637 4,011
Petty cash holdings 41 503 537

203,685 182,241
Less Current Liabilities:
Short term loans outstanding 42 2,172 11,654
Bank overdraft 40 2,780 3,924
Creditors 44 113,818 104,375
Landfill Allowances - Liability to DEFRA 38 19 382
Deposits and receipts in advance 45 104,539 96,247
Other credit balances 46 96 62

223,424 216,644

Net Current Assets -19,739  -34,403

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,402,278  2,063,287

Long-term borrowing 42 229,915 210,764
Government grants-deferred account 47 156,830 134,694
Deferred capital income - sale of council dwellings 48 411 569
Provisions 43 17,463 21,678

404,619 367,705
Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension schemes -259,910 -241,550
Total Assets less Liabilities 1,737,749  1,454,032

Reserves
Fixed Asset Restatement Account 50(i) 1,182,450 911,663
Capital Financing Account 50(ii) 558,016 537,759
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 50(iii) 2,057 15,749
Pensions Reserve 50(iv) -259,910 -241,550
Housing - Major Repairs Reserve 3,662 34,457
Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied 50(vi) 98,749 64,681
Fund balances and reserves
   General Fund - balance 50(v) 66,864 59,362
   General Fund LMS - earmarked balances for schools 50(vii) 4,258 1,285
   Housing Revenue Account Fund 57,399 48,139
   Direct Service Organisations Surpluses Account 3 173 168
   Housing Investment Reserve 50(viii)  - 7,146
   Other reserves (excluding trust funds) 50(ix) 23,962 14,907
   Collection Fund balance - Westminster City Council  69 266
Total Funds and Balances 55 1,737,749 1,454,032  
N. Bell, Director of Finance
September 2007

This is a summary of the City Council's financial position and brings together all the balances on the accounts at 31 March 2007, excluding
those relating to the Pension Fund (Note 25) and Trust Funds.
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

 
Note

£'000         £'000 £'000         £'000
Revenue Activities
Cash Outflows
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 186,452 188,644
Other operating cash payments 522,217 452,190
Precepts & Levies 39,024 34,129
Payment to NNDR pool 981,637 929,886
Payments to Capital Receipts pool 5,217 6,934
Housing Benefits 97,312 96,011

1,831,859 1,707,794
Cash Inflows
Rents (HRA)- after rebates 19,503 19,307
Council Tax income 73,353 68,121
National non-domestic rate income 1,003,502 944,134
Non-domestic rate income from Pool 134,235 73,986
Revenue Support Grant 25,767 163,560
DSS grants for benefits 97,754 104,934
Dedicated Schools Grant 86,014  -
Other government grants 62 150,187 156,633
Fees, charges and other operating receipts 303,146 206,814

1,893,461 1,737,489
Revenue Activities Net Cash Inflow(-)/Outflow 57 -61,602 -29,695

Servicing of Finance and Returns on Investments
Cash Outflows
 Interest Paid 15,937   16,015   

Cash Inflows
 Interest received 19,873 17,418

Net Cash Inflow from Servicing of Finance -3,936  -1,403

Capital Activities
Cash Outflows
 Purchase of fixed assets 131,482 119,407
 Deferred Charges 5,475 9,883
 Long-term Loans 3,000  -
 Purchase of Long-term investments 62,900 19,000

202,857 148,290
Cash Inflows  
 Sale of fixed assets 28,494 57,763
 Capital grants received 11,803 14,447
 Other capital cash receipts 56,829 35,765

97,126 107,975
105,731 40,315

Net cash inflow(-)/ outflow before financing 40,193 9,217

Management of Liquid Resources 59
 Net increase /decrease (-) in short term deposits 46,500 34,565
 Net increase /decrease (-) in other liquid resources -77,761 -31,261 -732 33,833

Financing
Cash Outflows
 Repayments of amounts borrowed 28,582 30,109

Cash Inflows
 New loans raised 20,000 40,000
 New short term loans 18,250 21,750

38,250 61,750
-9,668 -31,641

Increase(-)/Decrease in cash and cash equivalents 58 -736 11,409

This consolidated statement (excluding the Pension Fund) summarises the inflows and outflows of cash arising from transactions with third
parties for revenue and capital purposes.

2006/07 2005/06
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Income and Expenditure Account

1 Exceptional Items
1(i)

1(ii)
1(iii)

1(iv)
1(v)

1(vi)

2 Long Term Contracts
2(i)

2(ii)

2(iii)

On 15 July 2002, the Council awarded a major contract for the provision of the Customer Service Initiative (CSi). The contract commenced
in November 2002 and services are being transferred into the CSi in a number of phases over the contract period. The gross contract cost
was £30.3 million in 2006/07 (£31.4 million in 2005/06). Of the £30.3 million cost in 2006/07, £27.5 million was charged to other services and
accounts (£27.0 million in 2005/06).

- the annual cost of the waste transfer contract is £0.6 million and it is due to terminate in 2016.

Transfer, Transport & Disposal of Waste

- the transport and disposal contract with Veolia Environmental Services ( formerly known as Onyx Plc) is scheduled to end in 2016 and cost 
£6.5 million in 2006/07.

Prior to 31 March 2006, a variation to the contract was agreed whereby the Council agreed to pay £3.8 million prior to 31 March 2007 to fund
Vertex's transition and mobilisation of service costs. In return, the contract cost will be reduced by £0.9 million p.a. for five years from the
payment date.

- the transport and disposal contract with Cory Environmental Waste Management Ltd cost £1.1 million in 2006/07. This contract is due to
expire in 2016, although there is an option for the Council to withdraw from the contract after 2008 in the event of the company no being able
to provide waste incineration capacity.

Changes in waste tonnage volumes, disposal routes and the success of recycling initiatives will impact on the annual cost of the transport
and disposal contracts.

The Council has entered into a contract under the Private Finance Initiative for 35 years from August 1999 with the operator of the Forrester
Court residential/nursing home, under which it will incur an annual cost for purchase of services of approximately £2.0 million per annum
(before any contributions from residents). The Council is receiving Private Finance Initiative Special Grant of £0.4 million in respect of this
scheme.

In 2006/07 no repayments were made against the provision for Mental Health income repayments. (For more details see note 43(ii))
However, the level of provision was reviewed and reduced by £0.5 million (£2.1 million in 2005/06).

NNDR/Council Tax Credit Balances - following receipt of Counsel's advice, a provision of £30.5 million was set up in the 2004/05 Accounts
for Council Tax and NNDR credit balances over 6 years old. These credit balances have been reviewed in line with the agreed protocol for
tracing and contacting relevant taxpayers. £3.1 million of these credit balances have been written back to the General Fund in 2006/07
(£20.8 million in 2005/06). At the year end, new credit balances now over 6 years old have again been reviewed and a net £0.7 million has
been transferred to the provision, which now totals £9.0 million as at 31 March 2007.

In respect of unclaimed Highways deposits, £Nil was released to the General Fund in 2006/07 (£1.2 million in 2005/06).
Provision of £2.3 million was made in 2005/06 for the deficit at North Westminster Community School. When the school closed in 2006/07
and the outstanding liabilities were processed, the final deficit amounted to £2.5 million plus £0.8 million redundancy costs. As a result the
net amount charged to the General Fund in 2006/07 was £1.1 million.    

No further sums were received from the BCCI liquidator in 2006/07 (£0.2 million in 2005/06).

In the wake of the London Transport bombings in July 2005, the City Council, in conjunction with Emergency Services Response Groups
and the Metropolitan Police, took the lead in establishing the post event operation facilities. The ODPM, under the grant provisions of Section
31 Local Government Act 2003, undertook to fully reimburse the City Council for all expenditure directly relating to the establishment and
management of the facilities. The total cost to the City Council amounted to £5.2 million. Allowable claims from London Boroughs and the
Red Cross totalled £42,000, bringing the total reimbursable costs to £5.3 million. The ODPM reimbursed £5.0 million in 2005/06 and the
balance of £0.3 million was reimbursed in 2006/07. All subsequent claims totalling £7,540 from London Authorities to the City Council, who
acted as an auditing and claims intermediary to the DCLG have been concluded within 2006/07.

The Council has three separate contracts for the transfer, transport and disposal of waste:
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2(iv) Leisure Centres

2(v) CityWest Homes Ltd.

2(vi) Parking Services

2(vii)

3 Trading Operations

Direct Service Organisations (DSO)

Turnover Surplus/ Turnover Surplus/
Deficit (-) Deficit (-)

2006/07 2006/07 2005/06 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

General Fund

Schools
- School Based Play (1) 1,286 18 1,428 20
Total Schools 1,286 18 1,428 20

Children & Community Services
- Elderly Services 29,002 3 2,719 58
- Learning Disabilities Services 2,125 2 2,084 5
Total Children & Community Services 31,127 5 4,803 63

Total -General Fund 32,413 23 6,231 83

Note:
(1) The 2006/07 figures include 3 play sites that were formerly part of an external contract now transferred to the DSO.

From 13th March 2006 the Council entered in to a 5 year contract with Central Parking Services for the management of its off street car park 
portfolio. The value of the contract is dependent on the level of service demand and in 2006/07 the management charges totalled £4.1 
million

As disclosed elsewhere, the Council has set up CityWest Homes Ltd. to provide landlord services to the Council’s HRA tenants and lessees,
for a period of 10 years commencing 1 April 2002.

The contract for grounds maintenance systems and patrolling to the Council's parks and open spaces and the management and 
maintenance of cemeteries was awarded to Continental Landscapes Ltd from 1st April 2007. The contract runs for 8 years with an annual 
cost to the Council of £2.3 million.

Following the introduction of the Local Government (Best Value and Capping) Act in July 1999, on 2 January 2000 the provisions within the
Local Government Acts relating to Compulsory Competitive Tendering and associated requirements were abolished. Although DSO
accounts are no longer required by statute, the Council has continued to maintain DSO accounts where organisations within the Council
have won contracts as a result of tendering. This applies to both former statutory and voluntary DSOs. Details of the turnover and surplus or
deficit of each DSO, is shown below.

The Council has entered into a long term partnership management contract (until 2014) for the operation of its four main leisure centre sites.
In return for significant joint capital investment in the leisure centre buildings by the Council and the contractor, the contractor has committed
to pay the Council an annual management fee, which from 2006/07 will be over £1.0 million. Westminster residents making use of the
facilities enjoy major discounts on activity charges, if in possession of a ResCard. Other discounts for the disabled, senior citizens and youth
passport holders are made, including free swimming at appropriate times.

Parks, Open Spaces and Cemeteries

In July 2004, the Council entered into a 10 year contract with Vertex for the transformation of its Parking Services. The value of the contract
is some £39.0 million depending on the level of service demand. In 2006/07 the Council paid £3.5 million. The contract included an
investment of some £8.0 million in a new computer system which is at the heart of the transformation project. The new system has created
the base from which the Council aims to increase its parking revenues by some £13.0 million, over the ten year period, through
improvements to the debt recovery rate of unpaid Penalty Charge Notices.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Business Unit Turnover Surplus/ Turnover Surplus/
Deficit (-) Deficit (-)

2006/07 2006/07 2005/06 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Revenue Accounts 

General Fund

Finance & Support Services
Legal Services  -  - 3,024 195
Total Finance & Support Services  -  - 3,024 195

Children & Community Services
Warden Service 1,106 -77 1,100  -
Total Social & Community Services 1,106 -77 1,100  -

Total General Fund 1,106 -77 4,124 195

The following statement shows the movements on the Direct Service Organisations Surpluses Accounts during 2006/07.     

Balance at 1 
April 2006

 Deficit (-) 
/Surplus for 

year

Application of 
Surplus

Transfer to (-) / 
from HRA / 

General Fund / 
PPRA

Balance at 31 
March 2007

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Direct Service Organisations -
Surpluses Accounts

General Fund

Schools
- School Based Play  - 18  - 18  -
Total Schools  - 18  - 18  -

Social & Community  Services
-  Elderly Services  70 3  -  - 73
-  Learning Disabilities Services 98 2  -  - 100
Total Social & Community Services 168 5  -  - 173

Total - General Fund 168 23  - 18 173

4 Section 137 Expenditure

In addition to Direct Service Organisations, the Council has established a number of Business Units within departments. Business Units
agree to provide services under a Service Specification, developed by the client similar to external contracts. Income may be generated from
within the Council and from users of the Services. Business Units within the Council have no automatic retention of surpluses but may
request carry forward of surpluses into the following year. 

The legal services business unit is no longer operating as a business unit with effect from April 2006 and has been amalgamated with the
client unit.

Trading Accounts - Business Units 

Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972 enabled a local authority to spend up to £3.55 per head of registered population for the
benefit of people in their area on activities or projects not specifically authorised by other powers. However, since August 2000, principal
authorities have been granted new powers to promote well-being in their area and for London Boroughs, Section 137 now covers mainly
donations to United Kingdom-wide charities. No such payments were made in 2006/07 (2005/06 £NIL).
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 Publicity Account

2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000

Recruitment advertising 650 567
Other advertising 288 338
Other publicity 2,339 2,089
Total publicity expenditure 3,277 2,994

6 Agency Services
6(i)

6(ii)

6(iii)

6(iv)

7 Property Holding Account

8 Building Control

2006/07 2006/07 2006/07
Non- 

Chargeable
Chargeable Total Building 

Control
£'000 £'000 £'000

Expenditure
Employee expenses 425 1,509 1,934
Transport 5 19 24
Supplies and services 50 151 201
Central and support service charges -98 545 447
Total Expenditure 382 2,224 2,606

Income
Building regulation charges  - -2,486 -2,486
Miscellaneous income -195  - -195
Total Income -195 -2,486 -2,681

Surplus(-)/Deficit for Year 187 -262 -75

Comparatives for 2005/06
Expenditure 617 2,055 2,672
Income -549 -2,222 -2,771
Surplus(-)/Deficit for Year 68 -167 -99

The Leadership Centre for Local Government was established to deliver improvement in local government leadership and to manage the
associated market for the delivery of professional services and consultancy to local authorities. The hosting of the Leadership Centre was
taken on by Westminster in April 2005, as the City Council was keen to support this developing organisation. Westminster will host the
Centre for a period of three years. Costs of the Centre are funded by the Government. In 2006/07, the total cost incurred by the Centre was
£3.7 million (2005/06 - £2.5 million).

This account, included within Central Services, includes the Council’s operational buildings (excluding Housing dwellings), commercial
property and surplus properties. Service charges are made to revenue accounts reflecting landlord costs of repairs and insurance.
Commercial rent income is credited to this account. 

This includes the Building Control Regulation Account. Charges are made to applicants who apply for approval of proposed building works
under Building Regulations. The table below shows that the Building Control Regulation Account had turnover of £2.5 million in 2006/07
(£2.2 million in 2005/06) and produced a surplus of £0.3 million (surplus of £0.2 million in 2005/06).  

In 2006/07 a number of capital schemes, totalling £5.1 million, were carried out as agent for Transport for London (£4.4 million in 2005/06).

Westminster is lead borough for the steering group of the London Asylum Seekers Consortium (LASC). Costs of £0.6 million (2005/06 - £0.7
million) were recovered by contributions from boroughs and Home Office grant. 

Westminster administers the Inner West London Coroner’s District which comprises the boroughs of Westminster, Kensington & Chelsea,
Merton and Wandsworth. The gross cost of the service in 2006/07 was £0.7 million (2005/06 - £0.8 million) and contributions from the other
boroughs were £0.5 million (2005/06 - £0.6 million).

All Local Authorities are required to keep separate accounts of their publicity expenditure under Section 5 of the Local Government Act 1986.
This expenditure includes costs of press and public relations staff, printing, stationery, distribution, advertising for staff and consultants and
public meetings. Total expenditure in 2006/07 was £3.3 million (2005/06 £3.0 million).
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9

Heart of 
London

New West End 
Company Paddington Total 2006/07 Total 2005/06

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Balance b/f -35 -162 -17 -214 32
Levy for 2006/07 568 2,211 376 3,155 3,104
Less: Allowances and write offs -48 -65 -20 -133 -91
Amounts Receivable 485 1,984 339 2,808 3,045
Cash Received (net of refunds) -553 -2,299 -390 -3,242 -3,259
Net Amounts Outstanding / Received 
in Advance (-)

-68 -315 -51 -434 -214

BID Revenue Accounts were as follows:

Balance b/f - amounts owing to BID -29 -161 -2 -192 33
BID revenues from levy 520 2,146 356 3,022 3,013

491 1,985 354 2,830 3,046
less
BID cost of collection -13 -18 -19 -50 -50
Net payments to BID -459 -1,938 -328 -2,725 -3,147
Provision for Irrecoverable Debts 1 6 -1 6 -41

-471 -1,950 -348 -2,769 -3,238

Balance c/f - amounts owing to/from (-) BID 20 35 6 61 -192

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

10 Local Authorities (Goods & Services) Act 
This Act authorises local authorities to supply goods and services to other public bodies. Services provided were:

2006/07 2006/07
Income Expenditure

£'000 £'000
Communications service: London Borough of Richmond 585 575
Communications service: London Borough of Slough 96 40
Communications service: Isle of Wight Council 122 24
Communications service: London Borough of Merton 32  -
Communications service: London Borough of Ealing 10  -
Communications service: LEDNET c/o London Borough of Hounslow 11 4
Communications service: LGC Communications c/o Dudley Metropolitan Borough Council 2 1
Cycle Training course for the Royal Borough of Kensington & Chelsea 9  -
Bridge Inspection for the Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames 47  -

914 644

Business Improvement Districts (BIDs)

Paddington . The BID became operational on 1 April 2005, and covers the Paddington area of the City. The BID levy is used to market and
promote Paddington, make Paddington safer through a Community Safety team and CCTV and make Paddington more attractive.

New West End Company . The BID became operational from 4 April 2005 and covers the Bond Street, Oxford Street and Regent Street
areas. The BID's aims are to enhance the area's commercial potential and achieve a safer, cleaner, friendlier and more accessible
environment with a reduced level of retail crime. All the projects are additional to those provided by existing public services. 

Three Business Improvement Districts (i.e. the Heart of London Business Alliance, the New West End Company and the Paddington BID),
have been set up in Westminster for the purpose of providing additional services or improvements to a specified area. These are funded in
whole or in part by a levy additional to the non-domestic rates on such ratepayers. Westminster City Council acts as agent for the three BID
companies, and bills, collects and pays over the BID levy. No services are commissioned by the BID companies from the Council.

Heart Of London . This BID became operational on 14 February 2005 and is a scheme to enhance the area surrounding Piccadilly Circus
and Leicester Square by operating services to help keep the area clean, safe and welcoming. Services include additional street cleansing
services and street safety services. The BID finished its first term on 31 March 2006 but had a successful ballot to continue into a second
term to March 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11

2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 2005/06
WCC WPCT Total Total

Funding Funding Funding Funding
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Services Provided
Residential support and care 7,587 3,930 11,517 10,922
Nursing support and care 219 - 219 260
Day services 4,386 311 4,697 4,210
Home care 665 - 665 591
Community support 1,758  - 1,758 1,701
Care management, assessment and monitoring 1,220 409 1,629 1,298
NHS facilities  - 922 922 925
Assessment and treatment  - 243 243 347
Short breaks, crisis and emergency services - 1,234 1,234 1,225
Community teams - 1,065 1,065 1,237
Support for advocacy - 84 84 67
Training - 24 24 23
Other - 121 121 103
Reserves - 240 240 195

15,835 8,583 24,418 23,104

2006/07 2006/07 2006/07
WCC WPCT Total

Funding Funding Funding
£’000 £’000 £’000

Equipment Provided
Equipment Funding per s.31 600 373 973

2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 2006/07

WCC WPCT Total
Funding Funding Funding Funding

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Services Provided
Residential Placements 377 2,763 1,330 4,470
Day Programmes 190  - 641 831
Homelessness Services 52  - 272 324
Case Management Assessment & Monitoring 696 374 2,950 4,020
Needle Exchange  - 48 143 191
Advice & Information 67  - 213 280
Structured Treatment  - 255 803 1,058
Training 1 25 45 71
Other  -  - 21 21

1,383 3,465 6,418 11,266
* Home Office Drug Intervention Programme (DIP)

An agreement has been reached to refund Westminster PCT for the underspend on their contribution to the Pooled Budget. As receipts to
Westminster were £0.4 million compared with an actual spend of £0.4 million, £22,000 has been included in the Balance Sheet as a creditor,
and Westminster PCT have included this sum as a debtor.

(ii) The Council entered into a Partnership Agreement under section 31 of the Health Act 1999 with Westminster Primary Care Trust (WPCT)
on 1st April 2004 in respect of the commissioning of equipment. Westminster City Council acts as the host authority.

(i) The Council entered into a Partnership Agreement under section 31 of the Health Act 1999 with Westminster Primary Care Trust 
(WPCT), on 1st April 2003 in respect of the commissioning of services for people with learning difficulties. Westminster City Council acts as 
the host authority. 

Section 31 Health Act 1999 – Partnership Arrangemen ts

The following is a statement of funding and expenditure of the Learning Disabilities Partnership  for the financial year to 31 March 2007:

The following is a statement of funding and expenditure of the Equipment Partnership  for the financial year to 31 March 2007:

PTB/DIP/ 
Other*

(iii) The following is a statement of funding and expenditure of the Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT) Partnership  for the financial 
year to 31 March 2007:

   Pooled Treatment Budget (PTB) - WCC and WPCT
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 Members’ Allowances

13 Remuneration of Senior Staff

Band 2006/07 2005/06
£50,000   - £59,999 165 166
£60,000   - £69,999 79 66
£70,000   - £79,999 24 22
£80,000   - £89,999 9 8
£90,000   - £99,999 7 13
£100,000 - £109,999 5 7
£110,000 - £119,999 8 2
£120,000 - £129,999 2 1
£130,000 - £139,999  - -
£140,000 - £149,999  - 1
£150,000 - £159,999 3 3
£180,000 - £189,999  - -
£190,000 - £199,999  - 1
£200,000 - £209,999 1  -

14 Related Party Transactions 

2006/07 2005/06
Payments/ 

Receipts (-)
Payments/ 

Receipts (-)
£’000 £’000

Central Government
  - Revenue Grants -372,759 -386,559
  - Contribution to NNDR Pool 989,385 935,748

  - Capital Grants & Contributions -16,949 -14,447
  - Levy by the Environment Agency 146 228

  - Greater London Authority precept 36,334 31,477
Levying Bodies – Levies paid:
  - London Pensions Fund Authority 1,981 2,046
  - Lee Valley Authority 374 358

6,276 5,866
London Boroughs’ Grant Scheme – contribution 821 796

4,927 4,945
- 14 Council Members are executive members or trustees of 14 organisations. 
- The Council also has 10 members as observers at 9 organisations. 

Schools in Westminster – delegated budgets 74,806 74,594
- 12 Members of the Council are school governors.

City of Westminster Pension Fund
- Employer’s contributions in respect of employees 9,929 7,910

The total of Members’ allowances paid in the year was £0.7 million (£0.6 million in 2005/06). As required by Regulations, the Council
adopted a Members Allowances Scheme for 2006/07. For the first time this scheme provided for the payment of a one off payment of £1,000
to each Member to purchase ICT equipment as well as an increase in Basic Allowance to pay for ICT running costs on the basis that these
will no longer be provided by the City Council.

From April 2007 the Council has adopted levels of allowances which more closely reflect those recommended by the Independent
Remuneration Panel.

Six members of the Council (Councillors Brahams, Harvey, Havery, Malthouse, Rahuja and McKie) are Directors of CityWest Homes Ltd
(see below), on the Main Board. 4 Councillors and 1 officer are members of the South Board of CityWest Homes and 4 Councillors and 2
officers are members of the North Board. 

Voluntary and Arts Organisations – grants

The Council has representatives on the various boards or liaison committees of the 
above organisations.

Further information on Members' Allowances may be found on application to the Cabinet and Committee Secretariat, 17th Floor, City Hall
(Attention of Mr. M. Steward).

Number of staff

This disclosure note has been prepared using the Council’s Register of Members’ Declarations of Interest in addition to a specific declaration
obtained in respect of related party transactions from Members and Chief Officers. The disclosure is based on the understood applicability of
FRS 8 to local authorities, including utilising advice from CIPFA as to the identity and materiality of related parties to a local authority.

The table below details the number of employees whose remuneration fell in each band of £10,000, starting at £50,000. Remuneration
includes all amounts paid or receivable including expenses, insofar as they are chargeable to UK income tax.   

Transport Committee for London – payments

Precepting Authorities and Other Bodies
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2006/07 2005/06
15 External Audit Fees £’000 £’000

Code of Practice audit 414 375
Grant claims audit 119 125
Objections to the accounts 121 77

654 577

16

No costs were charged by Westminster City Council to CityWest Homes Ltd for the provision of support services (£nil in 2005/06).

CityWest Homes Ltd has agreed, at its discretion, to invest any surplus funds with Westminster City Council by way of short-term loan with
interest payable by the Council at the going market rate. As at 31 March 2007, the company had loaned the Council £1.3 million (2006 -
£2.1million). 

Council-owned company - CityWest Homes Ltd

CityWest Homes Ltd has had responsibility for the day-to-day management and operation of the Lillington & Longmoore estate since July
2002. In 2006/07 the company established a business unit called CityWest Direct to undertake the day-to-day management and operation
of the Pimlico, and Soho & Covent Garden estates and Pimlico street properties together with the Lillington & Longmore Estate. In 2006/07
Council paid CityWest Homes Ltd a management fee of £2.1million to cover the cost of CityWest Direct's activities. In 2005/06 the net cost
of running the Lillington & Longmore Estate was £0.6 million.

However, the items of "income" and "expenditure" that are required to be credited or charged to the General Fund and which therefore must
be taken into account in determining a local authority's budget requirement and in turn its Council Tax demand is determined by statute and
non-statutory proper practices rather than being in accordance with UK GAAP. While the amounts that the SORP requires to be included in
the Income and Expenditure Account, and statute and non-statutory proper practices require to be included in the General Fund, are largely
the same there are a number of differences. For example, in some circumstances capital expenditure can be charged to the General Fund
but all capital expenditure is excluded from the Income and Expenditure Account; and depreciation of fixed assets is charged to the Income
and Expenditure Account but cannot be charged to the General Fund.

Costs incurred in 2002-3 in respect of the core fit-out of the company’s offices at 21 Grosvenor Place were financed by way of an interest-
free loan from Westminster City Council. The loan is repayable in equal instalments over a term of ten years, with the first repayment being
made in March 2004. As at 31 March 2007 the amount owed by CityWest Homes Ltd to the Council in respect of the loan was £0.6 million
(2006 - £0.7 million).

External Audit fees incurred were as follows:

In addition, CityWest Homes Ltd owed Westminster City Council £0.2 million as at 31 March 2007 (2006 - £1.0 million), in respect of
expenses met by the Council that are to be reimbursed by the company and the refund of surplus management fee back to the Housing
Revenue Account. 

Offsetting the inter-company debtor, Westminster City Council owed CityWest Homes Ltd £0.7 million as at 31 March 2007 (2006 - £0.3
million), in respect of reimbursement of costs incurred managing HRA major works projects, and salary costs reimbursable by the Council.

Whilst the surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account is the best measure of the Council's financial result for the year in
accordance with the movement on the General Fund Balance is also an important aspect of the Council's stewardship. 

Significance of the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year for local taxation and the resources available
to fund the authority's services

The Income and Expenditure Account discloses the income receivable and expenditure incurred in operating the Council for the year.

The surplus or deficit achieved on the Income and Expenditure Account represents the amount by which income is greater than or less than
expenditure. Both income and expenditure are measured using essentially the same accounting conventions (I.e. UK GAAP) that a large
(but unlisted) company would use in preparing its audited financial statements.

The amounts in addition to the Income and Expenditure Account surplus or deficit for the year that are required by statute and non-statutory
proper practices to be credited or charged to the General Fund Balance for the year are set out in the note below.

CityWest Homes has also incurred expenditure on behalf of Westminster City Council whilst acting in a project management capacity for
Housing Revenue Account major works schemes. Costs relating directly to this project amounted to £2.6 million in 2006/07 (2005/06 - £1.5
million) and have been fully recharged to the Council.

Two members of the council (Councillors C Longworth and S Richardson) are non executive directors of the Westminster Primary Care 
Trust (WPCT). The Director of Social and Community Services (J. Jones) was a board member of the WPCT and the Head of Care 
Management Services (M Harrington) served on the Professional Executive Committee of the trust. Payments to the trust totalled £2.8 
million and income through the trust £13.4 million in 2006/07.

CityWest Homes Ltd is a local authority controlled company of the City of Westminster established with no share capital and limited by
guarantee. The Council has delegated responsibility for overseeing the management and maintenance of its residential stock to CityWest
Homes Ltd in accordance with the ten-year management agreement effective from 1 April 2002. The Council pays the company a monthly
management fee in accordance with that management agreement and any variations subsequently approved. In 2006/07, the management
fee amounted to £10.2 million (2005/06 - £10.6 million).  
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17

-

-

-

-

-

-

- Transfer from Usable Capital Receipts equal to the amount payable into the Housing Capital Receipts Pool.

-

-

-

The amounts of the items set out above is included in the Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance - see page 31.

18

19 Levies
2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000

 London Pensions Fund Authority 1,981 2,046
 Environment Agency 146 228
 Lee Valley Regional Park Authority 374 358

2,501 2,632

20 Leases

Net gain or loss on sale of fixed assets.

Transfers to or from the General Fund Balance that are required to be taken into account when determining the Movement on the General 
Fund Balance for the year

Any voluntary provision for repayment of debt.

Statutory provision for repayment of debt.

Amounts additional to the surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure Account that are required by statute and non-
statutory proper practices to be debited or credite d to the General Fund for the year

The Council has acquired equipment through operating lease arrangements which are not therefore included within the Balance Sheet. The
Council has an operating lease with Cityspace Limited who provide "iPlus" touch-screens kiosks which are installed in various outdoor
locations across Westminster. The lease payments in 2006/07 are £18,000 (2005/06 - £30,000)and the contract may be terminated at the
Council's option.

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets (excluding depreciation charged to HRA services). The excess of depreciation charged to HRA
services over the Major Repairs Allowance element of Housing Subsidy Government Grants Deferred amortisation matching depreciation
and impairments. Amounts treated as revenue expenditure in accordance with the SORP but which are classified as capital expenditure by
statute (i.e. Deferred Charges).

Amounts not included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required to be included by statute when determining the Movement on the
General Fund Balance for the year

Amount by which pension costs calculated in accordance with the SORP (i.e. in accordance with FRS 17) are different from the contributions
due under the pension scheme regulations.

Statutorily required transfer of the surplus or deficit for the year on the Housing Revenue Account calculated in accordance with statute to
the HRA Balance.

Capital expenditure charged to the General Fund Balance.

Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme

Net transfer to or from earmarked reserves.

Amounts included in the Income and Expenditure Account but required by statute to be excluded when determining the Movement on the
General Fund Balance for the year.

As a Waste Disposal Authority, the Council was allocated 68,205 allowances under the Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme (LATS), which
came into operation on 1 April 2005. There were also 20,334 allowances carried forward from 2005/06. Based on the Council's actual landfill
usage, it is due to surrender 18,631 allowances to DEFRA. 58,093 of the remaining allowances were sold during the course of the year. The
remaining 11,815 allowances have been carried forward in the balance sheet at £1 each (£16 each in 2005/06). The year on year reduction
in the value of each allowance reflects the success of the scheme encouraging all Local Authorities to meet there Landfill targets.
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21

Contributions to Reserves:

2006/07 2005/06
£’000 £’000

120  -

221 336

Economic Development Strategy and Enterprise Reserve 4,568 3,882

5 5,000

 - 1,000
 - 210
 - 39
 - 12

Local Public Service Agreement - Performance Reward Grant 818 204
One City Fund 7,091  -
Dedicated Schools Grant 359  -
Education Reserve for Capital Funding 120  -

320  -
Go Green Fund 130  -
Building Schools for the Future 410

14,162 10,683

Revenue Reserves utilised or released to the Genera l Fund were:
2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000

83 55

Economic Development Strategy and Enterprise Reserve 664  -
70 96

1,000 1,500
Contribution from Employee Assistance Programme Reserve 39  -
Building Schools for the Future 584 342
Audit Fees Reserve 60 113
Environment Reserves (Net) 5 101
Insurance Reserve  - 70
Mobile Library Replacement Reserve  - 28
Civic Streets Reserve (to fund capital expenditure) 330 670
Neighbourhood Renewal Fund  - 29

1,137 250

Local Public Service Agreement Pump Priming Grant 972 476
Legi Reserve 53  -
Contribution to Compliance Reserve 56  -
One City Fund 54

5,107 3,730

Net contribution to reserves 9,055 6,953

22
2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000
Principal Repayments (Minimum Revenue Provision)
 - General Fund & Parking Places Reserve Account 350 257
 - Housing Revenue Account  (1)  -  -

350 257

Note
(1)  Under the Prudential Code, a HRA principal repayment is no longer mandatory.

23

Compliance Reserve

Neighbourhood Renewal Fund

Distribution from Non-Domestic Rate Pool

Transformation Reserve (including Creating Capacity and ICT 
Reserves)

Statutory provision for repayment of debt

Standards Fund – use of reserve to fund spending

Contributions to/from Revenue Reserves

Transformation Reserve (including Creating Capacity and ICT 
Reserves)

Census of Population Reserve

Adult Education Service - increased surplus retained under scheme of 
delegation

Education Self Help Reserve -amounts utilised for action plan 
following LEA Office for report

This sum is based on a population of 248,498 (mid 2006 projection) multiplied by a standard amount for London Boroughs of £540.19 in
2006/07, and a population of 222,018 multiplied by a standard amount of £333.24 in 2005/06.  

Contribution from reserve for increases in Pension Fund contributions

Audit Fees Reserve

Contributions to revenue reserves have been made for expenditure planned or likely to arise in future accounting periods, and where it is
considered appropriate to provide some resources in advance, as follows:

Employee Assistance Programme Reserve

Civic Streets Reserve
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24 Non-Distributed Costs

2006/07 2005/06
£’000 £’000

Capital cost of new cases 520 720
Payment of General Fund Pensions 2,935 2,866

3,455 3,586

25 Pensions

£’000 £’000

Employers contributions 9,271 11.1% 7,686 9.7%
Early retirement 658 222

Charges to General Fund
Revenue accounts 9,928 7,908
Added years benefits 2,854 2.4% 2,775 2.5%

520 720

41,100 37,570

Teachers Pensions Costs
Paid to Department for Education and Skills 5,179 14.1% 5,537 13.5%
Charge for discretionary increases 123 91

Contributions to LPFA Pension Fund
Contributions to LPFA Fund 184 19.0% 186 19.0%

Notes:

26 Local Area Agreements (LAA)

% of 
employees 

pensionable 
pay

The following table sets out the costs in respect of funded and non-funded pensions.

Estimated future commitments for earlier years discretion ary
increases (1)

Contributions to Westminster's Pension Fund

£4.6 million of this grant was applied to fund revenue expenditure in 2006/07 on an accruals basis (comprising £1.4 million of LAA pooled
grant, £3.0 million of NRF and £0.2 million of pump priming grant). This expenditure is reported on the appropriate service classification in
the income and expenditure account. A further £0.3 million was applied to fund capital expenditure (£0.1 million LAA pooled grant and £0.1
million LAA pump priming).

2005/062006/07

Capital costs of discretionary increases 

The City of Westminster local area agreement (LAA) with the Government Office for London commenced on 1 April 2006. The LAA is
delivered through the Westminster City Partnership (the local strategic partnership) for which Westminster City Council is the accountable
body and is delivering a number of social care, environmental, regeneration, crime prevention and economic development projects in
partnership with the NHS, Metropolitan Police, the voluntary sector and community groups with the objective of meeting a number of local
and nationally agreed performance targets. A number of the Council's specific grants, including the Safer Stronger Communities and
Neighbourhood Renewal funds, were combined into a single pooled payment in 2006/07 in line with the LAA agreement.

The Council as accountable body received a total of £5.0 million in LAA related funding from the government in 2006/07 including £3.1
million of Neighbourhood Renewal fund grant (all revenue), £1.6 million of LAA pooled grant (of which £0.1 million is capital) and £1.0 million
of pump priming grant (which can be applied over a three year period as either capital or revenue).

% of employees 
pensionable pay

Changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme permit employees retiring on or after 6 April 2006 to take an increase in their lump sum
payment on retirement in exchange for a reduction in their future annual pension. On the advice of the Council's actuaries it is assumed that
50% of employees retiring after 6 April 2006 will take advantage of this change to the Pension scheme. The Council's actuaries have
advised that this assumption has reduced the value placed on the liabilities for FRS17 purposes by less than 3%. This has been reflected in
the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses. The change has not affected the figures in the Income and Expenditure Account.

(1) Changes to the Local Government Pension Scheme

An actuarial valuation of the City of Westminster Pension Fund was carried out as at 31 March 2004 and applies for the financial years
2005/06 to 2007/08 (see page 72 - Pension Fund). Disclosures required under FRS 17 are set out in note 50(iv).

This represents the cost of retirement benefits which are not attributable to specific service areas
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Balance Sheet

27 Intangible Assets

28

Council 
dwellings

Other land 
and 

buildings

Vehicles, 
plant and 

equipment

Infra- 
structure 

assets

Community 
assets

Investment / 
surplus 

properties
TOTAL

        £’000         £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000     £’000

Gross book value at 1 April 2006 1,289,996 378,241 57,062 237,604 8,211 78,590 2,049,704
Additions 195 14,775 14,765 26,828 810 4,590 61,963
Disposals and transfers -4,108 -83,513  -  -  - 76,346 -11,275
Revaluations 233,536 63,997  -  -  - 52,018 349,551
Impairment -1,250 -18,475  -  -  -  - -19,725

At 31 March 2007 1,518,369 355,025 71,827 264,432 9,021 211,544 2,430,218

Depreciation at 1 April 2006 -62,720 -49,293 -28,316 -90,464  -  - -230,793
Depreciation for year -11,235 -8,366 -7,930 -16,647  -  - -44,178

At 31 March 2007 -73,955 -57,659 -36,246 -107,111  -  - -274,971

Net book value as at 31 March 2007 1,444,414 297,366 3 5,581 157,321 9,021 211,544 2,155,247

Net book value as at 31 March 2006 1,227,276 328,948 28,746 147,140 8,211 78,590 1,818,911

Notes:

29 Expenditure charged to capital was financed as foll ows:
Financing 2006/07 2005/06               Expenditure 2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Loans pool borrowing 23,639 41,450 Land and buildings

- additions to assets 17,355 23,425
Capital receipts 28,654 57,602 - included within valuations 67,490 62,430

Intangibles 134
Capital grants and contributions 31,116 28,966 Vehicles, plant and equipment - HRA 195  -

Vehicles, plant and equipment - Other 14,765 10,103

- Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 1,655 2,896 Infrastructure 26,828 26,016
- General Fund  - 2,313 Surplus Properties 2,010

Community assets 809 1,406
Parking Places Reserve Account  -  -

Deferred charges:
Major Repairs Reserve (HRA) 42,915  - - Renovation, assisted purchase 2,163 1,717

grants and other
Other 7,082  -

Grants for purchase and 3,312 8,130
improvement of property to Housing
Associations

135,061 133,227 135,061 133,227

Intangible Assets comprise computer software licences held. The value was £0.1 million (2005/06 - £Nil) 

Land, Buildings and Other Assets - Movement in Fixe d Assets

a) Council dwellings revaluations reflect the increase in property values in Westminster and ODPM guidance on Resource Accounting for
the Housing Revenue Account. Under Resource Accounting for the HRA the depreciation of dwellings is equivalent to the Major Repairs
Allowance. 

b) Depreciation of equipment includes £1.1 million in respect of Street Parking equipment (Parking Places Reserve Account). This was
£1.0 million in 2005/06.

Revenue contributions to capital outlay 

c) There is a reversionary interest to the Council in the Forrester Court property (which is subject to a long-term PFI contract) at the end of
the contract. However, no value has been included for this interest in the above statement. 

d) Impairment was identified in 2006/07 in a number of off-street car parks, arising from the increase in the congestion charge in Central
London by the Greater London Authority. Impairment was also indentified in Marylebone Library.

f) Where properties have not been revalued the Council is not aware of any material changes in the year.

e) Surplus properties include the former North Westminster Community School site at North Wharf Road, revalued to £80.0 million in
2006/07 (valuation of £11.8 million in 2005/06, when operational) and Chiltern Street car park, revalued to £45.3 million (valuation of £2.6
million in 2005/06).
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30 Capital expenditure is analysed by Cabinet Member a s follows:
2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000

Community Protection & Licensing 215 36
Economic Development & Transport 21,442 18,804
Finance & Support Services - including Customer Services 22,138 32,431
Leisure & Lifelong Learning 5,277 1,522
Children's Services 11,907 7,874
Adult Social Services 493 406
Housing
- Housing Revenue Account 61,382 52,759
- Housing General Fund 4,447 8,997
Street Environment 7,760 10,398

135,061 133,227

Capital commitments as at 31 March 2007 include:-
2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000

Housing – remedial works and other schemes 30,230 90,175
Paddington Bridge Long Term Vehicular Access 1,371 3,139
Chinatown Street Improvements 1,235  -
Affordable Housing 10,700 3,064
Paddington Green Primary Expansion Scheme  - 1,965
Annual Corporate Rolling PC Programme 1,060 1,000
Wireless City Initiative 6,754 1,622

Note:
Paddington Bridge Long Term Vehicular Access and Chinatown Street Improvements are partly funded by third parties.

31

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
An analysis of fixed assets is:- (no.) (no.)

Council dwellings (tenanted stock) 12,062 12,110
Housing Estate Offices and other operational assets 19 19
Educational establishments (including day nurseries) 33 37
Children's play properties 7 8
Administrative premises 3 3
Depots 8 9
Off-street car parks 18 18
Leisure centres and sports centres 7 7
Parks and open spaces 110 acres 110 acres
Conveniences 31 31

Coroner's Court and Mortuary 1 1

Cemeteries 3 3
Libraries and Archives 13 13
Social Services Premises 23 23
Commercial property rentals (note (i)) - shops, offices, etc. 292 293
                                    - other property lettings (including wayleaves) 515 444

Note
(i)  The 2006 statistics have been restated to exclude a number of wayleaves of de minimis capital value. 

32 Valuation of Fixed Assets

Council 
dwellings

Other land and 
buildings

Vehicles, plant 
and equipment

Infrastructure 
assets

Investment 
properties TOTAL

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Valued at historical cost - - 35,581 157,321 - 192,902
Valued at current value in:
   '2006/2007 1,350,958 69,342  -  - 73,041 1,493,341
   2005/2006 1,136,826 8,549  -  - 39,242 1,184,617
   2004/2005 1,330,932 99,290  -  - 57,196 1,487,418
   2003/2004 1,250,475 87,170 - - 6,393 1,344,038
   2002/2003 1,226,997 13,249 - - 4,432 1,244,678

Analysis of Fixed Assets - Land and Buildings

The following statement shows the progress of the Council’s rolling programme for the revaluation of fixed assets. The valuations are carried out
by the Director of Technical Services, CityWest Homes for Council dwellings and by Dunlop Heywood - Consultant Surveyors for other properties.
The basis for valuation is set out in the statement of accounting policies.
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33 Deferred Charges

Renovation 
and Disabled 

Facilities 
Grants

Assisted 
Purchase Grants

Grants to 
Housing 

Associations
Voluntary Aided 

Schools Property TOTAL 2006/07 TOTAL 2005/06
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April  -  -  -  -  -  -
Grants made in year 1,135 490 1,129  - 2,754 4,713
Grants made from Affordable 
Housing Fund  -  - 2,183  - 2,183 4,716

Other expenditure  -  -  - 538 538 418
 

Less: Amounts written out -1,135 -490 -3,312 -538 -5,475 -9,847
Balance at 31 March  -  -  -  -  -  -

34

Sale of Council 
Dwellings

Private 
Borrowers

Housing 
Associations 2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 569 16 49 634 4,073
Expenditure in year  -  -  -  -  -
Less: Repayments in year (1) -158 -3 -16 -177 -3,439

Balance at 31 March 411 13 33 457 634

35 Other Long-Term Debtors

36 Deposits and Other Investments 2007 2006
£'000 £'000

Long-term Investments
Investments - externally managed (note 1) 137,574 150,835
Investments - internally managed 125,081 126,681
Total Long-term investments (note 2) 262,655 277,516

Short-term Investments
Temporary loans to other organisations 109,300 62,800
Total Deposits and Investments 371,955 340,316

Notes

37 Stock and Work in Progress 2007 2006
£'000 £'000

Stores and stocks in hand 119 68
Work in Progress 991 881

1,110 949

38

(1) At 31 March 2007, the Council had a portfolio of gilt-edged securities and other assets managed by three external fund managers; the market
value was £137.6 million (2005/06 - £150.8 million) and the historic cost was £137.6 million (2005/06 - £151.0 million). Included in investments in
the hands of fund managers at 31 March 2007 was £6.2 million (2005/06 - £2.6 million) of cash and £118.8 million (2005/06 - £124.7 million) in
Certificates of Deposit.

(2) Of the total long-term investments, £81.9 million is repayable after more than one year (£19.0 million at 31 March 2006). Following a cash
forecasting review indicating increased cash availability a higher proportion of deposits were placed for longer periods to benefit from higher
interest rates at the long end of the yield curve during 2006/07.

Deferred Charges represent expenditure which may properly be capitalised but which does not represent fixed assets. The expenditure is
therefore written out through the appropriate revenue account in the year in which it is incurred.

Loans made for the Purchase and Improvement of Prop erty

Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme
As required under the SORP, the usage allowances allocated by DEFRA, where not sold to other local authorities, are shown as current assets. At
the year end, the Council had 30,446 allowances valued at £1, a total of £30,446.

The landfill allowances required to meet the Council’s liability to DEFRA are shown as current liabilities and for 2006/07 the Council is required to
deliver 18,631 allowances, also valued at £1, to give a total liability of £18,631. The Council therefore had a net current asset of £11,815 in
respect of the scheme.

(1) 2005/06 includes repayment of the loan to Dolphin Square from out of the capital receipt received on disposal of the Council's leasehold
interest.

Instalments of loans to City West Homes of £0.5 million are receivable after more than one year (£0.6 million at 31 March 2006). In addition
advances to Vertex of £3.8 million are repayable by way of a reduction in contract costs over the next 5 years.
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39 Debtors – Amounts due within one year 2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Government and other local authority accounts
   -  Customs and Excise - VAT reimbursements 7,252 8,283
   -  Asylum Seekers Grant 1,444 3,509
   -  NNDR due from pool 2,406 10,153
   -  Housing Benefits Subsidy  - 2,325
   -  Housing Subsidies 392 1,164
   -  Other government and local authority accounts 3,997 6,773

General debtors
   -  Capital debtors:
         amounts receivable on disposal of property  - 8,743
         Lessee charges (note (a)) 18,315 14,569
         other capital debtors 8,932 6,203
   -  NNDR payers 33,358 36,066
   -  Parking Fines  59,752 74,019
   -  Car Park income 1,046 981
   -  Car Parks - refunds of NNDR due on revaluation 1,500 1,500
   -  Council Tax payers 7,493 8,098
   -  Council Tax payers costs 2,348 1,921
   -  Housing and other rents (incl. Temporary accommodation charges) 18,553 19,715
   -  Housing associations 2 2
   -  Housing Benefits overpayments 12,302 11,175
   -  Lessees (Management & Maintenance and revenue works) (note a)                                                             1,248 2,456
   -  Trade refuse 529 722
   -  Interest receivable 2,854 1,620
   -  Employee loans 632 583
   -  Other debtors 23,504 23,401

207,859 243,981

Less: Provision for irrecoverable debts (note b) -119,164 -131,564
88,695 112,417

Notes:
a) Lessee charges debtors

b) Provision for irrecoverable debts 2007 2006
£’000 £’000

NNDR Payers 20,700 21,200
Council Tax Payers (excluding costs) 3,600 3,750
Council Tax Payers - costs 2,040 1,635
Parking Fines 57,094 70,901
Housing General Fund (incl. Benefits overpayments) 20,785 19,724
Housing Revenue Account 9,182 11,111
Other Provisions 5,763 3,243
   119,164 131,564

40 Cash at Bank

2007 2006
£’000 £’000

Cash in hand (-) / overdrawn -820 -143

Adjustments for:
- Cheques drawn but not presented and other adjustments -730 -1,396
- Pension Fund cash in hand 4,268 4,979
- Trust Funds cash in hand 62 484
Bank - overdraft - Consolidated Balance Sheet 2,780 3,924
The Paddington Bridge (LTVA) account was in hand by £3.6 million at 31 March 2007 (£4.0 million at 31 March 2006), contributions from
participants in the project not having been used to fund expenditure on the project at that date.

During 2006/07 work has been carried out to determine the billable amounts to lessees for all years to 31 March 2007. Accordingly, debtors at 31
March 2007 include £0.3 million (2006 - £0.9 million) of capital debtors in respect of lessees’ contributions to capital schemes where such costs
had not been billed at that date. This is based on the latest estimates of costs chargeable to lessees. The inclusion of these estimated debts in the
accounts has had the effect of increasing the balance of the Capital Grants and Contributions account by £0.3 million (2005/06 - £0.9 million).

Following legal advice that the Council has limited powers to write off such debts and that debts ultimately are enforceable under the security of
the property lease concerned, only a small provision has been made for the costs of possible irrecoverable debts. However, it is not yet possible
to determine the ultimate amounts, if any, which may prove uncollectable for any reason once the billing has been completed. No account has yet
been taken of any discretion that the Council may be entitled to exercise under the provisions of Part 8 of the Housing Act 1996 enabling the
Council to waive or reduce charges to lessees.

Any uncollectable amounts in respect of capital debtors will be written off to the Capital Grants and Contributions account (note 50 (vi)) and in
respect of major revenue works costs to the Housing Revenue Account (page 63).

The main bank statement balance (including the Council's Euro account) at 31 March 2007 had cash in hand of £0.8 million. After allowing for
unpresented cheques and other adjustments and non-General Fund balances, this gives an overdrawn balance of £2.8 million for the Balance
Sheet. The analysis is as follows:-
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41 Petty Cash Holdings 2007 2006
£'000 £'000

330 320

Petty cash holdings etc. 173 217
503 537

42 Loans Outstanding 2007 2006
£'000 £'000

These are loans raised to finance capital spending on land, buildings etc.

Loans Fund - long term loans 229,915 210,764

            - short term loans 2,172 11,654
232,087 222,418

Source of loan 
31 March 31 March

2007 2006
£'000 £'000

Public Works Loan Board 2.50 – 11.00 133,193 122,617
Money market 3.65 – 10.75 95,000 95,000
Financial Institutions 5.75 – 6.12 2,454 2,550
Individuals and charities 3.00 – 5.00 77 82
CityWest Homes 4.00 – 4.00 1,300 2,100
City of Westminster Pension Fund 3.00 – 6.25 63 69

232,087 222,418

An analysis of loans by maturity is:

Maturing within 1 year 2,172 11,654
Maturing in 1-2 years 522 850
Maturing in 2-5 years 1,271 1,420
Maturing in 5-10 years 34,569 34,774
Maturing in more than 10 years 193,553 173,720

232,087 222,418

43 Provisions

General Fund Collection Fund
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Insurance Claims 6,098 817  - 6,915
Repayment of Mental Health Charges 1,385 -500  - 885
Repayment of NNDR and Council Tax 11,450 -3,123 716 9,043

320 300  - 620
Redundancy Costs 175 -175  -  -
Schools 2,250 -2,250  -  -

21,678 -4,931 716 17,463

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Repayment of Mental Health Charge. In the 2002/03 Accounts, a further provision for potential repayments of mental health charges was made,
increasing the total provision to £5.0 million. In July 2002, the House of Lords had upheld the judgement of the Court of Appeal and the High Court
that local authorities had no power to charge for residential accommodation under Section 117 of the Mental Health Act 1983. The Council made
charges for such accommodation in previous years and thus backdated repayment of charges received may be required. Following a House of
Lords decision and Ombudsman guidance, Counsel has been consulted on issues relating to the length of liability, type and rate of interest, as
well as particular issues relating to self-funders. The Council has agreed and implemented procedures for identifying and contacting clients
charged. The likely remaining liability has been reviewed in the light of the issues referred to above and reduced to £0.9 million at 31 March 2007.

Repayment of National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR). In July 2005, Counsel's opinion was received that in respect of unclaimed Council Tax
and NNDR credit balances arising more than 6 years ago, the Council may make provision for the transfer of such sums to its General Fund. This
is provided that appropriate accounting provision is made to enable the Council to meet all future claims made in respect of overpayments. A
protocol has been put into place to ensure that repayments are made where possible by taking reasonable and appropriate steps to trace and
contact relevant ratepayers. This included increasing general awareness as to the existence of the possibility of overpayments and the availability
of repayments of Council Tax and NNDR. Appropriate notices are publicised on Council Tax and NNDR bills, on the Council's website and
annually in two local newspapers. The protocol also includes issuing reminder notices to be sent to the ratepayers at last known addresses and, in
addition, to companies at their registered office.  

£27.5 million in respect of NNDR overpayments and £3.0 million in respect of Council Tax overpayments was transferred to this provision in
2004/05. These amounts allowed for refunds already made from 31 March 2005 to August 2005. Transfers to the General Fund on completion of
the protocol requirements, in respect of individual overpayments, amounted to £20.8 million in 2005/06 and £3.1 million in 2006/07. They are
estimated to be around £3.0 million per annum hereafter.

Range of interest rates payable 
(%)

Note : All of the Council's borrowing is to finance capital expenditure. The Council does not have any undrawn borrowing facilities.

Insurance Claims . Provision has been made to meet future anticipated liabilities on claims under the Council’s insurance arrangements.

Decrease (-) / Increase in provision in 
year

Compensation, Property and Contractual 

Balance at          
1 April 2006

Balance at 31 March 
2007

The details of the loans are as follows:

Education establishments, district housing offices and other 
cheque imprests
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(iv)

44 Creditors

2007 2006
£'000 £'000

Government and Other Local Authority accounts:
Education inter-authority charges 4,311 3,684
Other Government & local authority accounts 5,881 4,475

General Creditors:
Capital creditors 22,336 27,171
Accrued interest on loans 4,217 3,775
Amounts owed for supplies and services 77,073 65,270

113,818 104,375

45 Deposits and Receipts in Advance 2007 2006
£'000 £'000

Deposits re scaffolds, hoardings, street works, etc. 2,174 2,123
NNDR receipts in advance 75,137 67,909
Council Tax receipts in 9,821 9,784
Landfill Allowances Trading Scheme 380 760
Leadership Centre for Local Government 3,123 3,288
Other deposits and receipts in advance 13,904 12,383

104,539 96,247

46 Other Credit Balances 2007 2006
£'000 £'000

Other credit balances (including unidentified income) 96 62
96 62

47

2006/07 2005/06
£’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 134,694 121,376
28,933 22,249
-5,593 -6,189
-1,204 -2,742

Balance at 31 March 156,830 134,694

48 Deferred Capital Income

49

Westminster City Council participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme and acts as the Administering Authority of this Fund. The Local
Government Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme based on final pensionable salary.

The latest valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2004, and has been updated by independent actuaries to the City of Westminster Pension
Fund (the Fund) to take account of the requirements of FRS17 in order to assess the liabilities of the Fund as at 31 March 2007. Liabilities are
valued on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method which assesses the future liabilities discounted to their present value. 

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard No. 17 – Retirement Benefits (FRS 17), Westminster City Council is required to disclose certain
information concerning assets, liabilities, income and expenditure related to pension schemes for its employees.

Pension Assets and Liabilities

Less amounts written out: write out of funding

(i) City of Westminster Pension Fund

Funding by government grants and contributions
Less amounts written out: depreciation

Deferred Capital Income comprises amounts derived from sales of assets which will be received in instalments over agreed periods of time. They
arise principally from mortgages on sales of council houses, which form the main part of mortgages under loans for purchase and improvement of
property.

The Council contributes to two Defined Benefit Schemes, i.e. the City of Westminster Pension Fund and the London Pensions Fund Authority
(LPFA) Pension Fund. The teachers’ scheme of the Department for Education and Skills is considered a Defined Contribution Scheme, as it does
not allow the identification of liabilities between participant authorities.

LMS School Deficits. The position on LMS School balances shows a net surplus of £4.3 million at 31 March 2007 (2006 - £1.3 million). The net
figure at 31 March 2007 comprises schools in surplus of £6.0 million and schools in deficit totalling £1.7 million. In 2006/07 schools related
expenditure was funded by a new government grant, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). In addition to the schools balances, there is also a
further £0.4 million of DSG being carried forward, of which £0.2 million is earmarked for school specific contingencies.

The significant improvement in the schools closing balances is due to the write-off of the former North Westminster Community School deficit.

This consists of amounts owed to Government and other local authorities and all unpaid sums for goods and services provided at 31 March:-

Government Grants - Deferred Account
Capital grants and other contributions (when applied to fund capital expenditure) are credited to the government grants - deferred account and
sums released to the service revenue account over the useful life of the asset, to match the depreciation of the asset to which it relates.
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a) Main Assumptions

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

Discount rate for scheme 5.3% p.a. 4.9% p.a.
Discount rate for pension cost over following year 5.3% p.a. 4.9% p.a.
Rate of general long-term increase in salaries 4.7% p.a. 4.5% p.a.
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.2% p.a. 3.0% p.a.
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 3.2% p.a. 3.0% p.a.
Rate of inflation 3.2% p.a. 3.0% p.a.

Long-term expected rates of return on:
Equities 7.7% p.a. 7.3% p.a.
Government Bonds 4.7% p.a. 4.3% p.a.
Corporate Bonds 5.3% p.a. 4.9% p.a.
Property 6.7% p.a. 6.3% p.a.
Other assets 5.6% p.a. 4.6% p.a.

7.0% p.a. 6.6% p.a.

See also Accounting Policies for Pension Costs (Page 72)

Assets are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments, and comprise:

31 March 2007 Asset 31 March 2006 Asset
Distribution Distribution

£'million % £'million %

Equities 411.90 14 405.82 78
Government Bonds 107.99 84 105.32 20
Other 21.92 2 10.53 2

541.81 100 521.67 100

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£'million £'million

Share of assets in the Fund 541.81 521.67
 

Estimated liabilities in the Fund 754.96 719.44

-213.15 -197.77

£'million £'million £'million £'million

Net deficit (-)/ surplus at beginning of year -197.77 -213.23

Movement in year:

Operating Charge:
Current service cost -16.59 -14.31
Past service costs -0.66 -0.22
Gain/loss on any settlements or curtailments  -  -

Total Operating Charge -17.25 -14.53

Contributions (deduced) 9.93 7.91

Finance Income:
Expected return on Pension Fund assets 34.18 30.03
Interest on pension scheme liabilities -35.29 -33.81

Net Finance Income -1.11 -3.78

Actuarial loss(-)/gain -6.95 25.86
Net deficit at end of year -213.15 -197.77

Pension Assets and Liabilities (cont)
The Actuarial gain/loss can be further analysed as follows: 2006/07 2005/06

£'million £'million

Actual return less expected return on assets -8.02 75.51
Experience gains and losses on pension liabilities -1.63 0.32

2.70 -49.97

Total actuarial gain/loss(-) -6.95 25.86

2006/07 2005/06

The following amounts were measured in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17:

Westminster City Council’s deficiency in the Fund

The surplus or deficiency revealed above should be borne in mind when considering the amount of overall reserves held.

The movement in net deficiency for the year is as follows:

b) City of Westminster’s share of assets within the  Fund

Total of Westminster’s share of assets

The proportions of total assets held in each asset type, shown above, reflect the proportions held by the Fund as a whole at 31 March 2007 and
31 March 2006.

c) City of Westminster’s deficiency (-) in the Fund

The principal assumptions used by the independent qualified actuaries in updating the latest valuations of the Fund for FRS17 purposes were:

Average long-term expected rate of return

Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of pension 
liabilities
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(ii) General Fund Pensions

(iii) LPFA Pension Fund

a)  Main Assumptions

31 March 2007 31 March 2006

Discount rate 5.4% p.a. 4.9% p.a.
Rate of increase in salaries 4.7% p.a. 4.6% p.a.
Rate of increase in pensions in payment 3.2% p.a. 3.1% p.a.
Rate of increase in deferred pensions 3.2% p.a. 3.1% p.a.
Rate of inflation 3.2% p.a. 3.1% p.a.

Rate of return on Equities 7.8% p.a. 7.4% p.a.
Rate of return on Bonds 4.7% p.a. 4.8% p.a.
Rate of return on Property 6.7% p.a. 5.7% p.a.
Rate of return on Other assets 4.9% p.a. 4.6% p.a.

31 March Asset 31 March Asset
2007 Distribution 2006 Distribution

£'million % £'million %

Equities 2.63 14 2.55 14
Cashflow matching 15.21 84 15.25 83
Cash 0.31 2 0.58 3

18.15 100 18.38 100

The following amounts were measured in accordance with the requirements of FRS 17:
31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£'million £'million

Share of assets in Pension Fund -18.15 18.38
Estimated liabilities in Pension Fund 23.29 23.87
Westminster City Council’s deficit(-)/surplus in the schemes -5.14 -5.49

The movement in the net deficit for the year to 31 March 2007 is as follows:
2006/07 2005/06

£'million £'million

Surplus/(deficit) at beginning of the year -5.49 -4.43
Current Service Cost -0.20 -0.20
Employer contributions 0.18 0.19
Other income -0.07  -
Other Expenses  - 0.01
Expected return on Employer assets 0.82 0.90
Interest on Pension scheme liabilities -1.15 -1.17
Net return on assets -0.33 -0.27
Actuarial gains/(losses) 0.76 -0.79

Surplus/(deficit) at end of year -5.15 -5.49

The Actuarial gain/loss can be further analysed as follows:

 - 0.69
 - 0.57

0.76 -2.05

 -  -

Actuarial gain/loss (-) 0.76 -0.79

Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities

Changes in financial assumptions underlying the present value of scheme liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in irrecoverable surplus from membership fall and other factors

The latest formal valuation of the London Pensions Fund Authority Pension Fund for the purposes of setting employers' actual contribution was as
at 31 March 2007, with the next formal valuation due as at 31 March 2010. A summary of the membership data used and the benefits valued as at
31 March 2007 are set out in the formal valuation report. 

The main assumptions used for the purposes of FRS 17 were as follows:

b)  City of Westminster’s share of assets within th e Fund

The surplus or deficiency revealed above should be borne in mind when considering the amount of overall reserves held.

Assets are valued at fair value, principally market value for investments, and comprise:

Total of Westminster’s share of assets

The proportions of total assets held in each asset type, shown above, reflect the proportions held by the fund as a whole at 31 March 2007 and 31
March 2006.

c)  City of Westminster’s deficiency (-)/surplus in  the Fund

The capitalised liability for future payment of General Fund pensions at 1 April 2006 was £40.7 million. The net increase in the year was £1.1
million giving a liability at 31 March 2007 of £41.6 million.

Employees of City of Westminster may participate in the London Pensions Fund Authority Pension Fund, part of the Local Government Pension
Scheme, a defined benefit statutory scheme. The Fund is administered by London Pensions Fund Authority in accordance with the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997 as amended.
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50 Details of Movements on Reserves in the year

Summary introduction to detail of movements on Rese rves

Balance 31 
March 2006

Net Movement in 
Year

Balance 31 
March 2007

Reserve £'000 £'000 £'000 Purpose of Reserve Further Det ail of 
Movements

Fixed Asset
Restatement Account 911,663 270,787 1,182,450 (i) below

Capital Financing Account 537,759 20,257 558,016 (ii) below

Usable Capital Receipts
Reserve

15,749 -13,692 2,057 (iii) below

Pensions Reserve -241,550 -18,360 -259,910 (iv) below

Housing Revenue Account 48,139 9,260 57,399 HRA Statements,
page 63

Major Repairs Reserve 34,457 -30,795 3,662 HRA Statements, 
page 63

General Fund 59,362 7,502 66,864 Statement of 
Movement on the 
General Fund 
Balance, page 30.

Other Reserves 88,453 38,758 127,211 (vi), (vii), (viii) and (ix) 
below,DSOs and 
Collection Fund

Total 1,454,032 283,717 1,737,749

50(i)

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 911,663 1,189,217

Transactions in year:
Revaluations in year 349,551 -153,654

-67,489 -62,430
Less: Disposal of fixed assets -11,275 -61,470

-78,764 -123,900

Balance at 31 March 1,182,450 911,663

The analysis in 2006/07 is as follows:
General Fund HRA Total

£’000 £’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 2006 380,573 531,090 911,663
116,016 233,535 349,551

Less: Capital expenditure written off to reserve and adjustments -8,803 -58,686 -67,489
-7,167 -4,108 -11,275

Balance as at 31 March 2007 480,619 701,831 1,182,450

Less: Capital expenditure written off to reserve 

Surplus/deficit(-) on revaluation of fixed assets

           Disposals and transfers of fixed assets

Resources available to meet future
running costs for non-housing
services

Fixed Asset Restatement Account
The Code of Practice requires the maintenance of a fixed asset restatement account. The reserve is written down by the net book value of assets
as they are disposed of and debited or credited with the deficits or surpluses respectively arising on the periodic revaluation of fixed assets.

2006/07 2005/06

Proceeds of fixed asset sales
available to meet future capital
investment

Balancing account to allow inclusion
of Pensions Liability in the Balance
Sheet

Resources available to meet future
running costs for council houses

Resources available to meet capital 
investment in council housing

The Council keeps a number of reserves in the Balance Sheet. Some are required to be held for statutory reasons, some are needed to comply
with proper accounting practice, and others have been set up voluntarily to earmark resources for future spending plans.

Store of gains on revaluation of fixed
assets

Store of capital resources set a side 
to meet past expenditure
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50(ii) Capital Financing Account

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance at 1 April 537,759 515,714

Transactions in year:
 -  -

Capital financing - Revenue 1,655 5,208
                           - Capital receipts 28,654 57,602

42,915  -
9,265 6,716

82,489 69,526

Principal and special repayments 350 257
Less: Depreciation -38,585 -36,732

-38,235 -36,475

Impairment -19,725 -3,697
Amounts written out in year -4,272 -7,309

Balance at 31 March 558,016 537,759

50(iii)

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income during year

6,918 8,414
12,636 49,349

 - 8,606

151 149

Total receipts during year 19,705 66,518

Applications during year
Financing of new capital 28,654  57,602
Payment to Housing capital 4,520  6,191
Sale of Council dwellings - costs 223  211

Total applications during year 33,397 64,004

Net movement for year -13,692 2,514
Balance at 1 April 15,749 13,235

Balance at 31 March 2,057 15,749

50(iv) Pensions Reserve

City of 
Westminster 

Pension Fund
General Fund 

Pensions
LPFA Pension 

Fund Total
£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Deficit (-) Balances at 1 April 2006 -197,770 -38,290 -5,490 -241,550

Adjustment for dependants liabilities  - -2,370  - -2,370

Contributions to Pension Funds 9,930           - 184 10,114

-18,360 150 -594 -18,804

Actuarial Losses (-) / Gains -6,950 -1,110 760 -7,300

-213,150 -41,620 -5,140 -259,910

There were no amounts receivable as at 31 March 2007 (£8.7 million at 31 March 2006).

The movement on the Pensions Reserve is analysed as follows:

FRS 17 adjustments on Income & Expenditure Account

Deficit(-) Balances at 31 March 2007

Sale of other land and buildings - receipts
Increase/Decrease(-) in amounts receivable from sales

Sale of Council dwellings - receipts

Other Capital Income (including sale of Council dwellings -
principal repayments)

                           - Other capital financing

Usable Capital Receipts Reserve
These are capital receipts which have not yet been used to finance capital expenditure or to repay debt. Until 2003/04, under the Government's
capital controls system, a proportion of Housing capital receipts received had to be transferred to the Capital Financing Account. From 1 April
2004, a proportion of Housing capital receipts has to be paid into a national pool.

2006/07 2005/06

2006/07 2005/06

Capital receipts and grants set aside - current year

                           - Major Repairs Allowance (HRA)

The Capital Financing Account contains the amounts which are required by statute to be set aside from capital receipts for the repayment of
external loans and the amount of capital expenditure financed from revenue, capital receipts and other internal resources. This reserve
incorporates the balance previously held as a provision for credit liabilities. It also contains the difference between amounts provided for
depreciation and that required to be charged to revenue to repay the principal element of external loans.

55



NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

50(v) Statement of Movement on the General Fund Balance

Generally 
available 
balance

Schools ear-
marked balance

Total General 
Fund balance

Total General Fund 
balance

2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

-23,669  - -23,669 -14,236

 - 2,973 2,973 157

31,171  - 31,171 32,191

59,362 1,285 60,647 42,535

66,864 4,258 71,122 60,647

50(vi) Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income during year
Government Grants 2,804 3,044
Affordable Housing Contributions 15,377 8,102

6,511 5,023
Environment & Leisure Contributions 5,404 5,274
Whitehall Streetscape 12,133  -
Education Contributions 4,495 4,246

17,528 14,207

Interest on balances 1,242 1,001

Total receipts during year 65,494 40,897

Applications during year
31,116 28,966

Paddington SPA fund - grants, etc. 292 507
Redemption of debt 18 3,280
Transfer to Capital Financing Account  -  -

Total applications during year 31,426 32,753

Net movement for year 34,068 8,144
Balance at 1 April 64,681 56,537

Balance at 31 March (see notes) 98,749 64,681

Note:

50(vii) General Fund - earmarked LMS balances

2006/07 2005/06
£’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 1,285 1,128
Net amount transferred to/from (-) balances 2,973 157

Balance at 31 March 4,258 1,285

Analysis of year end balance:-

     Unspent balances at 31 March 5,957 5,037
     Overspent balances at 31 March -1,699 -3,752

Balance at 31 March 4,258 1,285

Note

1. The significant improvement on the school's closing balances is due to the write-off of the former North Westminster Community School deficit.

2. In 2006/07 schools related expenditure was funded by a new government grant, the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). In addition to the schools
balances, there is also a further £0.4 million of DSG being carried forward, of which £0.1 million is earmarked for school specific contingencies.

The capital grants and contributions balance at 31 March 2007 includes the following:-
(a)  The balance at 31 March 2007 includes £31.2 million (2006 - £16.9 million) in respect of Affordable Housing contributions received from 
developers.

(b) The balance at 31 March 2007 includes £31.6 million (2006 - £27.1 million) in respect of contributions by lessees to capital works including
amounts not yet billed (see note 39(a)).

Under the terms of the Local Management in Schools (LMS) scheme, over or under spending on the delegated schools' budgets are carried
forward to the following financial year. These balances are committed to be spent on the education service and are not available to the authority
for general use.

2006/07

Contributions to capital costs by Lessees

Other Capital Income (including Developers’ 
contributions)

Financing of new capital expenditure

General Fund Balance brought forward

General Fund Balance carried forward

These are capital grants and contributions which have not yet been used to finance capital expenditure or to repay debt. 

Increase or decrease in the General Fund 

Surplus/deficit on ear-marked reserves for 

Surplus or deficit (-) for the year on the Income and Expenditure 
Account

Net additional amount required by statute and non-statutory 
proper practices to be debited or credited to the General Fund

2005/06
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50(viii)

2006/07 2005/06
£’000 £’000

Balance at 1 April 7,146 6,838

Receipt from Designated Sales Settlements  -  -
Interest on balance 173 308

Applications in year
Financial of capital 
expenditure

-7,064  -

-255  -

 - 7,146

50(ix) Other Reserves 
These consist of:- 2007 2006

£'000 £'000

Maintenance of Graves in Perpetuity 222 214
Education Self-Help (Schools & Life-long Learning) 15 98
Insurance Reserve 105 105
Future increases in pensions contributions  - 1,000
Adult Education Service - scheme of delegation (note 1) 1,820 1,600
Maintenance of Statues 123 118
Westbourne Green Fund 28 46
Standards Fund (Council’s contributions) 61 131
Building Schools for the Future (note 2) 484 658
Census of Population Reserve 400 80
Local Public Service Agreement (LPSA) - Pump Priming Grant 96 250
Audit Fees Reserve  (note 3) 197 137
Employee Assistance Programme  - 39
Civic Streets Reserve  - 330
Compliance Reserve (note 5) 154 210
Transformation/Creating Capacity Reserve     (note 6) 4,753 5,890
One City Fund (note 7) 7,037  -
Economic Development Strategy and Enterprise (note 8) 7,709 3,805
Local Enterprise Growth Initiative  (note 9) 23 77
Dedicated Schools Grant (see note 43 on page 50) 359  -
Go Green Fund (note 10) 130  -
Other Council Reserves 126 119
Education Reserve for Capital Funding 120  -

23,962 14,907

Notes

51 Contingent Liabilities

10. This fund was established by cabinet in order to meet some or all of the additional costs incurred in achieving high levels of environmental 
performance.

a) The Council has entered into a contract in respect of Forrester Court residential/nursing home under the Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
whereby it has agreed to pay a termination payment in the event of default by the Contractor or voluntary termination of the contract by the
Council. In both cases, compensation would be payable and the maximum payment is assessed at £3.1 million.

b) The Council has entered into an agreement with Veolia Environmental Services Plc ( formerly known as Onyx UK Plc), through a special
purpose vehicle Onyx Westminster Vehicles Ltd, to ensure that the Council retains the use of the refuse collection vehicle fleet in the event of the
premature termination of the Onyx waste collection contract. If the contract is terminated, the Council will resume responsibility for the operating
lease payments due to the lessor in respect of the fleet. The payments under the leases, which initially ran for seven years from September 2003,
total £7.3 million. The possible liability at 31 March 2007 was £3.7 million (£4.8 million at 31 March 2006). 

c) In respect of Mental Health income repayment, the Council has, based on legal advice, made provision for repayments since the
implementation of the Community Care Act 1993 (see note 43(ii)). No provision has been made for repayments prior to 1993. Should legal advice
change, payments may be required to be backdated to the implementation of the Mental Health Act 1983. An estimate cannot be made at this time
for repayments prior to 1993; however to date no enquiries or claims prior to 1993 have been received.

6. To fund WorkSmart initiatives - business process re-engineering, programme management office, investment costs and change management.
This fund now incorporates the former Creating Capacity reserve.

8.  To promote economic growth in Westminster in line with the economic development strategy and enterprise theme of "One City".
9. Pump priming grant to progress the Economic Development agenda.

7. This reserve is to support delivery of the Councils One City policies.

2.  Funding for the Building Schools for the Future and Academies programme and planning process. 
3.  To provide funding for future audit costs.
4.  Provision for investment to upgrade pavement quality and deliver related initiatives under the One City programme.
5.  Future implementation costs arising from a consultant's review of procurement procedures during 2005/06.

Transfers to revenue account - allocation of costs of objection to 
Dame Shirley Porter settlement

Balance at 31 March

1.  This is the accumulated surplus of the Adult Education Service in Westminster, under their scheme of delegation. 

Housing Investment Reserve 
This reserve is an allocation of the £12.0 million Designated Sales surcharge settlement in 2003/04 to Housing capital. It was earmarked for use
by CityWest Homes to fund improvements in housing conditions in Westminster.
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52 Contingent Assets
(a) Dolphin Square

(c) VAT on Car Parking charges

(d) Farm Street Depot

(e) Marshall Street Leisure 

53

54

55
The analysis of total capital and revenue funds and balances is as follows:

2007 2006
£’000 £’000

General Fund (including Pension Reserve) 425,467 358,168
Housing Revenue Account 1,309,549 1,092,064
Parking Places Reserve Account (including equipment) 2,664 3,534
Collection Fund - Westminster City Council 69 266

1,737,749 1,454,032

Analysis of Net Assets Employed

Authorisation of the Statement of Accounts
The Statement of Accounts was authorised for issue on XX September 2007 by Nick Bell  (Director of Finance)

Events after the balance sheet date
No post Balance Sheet events have been identified.

Following the decision of the London VAT and Duties Tribunal on the claim of the Isle of Wight Council and others, the Council has reviewed the
detail behind the decision and is of the opinion that its off-street car park charges fall outside of the scope of VAT also. As a consequence, the
Council has formally submitted a claim for £14.0 million for the recovery of all VAT included as part of the Council's off-street car park charges and
paid to HRMC as part of its monthly VAT returns for the period January 2003 to March 2007 inclusive. There is also the potential for an ongoing
consequence of the decision, approximately £3.0 million p.a.

The Tribunal decision is likely to be subject to appeal and no refund has been anticipated in the accounts.

Although currently operational, a conditional sale agreement has been entered into in respect of this property. If this agreement for sale is
completed by March 2009, a gain of some £3.4 million over the book value of the property would be achieved.

The Council has negotiated a development agreement affecting certain of its properties in the Soho area of the City with the aim of reopening
Marshall Street Leisure Centre. The agreement will result in a new depot, a refurbished leisure centre and smaller car park for the Council, plus a
capital receipt, offset by the disposal to the developer of the existing Poland Street car park.

d) In respect of the disposal of Dolphin Square, the City Council has given indemnities to the Dolphin Square Trust in connection with the sale,
providing that as Dolphin Square Trust has made a gift of substantially all of its share of the proceeds of the sale to the Dolphin Square Charitable
Foundation, Dolphin Square Trust should receive an uncapped indemnity, unlimited in time, from the City Council to meet liabilities from the sale
which it could not meet. Liabilities arising other than from the sale also have an indemnity, but capped at £25.0 million. In the event of any claims
under these indemnities, the first charge will be against an initial amount of £18.8 million available from the Dolphin Square Trust proceeds, plus
additional sums mainly arising from lease option receipts. The amount available at 31 March 2007 to meet claims under the indemnities had risen
to £24.1 million (2006 - £21.3 million). As far as the Council is aware, no claims or proceedings have been or are in the process of being pursued
against the Council under the indemnity arrangements or the contract retention arrangements (see note 52(a) below). 

A contract retention of £2.5 million by the purchaser was made on completion. The City Council's share, of £1.3 million, will be returned to it if no
contract claims are made pursuant to this retention within 18 months of the date of completion, i.e. July 2007.
Also, in connection with this sale, part of the proceeds was paid to the Dolphin Square Company which was set up to look after tenants rights. This
includes a sum of £10.0 million, of which £5.0 million funding was from the City Council's share of proceeds. Any unexpended amount of this sum
will earn interest and a share of the sum will be returned to the City Council on winding up of the Company, or when the relevant number of
tenants is less than twenty.

(b) In connection with the sale of the Grosvenor Waterside site, Tachbrook Triangle and Audley Square sites, the Council is entitled to further
receipts subject to certain conditions, including planning consents being met. These sums are mainly in respect of provisions held by the Council
within the contracts for receipt of a proportion of sales revenue from units of accommodation built on the site, if thresholds are exceeded . The
additional income cannot be assessed at this time.

If the Secretary of State so determines there is a possibility that there may be a retrospective amending report made for the 2006/07 and 2007/08
local government finance settlements (or a revision to the baseline position for the 2008/09 settlement) to reflect the impact of these population
revisions. There is a risk that Council may therefore required to repay up to £4.7 million of formula grant (of which £1.3 million relates to 2006/07)
which represents the Council's combined grant increase above the minimum floor guarantee in 2006/07 and 2007/08. The decision as to whether
the 2006/07 and 2007/08 settlement will be revised to reflect these population changes will be a matter for ministerial judgement and may not be
confirmed until late 2007. Any repayment would be netted off against the Council’s 2008/09 formula grant allocation.

e) On the 24 April 2007 the Office for National Statistics announced provisional revisions to their previously issued population estimates for 2002-
2005 - which for the City of Westminster represented a 15,500 reduction to the 2005 mid year estimates which were used by the Department for
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) in parallel with the mid 2006 ONS projections to calculate the Council's 2006/07 formula grant
allocation.
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NOTES TO THE CORE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash Flow Statement 

57 Reconciliation of revenue cash flow

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000
Surplus(-)/Deficit 

- Income and Expenditure Account (page 27) -7,502 -17,955
- Collection Fund (page 68) 331 -4
- Housing Revenue Account (page 63) -9,260 -8,194
- On Street Parking (page 71) -33,285 -25,453

-49,716 -51,606
Less: Interest paid -15,937 -16,015

Contributions to provisions and reserves -30,240 -23,708
Contribution to capital outlay / principal repayments -2,004 -5,465

-48,181 -45,188
-12,854 -2,998

Decrease(-) / Increase in stock and work in progress 161 -5
Decrease(-) / Increase in payments in advance -410 398

-111,000 -99,399
Add back: Interest received 19,873 17,418  
Payments to Capital Receipts Pool 5,217 6,934
Contributions from provisions and reserves 66,668 49,233

91,758 73,585
Increase / Decrease (-) in debtors -33,753 2,905
Increase in Landfill Tax asset -315 326
Increase(-) / Decrease in deposits and receipts in advance -8,292 -7,112
Revenue Activities Net Cash Inflow (-) / Outflow -61,602 -29,695

58 Movement in cash and cash equivalents
   31 March 2007 31 March 2006 Movement

£’000 £’000 £’000

Cash with Accounting Officers (Imprests) 503 537 -34
Net Cash Overdrawn 857 87 770
Net Decrease in cash 1,360 624 736

59 Movement in liquid resources
31 March 2007 31 March 2006 Movement

£’000 £’000 £’000

Short term deposits 109,300 62,800 46,500
Other liquid resources 180,755 258,516 -77,761
Net increase in liquid resources 290,055 321,316 -31,261

60 Movements in Borrowing
31 March 2007 31 March 2006 Movement

£’000 £’000 £’000

Long Term Borrowing 229,914 210,764 19,150
Short Term Borrowing 2,172 11,654 -9,482
Net Increase / Decrease (-) in Borrowing 232,086 222,418 9,668

61 Reconciliation of Movement in Cash to Movement in B orrowing
2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000

Decrease (-) / Increase in Cash 736 -11,409
Revenue Activities – inflow (-) / outflow -61,602 -29,695
Servicing of finance – inflow (-) / outflow -3,936 -1,403
Capital activities – cash outflow 105,731 40,315
Management of liquid resources – inflow (-) / outflow -31,261 33,833
Decrease (-) / Increase in borrowing 9,668 31,641

Decrease / Increase (-) in creditors

2006/07 2005/06

The category liquid resources represents deposits and investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash or traded in
an active market.
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62 Analysis of other Government Grants 
2006/07 2005/06

£’000 £’000

Social & Community Services and Children & Lifelong Learning 46,281 44,004
Housing Rent Rebates 36,970 36,769
Housing Subsidy (HRA) 13,069 14,612
Local Authority Business Rate Growth Incentive scheme 10,189 3,805
Council Tax Rebates 10,775 10,743
Other Government Grants (incl Mandatory awards) 32,903 46,700

150,187 156,633

GENERAL DISCLOSURES

63 Outstanding Legal Matters  

64

65

2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000

Opening Capital Financing Requirement 235,429 197,675

Capital Investment
Operational assets 124,996 113,738
Non-operational assets 4,590 10,024
Deferred charges 5,475 9,465

Less: Sources of Finance
Capital receipts 28,654 57,602
Government grants and other contributions 31,116 28,966
Revenue contributions to capital outlay 1,655 5,209
Major Repairs Reserve 42,915  -
Other 7,082  -
Debt repayment  - 3,439
Minimum Revenue Provision 350 257

Closing Capital Financing Requirement 258,718 235,429

Explanation of movements in year:

13,226 37,754

10,063  -

23,289 37,754

The City Council has a number of claims from former and existing part-time members of staff who are claiming an entitlement to be
included in the City Council’s pension scheme. A provision for the possible costs has been made within the accounts.

Increase in underlying need to borrow (supported by Government
financial assistance)

Increase / decrease (-) in Capital Financing Requirement

Increase in underlying need to borrow (unsupported by Government 
financial assistance)

Interests in Companies - CityWest Homes Ltd

On 1 April 2006 the Capital Financing Requirement was £235.4 million, and on 31 March 2007 it had increased to £258.7 million. 

The Council has delegated responsibility for overseeing the management and maintenance of its residential stock to CityWest Homes Ltd
(CWH), in accordance with the ten-year management agreement effective from 1 April 2002. The Council pays the company a monthly
management fee and in 2006/07 this amounted to £10.2 million. The 2006/07 accounts of CWH have been consolidated in the Council's
Group Accounts. 

Memorandum Item - Movements in the Capital Financin g Requirement
On 1 April 2004, Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2004 came into effect. This legislation introduces a "prudential" system of controlling
capital expenditure, replacing the 1990 system of credit approvals issued by central government. Under the "prudential" system, local
authorities can determine their own capital programmes for capital investment, to enable them to deliver quality public services. The
system also incorporates a Prudential Code which sets out a framework of indicators to ensure capital investment plans are prudent,
affordable and sustainable.

One of the key indicators of affordability is the Capital Financing Requirement, which represents the Council's underlying need to borrow
for capital.
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HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCO UNT

2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000

INCOME
Dwelling rents (gross) 57,018 55,264

Non-dwelling rents (gross) Commercial property, sheds and garages 7,570 7,821

Charges for services and facilities
Leaseholder charges, heating and hot water 
and other income 14,903 14,159

Housing Revenue Account subsidy receivable                 Includes Major Repairs Allowance 13,069 14,612

Total Income 92,560 91,856

EXPENDITURE

Repairs and maintenance 21,390 24,022

Supervision and management
General & Special Management, TMO 
allowances and other expenditure 34,367 33,026

Rents, rates, taxes and other charges 514 449

Depreciation and impairment of fixed assets 12,485 11,482

Debt Management costs 84 129

Provision for bad or doubtful debts -416 348

Sums directed by the Secretary of State that are 
expenditure in accordance with UK GAAP

Contribution to General Fund for rent rebates 
under transitional arrangements 3,429 811

 
Total Expenditure 71,853 70,267

-20,707 -21,589

HRA services share of Corporate and Democratic 
Core

Regulatory audit, committee support & bank 
charges 156 116

Net Cost of HRA Services -20,551 -21,473

Gain (-) or loss on sale of HRA fixed assets Capital receipts less value of dwellings sold -2,428 -3,951

Interest payable and similar charges 13,494 12,407

Interest and investment income
Interest on HRA and MRR balances and 
mortgage interest -3,492 -3,182

Surplus (-) or deficit for the year on HRA services -12,977 -16,199

This account shows the cost of financing, managing and maintaining the Council's housing stock. The total cost is met by income from rents,
charges and Government subsidies. The management of the Council's housing stock was delegated to CityWest Homes from 1 April 2002. Their
management fee of £10.2 million has been allocated across the various activities within the Housing Revenue Account.

Net Cost of HRA Services as included in the whole a uthority Income and Expenditure 
Account
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT ON THE HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT BALANCE

2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000

-12,977 -16,199

3,717 8,005

Increase (-) or decrease in the Housing Revenue Account Balance -9,260 -8,194

Housing Revenue Account Balance brought forward -48,139 -39,945

Housing Revenue Account Balance carried forward -57,399 -48,139

Note to the Statement of Movement on the HRA Balanc e

Reversal of impairment on fixed assets -1,250  -

Reversal of gain or loss on sale of HRA fixed assets 2,428 3,951

Transfer to/from (-) Major Repairs Reserve 885 1,159

Capital expenditure funded by the Housing Revenue Account 1,654 2,895

3,717 8,005
Net additional amount required by statute to be debited or credited (-) to the HRA Balance for 
the year

Surplus (-) or deficit for the year on the HRA Income and Expenditure Account

Net additional amount required by statute to be debited or credited (-) to the HRA Balance for 
the year

Items included in the HRA Income and Expenditure Ac count but excluded from the  
movement on the HRA Balance for the year.

Items not included in the HRA Income and Expenditur e Account but included in the 
movement on HRA Balance for the year.

64



NOTES TO HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

1 Gross Rent Income

2 Rent Arrears
Arrears excluding temporary accommodation and sums due from the Department of Work & Pensions were as follows:

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
£’000 £’000

Arrears due from - current tenants 2,724 3,368
- former tenants 2,290 2,639

Total 5,014 6,007

Total as % of gross debit 8.80% 9.90%

These arrears include all charges due from tenants, i.e. rent, heating and other charges.

The provision for bad debts against rent arrears was £3.6 million at 31 March 2007 (£4.4 million at 31 March 2006).

3 Housing Subsidy
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000
Allowance for management 14,634 13,996
Allowance for maintenance 20,094 19,439
Allowance for major repairs 11,157 11,403
ALMO allowance 5,920 5,920
Charges for capital 11,075 10,944
Rental Constraint Allowance 279  -
Other items of reckonable expenditure 89 86

63,248 61,788
Less guideline rent income -50,151 -47,117
Less interest on receipts -28 -59
Total Housing Subsidy 13,069 14,612

4 Depreciation and impairment charges
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000
Depreciation - operational assets

Dwellings 11,156 11,403
                     - other land and buildings (2)Other land and buildings 79 79

11,235 11,482
Depreciation - non operational assets  -  -
Impairment  1,250  -

12,485 11,482

5 Deferred charges

6 Analysis and Funding of capital

Analysis of Payments 2006/07 2005/06 Funding 2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

HRA Works 60,729 51,947 Borrowing 6,468 41,450
Community Partnerships 163 380 Usable capital receipts 2,071 6,800
Assisted Purchase Grants 490 432 Revenue contributions 1,655 2,895

Major Repairs Reserve 42,915  -
Capital Grants 1,138 1,599
Other sources 7,135 15

61,382 52,759 61,382 52,759

This is the total rent income after allowance is made for voids. It is based on 52 rent weeks which is consistent with the substance of
tenancy agreements and subsidy arrangements. During the year an average of 1.71% of property was void; compared with 1.86% in
2005/06. These figures exclude accommodation for the homeless. Average rents were £90.36 per week in 2006/07 and £85.65 per
week in 2005/06.

No depreciation is charged on non-operational assets as it is assumed that the book value of these properties reflects an annual
revaluation of the properties. Depreciation on other operational assets comprises of mainly estate offices and depots.

Deferred charges relating to Assisted Purchase Grants are written out in the year in which they are incurred. In 2006/07 £0.5 million of
deferred charges were written out (2005/06 - £0.4 million).
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NOTES TO HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

7 Capital receipts

8 Major Repairs Reserve

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance 1 April 2006 34,457 21,815
Depreciation on fixed assets 11,235 11,482
Less: Transfer to Housing Revenue Account -79 -79
Net transfer to Major Repairs Reserve 11,156 11,403
Interest on average balance 964 1,239
Capital expenditure in 2006/07 funded from MRR (HRA works) -42,915  -
Balance 31 March 2007 3,662 34,457

9 Housing Assets at Net Book Value
31 March 2007 31 March 2006

£'000 £'000
Operational Assets

Tenanted dwellings - vacant possession value 3,503,918 2,983,253
Less reduction for use as Social Housing -2,211,150 -1,879,450

Tenanted dwellings - Social Housing value (note a) 1,292,768 1,103,803

Freehold interests 3,755 1,973
Flexible unsold 3,682 3,682
Estate halls 1,183 1,118
Garages, parking & sheds 23,314 8,277
Depots 5,025 197
Estate offices 5,852 2,661

1,335,579 1,121,711
Non Operational Assets

Shops & Offices - Commercial lettings 97,469 93,455
Car parks 6,940 7,550
Offices & Depots  (note b) 1,957 2,377
Libraries and social services facilities  (note b) 2,469 2,183

108,835 105,565

Total Property Assets 1,444,414 1,227,276
Notes

b) Mainly used for service provision by other departments of the Council.
10

10a Housing Stock
The housing stock managed by the Council was as follows:

31 March 2007 31 March 2006
no. no.

Rented stock 12,062 12,110
Sold on long leases 9,208 9,152

21,270 21,262

10b Analysis of dwellings as at 1 April 2006

Studio 1 bedroom 2 bedrooms 3 bedrooms 4+bedrooms Total
Flats

Low rise 60 327 41 20 9 457
Medium rise 930 1,796 964 943 161 4,794
High rise 764 2,263 2,139 1,025 141 6,332

1,754 4,386 3,144 1,988 311 11,583

Houses  - 11 470 208 63 752
1,754 4,397 3,614 2,196 374 12,335

Less voids -225
Tenanted stock as at 1 April 2006 12,110

A total of £7.1 million net of expenses (2005/06 - £16.2 million) was received from the sale of HRA properties, predominantly through the
Right to Buy scheme. Of this sum, £4.5 million had to be paid into the Housing capital receipts pool.

a) The net book value of dwellings is based on their existing use as social housing. As such the valuations are lower than those
reflecting vacant possessions on the open market. The difference between the vacant possession value and the balance sheet value
of dwellings within the HRA shows the economic cost to Government of providing housing at less than open market rents.

2005/062006/07
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NOTES TO HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

11 Exceptional Items and Prior Year comparatives
There are no exceptional items. 

12 Housing Repairs Account

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Income
Contribution from:

Property Holding Account  - 818
Miscellaneous income 6 47

6 866

Expenditure
Repairs - Supervision & Management 7,228 7,401

Cyclical Repairs and Maintenance:
External decorations and associated repairs 3,827 4,698
Cyclical repairs 268 409
Gas service contract 717 521
Lift maintenance contract 462 465
Miscellaneous - other planned maintenance 360 424

5,634 6,517
Responsive Repairs:

Vacant flats (incl. payments to tenants) 119 1,600
In-flat repairs 4,874 4,837
Communal repairs 2,339 2,407
Communal services 697 711
Estate works 353 414
OAP Discretionary 146 136

 8,528 10,104
Expenditure 21,390 24,022

Net amount charged to Housing Revenue Account 21,384 23,156

2006/07 2005/06

In order to meet the need for maintenance work on Housing properties, a planned maintenance programme is prepared and this account
summarises the works carried out.
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COLLECTION FUND ACCOUNT

Collection Fund Revenue Account £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
 
Expenditure
Precepts

Greater London Authority (GLA) 36,334 31,336
Collection Fund surplus/deficit (-) adjustment 169 36,503 141 31,477

City of Westminster (including levies) 46,662 44,721
Collection Fund surplus/deficit (-) adjustment 242 46,904 213 44,934

Montpelier Square - levy 20 20

83,427 76,431

Contribution to NNDR Pool (note 1) 989,385 935,748
NNDR collection allowance 2,788 2,802

Total expenditure 1,075,600 1,014,981

Income
Income from NNDR (business) ratepayers 998,497 948,946
Less: NNDR amounts written off -6,824 991,673 -8,496 940,450

 500 -1,900

Council Tax receivable (note 2) 74,295 68,895
Less: Council Tax amounts written off -2,124 -1,740

72,171 67,155

Transfers from General Fund - Council Tax Benefits 10,775 9,980
82,946 77,135

150 -700

Total income 1,075,269 1,014,985

Deficit / Surplus (-) for year 331 -4
Deficit / Surplus (-) brought forward at 1 April -454 -450

Deficit / Surplus (-) at 31 March (note 6) -123 -454

Note:
The amounts payable to the GLA and to City of Westminster in 2006/07 are after adjusting for payment of the estimated Collection Fund
surplus at 31 March 2006. 

As required by the Local Government Finance Act 1988, the Collection Fund was established from 1 April 1990. The monies paid into the
Collection Fund include Council Tax and National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR). The payments out of the Fund include the demands of
the City Council and the Greater London Authority, and the transfer of NNDR (or business rates) to the Government. The Collection Fund
is consolidated with other accounts of the City Council in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. 

The Revenue Support Grant and amounts distributed from the NNDR National Pool are paid directly to the Consolidated Revenue
Account. Any surplus or deficit on the Collection Fund relating to the Council Tax is to be distributed between billing and precepting
authorities in accordance with the Collection Fund Regulations 1992. 

In 2006/07, the Council set the Band D Council Tax at £659 (2005/06 - £618) and the Government set the business rate for the whole
country at 43.3p (2005/06 - 42.2p). 

2006/07 2005/06

Decrease/Increase (-) in provision for uncollectable 
NNDR (note 1)

Decrease/Increase(-) in provision for Council Tax non-
collection (note 2)
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NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND 

1 Income from Business Rates

The amounts included in the accounts were calculated as follows:
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-domestic rateable value (Note a)   
(approximately £2.6 million in 2006/07 and £2.6 million in 2005/06)

Multiplied by uniform business rate (43.3p in 2006/07, 42.2p in 2005/06) 1,120,732 1,076,543
Transitional Allowances adjustments (net) (Note b) -11,882 -15,613

1,108,850 1,060,930

Less:  Empty property allowances -71,459 -75,783
Allowances for Charities -34,569 -32,349
Amounts written off -6,824 -8,496
Decrease/Increase(-) in provision for uncollectable NNDR (Note c) 500 -1,900
Other allowances and adjustments (Note d) -4,325 -3,852

-116,677 -122,380
NNDR receivable 992,173 938,550

Less:  NNDR Collection Allowance -2,788 -2,802

Contribution to NNDR pool 989,385 935,748

Payment from the NNDR pool to the Council (see Income and Expenditure Account page 
27) 134,235 73,985

Notes:

2 Income from Council Tax

The amounts credited to the Collection Fund are analysed as follows:
 

 £'000    £'000   £'000   £'000

Council Tax gross charge 101,882 94,545

Less: Exemptions  (note a) -7,665 -7,166
         Status discount  (note b) -8,037 -7,380
         Unoccupied property (note c) -1,081 -1,100
         Disabled Allowances -29 -24

-16,812 -15,670
85,070 78,875

Less: Amounts written off  (note d) -2,124 -1,740
82,946 77,135

Less: Council Tax Benefits allowed  (note e) -10,775 -9,980

Council Tax receivable 72,171 67,155

Notes:

Under the arrangements for the National Non-Domestic Rates (NNDR), the Council collects non-domestic rates for its area based on
rateable values multiplied by a uniform rate. The total amount less certain reliefs and deductions is paid into a central pool. The Council
receives a share of the pool based on a standard amount per head of local population. This payment from the NNDR pool is paid direct to
the Income and Expenditure Account (Page 27).

a.  Includes the effect of the 2005 Revaluation and also the effect of back-dated reductions to Rateable Values.
b. The change in transitional allowances reflects the arrangements introduced by the Government for phasing in the effects of the 2005
Revaluation. For properties subject to Transitional Arrangements, there were limits on the increase or decrease in NNDR payable.

c. The cumulative provision for NNDR uncollectable debts is £20.7 million at 31 March 2007 (£21.2 million at 31 March 2006).

2006/07 2005/06

d. Other allowances and adjustments include partly occupied properties, hardship relief and interest paid on amounts refunded.

a . Exemptions mainly comprise student households, diplomatic exemptions, properties under repair or empty and unfurnished and Armed
Forces occupation. 

b. Status discount is mainly discounts for single occupancy and students. 
c. This includes properties categorised as second homes. The Council decided to reduce the Council Tax discounts for second homes
and for long term empty properties from 50% to 10% from 1 April 2004.

d. Cumulative provision for uncollectable Council Tax at 31 March 2007 is £3.6 million  (31 March 2006 - £3.8 million).
e. Council Tax reductions are made in accordance with Government regulations for persons on lower incomes (Council Tax benefits).

2006/07 2005/06
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NOTES TO THE COLLECTION FUND 

3 Council Tax Base
The Council Tax base was calculated as follows:

Distribution of 
Properties by 

Band

Equivalent 
Band D 

Properties

Distribution of 
Properties by 

Band

Equivalent 
Band D 

Properties
Band A 1,557 862 1,484 793
Band B 6,153 3,800 6,107 3,748
Band C 15,574 11,548 15,470 11,433
Band D 21,721 18,388 21,626 18,275
Band E 21,051 22,028 20,869 21,819
Band F 15,539 19,278 15,316 18,967
Band G 21,035 30,309 20,846 29,875
Band H 13,666 24,355 13,587 24,097

116,296 130,568 115,305 129,006

4 Council Tax Requirements

 2006/07 2005/06
      £       £

City of Westminster 370 363
Greater London Authority 289 255
Total 659 618

5 Council Tax Bands
The Council Tax at each valuation band, before any applicable discounts, was as follows:

Band Range of property values Multiplier 2006/07 2005/06
£ £

A Up to £40,000   6/9 439 412
B £40,001 to £52,000   7/9 513 481
C £52,001 to £68,000   8/9 586 549
D £68,001 to £88,000 1 659 618
E £88,001 to £120,000 11/9 805 755
F £120,001 to £160,000 13/9 952 893
G £160,001 to £320,000 15/9 1,098 1,030
H Over £320,001 18/9 1,318 1,236

6 2006/07 Surplus  

31 March 2007 31 March 2006 Movement
  £’000     £’000     £’000

Westminster City Council - surplus 69 266 -197
Greater London Authority - surplus 54 188 -134
Surplus 123 454 -331

2006/07 2005/06

For properties in Montpelier Square, the Band D Council Tax for 2006/07 was £879 (i.e. £659 plus £220 for their Garden Committee
requirements) (2005/06 £848 i.e. £618 plus £230).

The net surplus at 31 March 2007 is to be shared between Westminster and the Greater London Authority as follows:

The Council Tax requirements of Westminster and the Greater London Authority (GLA) are shown below. The GLA requirement includes
the budgets of its four functional bodies i.e. the Metropolitan Police Authority, the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority,
Transport for London and the London Development Agency. In 2006/07, the GLA requirement also included a £20 contribution from
Council Tax payers towards the delivery of the 2012 Olympic and Paralympic Games.

The 2006/07 Council Tax base after allowing for adjustments for non collection and a contribution for Ministry of Defence dwellings, was
125,894 Band D equivalents  (2005/06 - 123,071).

The equivalent Band D properties calculation is after allowing for relevant discounts and applying the multiplier (see note 5 below).
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PARKING PLACES RESERVE

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Balance brought forward at 1 April  - -2,263

Income
  

Surplus from on-street parking -33,285 -25,453

Expenditure

Allowable contributions to revenue expenditure
 - Off-street parking

- Residents' subsidy at managed car parks  1,889 1,800
- Rents payable 2,467 -1,041
- NNDR / water rates 4,341 2,672
- Management fees 4,122 4,384
- Landlord maintenance expenses 770 577
- Capital financing costs 122 324
- Repairs & maintenance 799 935
- Car parks - other operating expenditure 2,552 2,713

 - Highways and traffic improvement schemes 6,990 7,178
 - Street lighting 3,122 3,775
 - Street trees and hanging baskets 758 796
 - Highway site open spaces 156 134
 - Street Cleansing and Winter Treatment of Roads 950 1,040
 - Cross River Partnership 89 76
 - Paddington Special Policy Area 174 157
 - Planning - Rail Bills 71 65
 - Air quality and pollution monitoring  - 282
 - Concessionary fares & taxicard scheme 7,455 7,098
 - Home to school transport 1,305 1,289
 38,132  34,254

Shortfall in available funding met from the general fund -4,847 -6,538

Balance carried forward at 31 March  -  -

 

This account holds the accumulated surpluses relating to on-street parking facilities. Under the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984, the
application of any surplus from on-street parking is limited to meeting the cost of providing and maintaining parking facilities, highways
improvement schemes and public passenger transport services. Interest income relating to the Reserve balance is credited to the General
Fund. 

2006/07 2005/06
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PENSION FUND

Introduction

Accounting Policies

The Pension Fund is a funded, defined benefits scheme established in accordance with statute, which provides for the payment of benefits to
former employees. These benefits include retirement pensions, widows' pensions, and early payment of benefits on medical grounds and
payment of death benefits where death occurs either in service or in retirement. The Fund is financed by contributions from employees, from
employers and by investment income. The benefits payable are based on the final year's pay and the number of years of eligible service.
Pensions are increased in line with the Retail Price Index.

The objective of the Pension Fund's financial statements generally is to provide information about the financial position, performance and
financial adaptability of the Fund. They show the results of the stewardship of management, that is the accountability of management for the
resources entrusted to it and the disposition of it's assets at the period end. The items that are required to be excluded by regulations are
liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits in the future.

The Council has delegated the investment arrangements of the scheme to the Superannuation Investments Committee who decide on the
investment policy most suitable to meet the liabilities of the Scheme and the ultimate responsibility for the investment policy lies with it. The
Committee is made up of six elected representatives of the Council who each have voting rights.  

The Committee reports to the Council and has fully delegated authority to make investment decisions. The Committee obtains and
considers advice from the Director of Finance, and as necessary from the Pension Fund's appointed actuary (including specific investment
advice), investment managers and advisors.

The investment portfolio is managed by external fund managers. In 2006/07 five specialist fund managers took over from the existing two
managers, Henderson Global Investors Ltd and Aberdeen Asset Management plc.

The responsibilities of the managers are set out in detailed investment management agreements, which include performance benchmarks.
The performance of the managers is reviewed on a regular quarterly basis at meetings of the Superannuation Investments Committee.

A  separate annual report is published and is made available to all members of the Pension Fund.

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 2 of Recommended Accounting Practice of the Pension
SORP and the 2006 SORP issued by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. The accounts summarise the transactions
and net assets of the fund. They do not take account of future liabilities to pay pensions and other benefits after the period end. 

Two of the managers have a UK equity mandate, two have a Global equity mandate and one has a Bond mandate. The managers have
discretion to buy and sell investments within the constraints set by the Council's Superannuation Investments Committee.

Details of Committee Membership of the scheme are shown in note 1. There are ten external bodies who have been admitted to the Fund by
admission agreements. Details of these scheduled and admitted bodies are shown in note 6. 

Benefits payable and refund of contributions are brought into the accounts on the basis of valid claims approved during the year. Transfer
values are those sums paid by, or received from, other pension schemes and included in the accounts on the basis of the date paid for
transfers to or from other Local Government schemes, the date of calculation for other public sector schemes, the date on which agreements
were concluded for private sector schemes.

Investment income (e.g. dividends and interest on Government Stocks) is accounted for on an accruals basis. Foreign income has been
translated into sterling at the date of the transaction. Foreign income due at the year-end has been translated into sterling at the rate ruling at
31 March 2007. 

Acquisition costs of assets are included within the historic cost of the assets. Listed investments are shown in the Pension Fund accounts at
market value, determined by Stock Exchange prices at the balance sheet date. Managed funds are valued at the price quoted by their
respective managers on the last trading day of the year, which is determined by the market value of the underlying investments.

The cost of administration, fund managers' fees, performance measurement fees and valuation fees are charged directly to the fund.
Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) paid by scheme members are not included within the accounts as these are managed
independently of the fund by specialist AVC fund providers.
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PENSION FUND

FUND ACCOUNT Note 2006/07 2005/06 Variation
£'000 £'000

Dealings with members, employers and others directl y involved in the scheme

Income

Contributions receivable 2 21,035 16,367 4,668

Transfers in 4 5,217 6,710 -1,493

 26,252 23,077 3,175   
Less Expenditure

Benefits payable 5 26,311 25,338 973

Payments to and on account of leavers 7 5,590 9,457 -3,867

Less: Administrative expenses borne by the scheme 8 866 774 92

32,767 35,569 -2,802

Net additions / withdrawals(-) from dealings with m embers -6,515 -12,492 5,977

Returns on Investments

Investment income 9 23,536 17,952 5,584

Change in market value of investments 10 5,914 113,210 -107,296

Investment management expenses 11 -2,557 -1,065 -1,492

Net returns on investments 26,893 130,097 -103,204
   
Net increase /decrease(-) in the fund during the ye ar 20,378 117,605 -97,227

Add: Opening net assets of the scheme 643,711 526,106 117,605

Closing net assets of the scheme 664,089 643,711 20,378

NET ASSETS STATEMENT 31 March 31 March
2007 2006 Variation
£'000 £'000 £'000

Investments assets 10 636,638 630,787 5,851

Net current assets or liabilities (-) 12 27,451 12,924 14,527

664,089 643,711 14,527
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NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND

1 Membership

Membership at 31 March: 2007 2006
Total Contributors 4,161 4,013
Of which: City of Westminster 3,261 3,226
Of which: Admitted/Scheduled Bodies Total 900 787

Pensioners (including dependants) 4,645 4,592

Former Members entitled to Deferred Benefits 4,673 4,629

2 Contributions receivable
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000
Employers

normal 12,283 9,226
special 1,312 450
additional 663 305

Members
normal 6,680 6,315
additional contributions 97 71

21,035 16,367

3 Contributing Bodies

2006/07 2005/06
£’000 £’000

Administering Body
Westminster 15,046 12,740

Scheduled Bodies
Housing Corporation 3,833 2,282
CityWest Homes 934 753

Admitted Bodies
Age Concern (Westminster) 36 35
Elonex  -  -
Housing 21 459 390
Independent Housing Ombudsman 529 163
Queens Park Family Service Unit (in liquidation)  - 4
Paddington Academy 90  -
Westminster Academy 108  -

21,035 16,367

4 Transfers in
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Group transfers in from other schemes  -  -
Individual transfers in from other schemes 5,217 6,710

5,217 6,710

5 Benefits payable
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Pensions 22,908 21,777
Commutations and lump sum retirement benefits 3,132 2,848
Lump sum death benefits 271 713

26,311 25,338

Employers and employees contributions to the fund were received from the following bodies which participate in the City of Westminster
Pension Fund.
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6 Analysis of Pension Fund Benefits

2006/07 2005/06
£’000 £’000

Administering Body
Westminster 22,825 22,043

Scheduled Bodies
Housing Corporation 2,798 2,744
CityWest Homes 226 147

Admitted Bodies
Age Concern (Westminster) 66 11
Association of London Government * 68 58
Capital Careers *  38 37
Elonex * 13 12
Housing 21 170 197
Independent Housing Ombudsman 58 41
Institute of Public Finance * 18 18
Queens Park Family Service Unit (in liquidation) 31 30

26,311 25,338

*these bodies did not have any contributors to the Fund in 2005/06.

7 Payments to and on account of leavers
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Refunds of contributions 39 34
Group transfers to other schemes  -  -
Individual transfers to other schemes 5,551 9,423

5,590 9,457

8 Administrative expenses borne by the scheme
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Administration and processing - charges by administering authority 513 456
Actuarial fees 40 36
London Pensions Fund Authority administrative charges 313 282

866 774

9 Investment income
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Income from fixed interest securities 9,732 4,834
Dividends from equities 13,981 14,397
Income from index-linked securities  -  -
Interest received/paid (-) on cash deposits -8 -70
Other 943  -

24,648 19,161
less: Irrecoverable taxation -1,112 -1,209
Total investment income 23,536 17,952

10 Investments Value at Purchases Sales Change Value at
01.04.06 at cost proceeds in market 31.03.07value

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Fixed interest securities 129,964 641,997 722,600 -5,720 43,641
Equities 500,754 1,355,610 1,275,064 11,634 592,934
Loans to City of Westminster 69  - 6  - 63

630,787 1,997,607 1,997,670 5,914 636,638

Pensions and Grants payable in 2006/07 are analysed between the pensioners of the following bodies that have participated in the City of
Westminster Pension Fund.

The change in market value of investments during the year comprises all increases and decreases in the market value of investments held
at any time during the year, including profits and losses realised on sale of investments during the year.
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Analysis of Investments
2006/07 2005/06

Fixed interest securities £'000 £'000
UK public sector quoted 58,761 57,952
UK corporate sector quoted 55,745 63,279
Overseas corporate sector quoted 17,854  -
Overseas public sector  - 8,642
Money Market Instruments  - 91

132,360 129,964
Equities
UK quoted 231,134 294,849
UK unquoted 13,297 194
Overseas quoted 259,783 205,711
Overseas unquoted  -  -

504,214 500,754
Index-linked securities
UK quoted  -  -

Loans
Loans made by the Pension Fund to the City of Westminster 63 69

11 Investment management expenses
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000

Management fees 2,534 973
Stamp duty, commission etc. 23 92

2,557 1,065

12 Current assets and liabilities
2006/07 2005/06

£'000 £'000
Assets
Contributions due 425 292
Transfer values receivable 36 58
Cash and Liquid Assets in hands of Investment Managers* 24,270 8,469
Other  -  -
Cash in hand 4,269 4,979

29,000 13,798
Liabilities
Transfer values payable -1 -243
Transfer values 'out' to Vertex  -  -
Lump sum pension benefits payable -407 -369
Investment Management Fees due -1,117 -237
Amounts due on settlement of outstanding trades by Fund Manager  -  -
Other (including AVCs to be paid over) -24 -25
Cash overdrawn (-)  -  -

-1,549 -874

Net current assets and liabilities 27,451 12,924

Notes to Assets and Liabilities
* Includes Cash & Liquid Assets in hands of Investment Managers, Accrued Dividends Receivable & Forward Exchange Deposits.
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13 Investment Management and Performance

Investment managers:
£'million % £'million %

Henderson Global Investors Ltd.  -  - 318 50
Aberdeen Asset Management plc.  -  - 321 50
Insight 132 21  -  -
Alliance Bernstein 131 21  -  -
Newton 132 21  -  -
Majedie 121 19  -  -
State Street Global Advises 120 18  -  -

636 100 639 100
 

14 Related Party Transactions 
Related parties are:-
i)  The Pension Fund investment managers (see note 13).

iii)  The admitted & scheduled bodies (see note 6).  

15 Statement of Investment Principles

16 Actuarial Position

The key assumptions employed in calculating the employer's contributions were:- 

Key financial assumptions 
Current valuation Previous valuation

% pa % pa

Price Inflation 2.9 2.8
Pay increases 4.4 (1) 3.8 (1)
Pensions increase in excess of GMPs 2.9 2.3
Discount rate for active members whilst in service 6.2 6.3 (2)
Discount rate for members not in service but before retirement 5.2 6.3 (2)
Discount rate for members after retirement 5.2 5.3 (2)
Investment return on bond type assets over the period 
to the next valuation 5.2 N/A
Investment return on equity and property assets over 
the period to the next valuation 7.7 N/A

(1)  An additional allowance is made for pay increases resulting from service and seniority.
(2)  6.55% p.a. used when calculating the future service contribution rate.

The latest Statement of Investment Principles for the Pension Fund was approved by the Council’s Superannuation Investments
Committee on 4 July 2006 and was published on 5 July 2006. Copies of this Statement are available on the City Council's website or can
be obtained from the Finance Department upon request.

The latest triennial actuarial valuation was carried out during 2004/05 by the Fund's actuaries, Hewitt, Bacon & Woodrow Limited, who
carried out a full valuation of the fund at 31 March 2004 under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1997. The market
value of the Fund's assets at the date of valuation was £500.4 million. The valuation showed a past service deficit of £216.0 million
corresponding to a funding target ratio of 71%. The actuarial method used is known as the Projected Unit Method of valuation.

The investment portfolio is managed by external fund managers. In 2006/07 five specialist fund managers took over from the existing two
managers, Henderson Global Investors Ltd and Aberdeen Asset Management plc.

For the period since inception of the new fund management arrangements in June 2006, the return has been 11.2% compared with a
benchmark of 12.7%.

Two of the managers have a UK equity mandate, two have a Global equity mandate and one has a Bond mandate. The managers have
discretion to buy and sell investments within the constraints set by the Council's Superannuation Investments Committee.

Investment management expenses were £2.6 million in 2006/07 (£1.1 million in 2005/06). Fund managers are paid a fixed fee based on a
percentage of the value of investments managed with an adjustment of the fee for performance.

2006/07 2005/06

ii) The City of Westminster (the administering authority). Loans made by the Pension Fund to the City of Westminster were £63,000 at 31
March 2007 (£69,000 at 31 March 2006).

During the year the total value of the Fund rose from £643.7 million on 31 March 2006 to £664.1 million on 31 March 2007.
Performance of the fund is measured in relation to benchmarks, specific to each of the different mandates under which the managers
operate.

77



NOTES TO THE PENSION FUND

17 Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs)

The Actuaries have agreed that increases to employer contribution rates will be stepped over a maximum of 5 years. In practice, the rates
will be reviewed at the next valuation due, as at 31 March 2007. The contribution rates for the next two years will be 11.1% in 2006/07 and
12.4% in 2007/08. These contribution rates have been calculated at levels to increase the funding ratio from the current 71% to 100% over
30 years, in accordance with the Funding Strategy Statement for the Fund approved in February 2005.

Since the valuation at 31 March 2004, the Pension Fund’s assets have risen. However, note 50(iv) to the Core Financial Statements
indicates a deficiency in the fund of £213.2 million at 31 March 2007 (2005/06 - £197.8 million), measured in accordance with the
requirements of FRS 17.

Additional Voluntary Contributions (AVCs) paid by scheme members of £87,000 in 2006/07 (£50,000 in 2005/06), are not included within
the accounts, as these are paid over and managed independently of the fund by specialist AVC fund providers, i.e. Scottish Equitable and
Prudential. These AVCs are invested separately from the fund in the form of individual insurance policies securing additional benefits on a
money purchase basis, for those members electing to pay additional voluntary contributions. Members participating in this arrangement
each received an annual statement made up to 31 December confirming the amounts held to their account and the movements in the
year. At 31 March 2007 the total value of these AVCs was £1.0 million (£0.9 million at 31March 2006).
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GROUP INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

Introduction

Expenditure on Services Notes 2006/07 2006/07 2006/07 2005/06

3
Gross 

Expenditure Income
Net 

Expenditure
Net 

Expenditure
Continuing Services £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Central Services 46,952 35,850 11,102 9,053
Court Services 733 538 195 186
Cultural, Planning and Environmental 123,822 34,417 89,405 83,864
Education 163,066 143,854 19,212 107,954
Highways, Roads and Transport 71,879 21,604 50,275 25,591
Housing Services 1 290,912 302,546 -11,634 5,217
Social Services 145,130 37,996 107,134 100,333

Costs of General Fund services 842,494 576,805 265,689 332,198
Corporate and Democratic Core 8,095 2 8,093 7,683
Non-distributed costs 3,455  - 3,455 3,586

Total-General Fund 854,044 576,807 277,237 343,467
Street Parking 40,922 74,207 -33,285 -25,453

Costs of all Continuing Services 894,966 651,014 243,952 318,014

Profit on disposal of fixed assets 2  - 732 -732 -4,899

Net Cost of Services 894,966  651,746  243,220 313,115
Levies  2,501 2,632
Private Finance Initiative Special Grant   -410 -410
Interest payable  14,276 13,622
Payment to Housing Pooled Capital Receipts  4,520 6,191
Interest and investment income  -19,778 -16,131
Taxation of group entities  21 -303
Pensions interest cost and expected return on pensions assets   1,544 4,207

Net operating expenditure before exceptional items 245,894 322,923
Exceptional items -2,534 -22,033

Net expenditure 243,360 300,890

Transfer to/from (-) Collection Fund -242 -213
Demands on Collection Fund -46,663 -44,721
Revenue Support Grant -25,766 -163,560
LA Business Rate Growth Incentive Scheme Grant -12,213 -3,805
Distribution of London Residuary Body surpluses -22 -33
Distribution from non-domestic rate pool -134,235 -73,985

-219,141 -286,317

Surplus (-)/Deficit for the year 24,219 14,573

The summarised group financial statements presented on the following pages show the consolidated financial position of the authority and it's
interest in CityWest Homes Ltd. There are no significant effects due to group consolidation.
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2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000

-7,502 -17,955

 -  -

Subsidiaries 577 363

Associates  -  -

Joint ventures  -  -

Group Account surplus or deficit for the year -6,925 -17,592

Group Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losse s

2006/07 2005/06
£'000 £'000

Net surplus or deficit for the year 6,925 17,592

Surplus or deficit on revaluation of fixed assets 349,551 -153,653

Actuarial gains and losses on pension fund assets and liabilities -7,130 25,403

Any other gains or losses recognised in the STRGL -66,020 -78,075

Total recognised gains and losses for the year 283,326 -188,733

Reconciliation of the Single Entity Surplus or Deficit for t he Year to the Group Surplus or
Deficit

Surplus (-) or deficit on the authority's single entity Income and Expenditure Account for the
year

Less: subsidiary and associate dividend income and any other distributions from group
entities included in the single entity surplus or deficit on the Income and Expenditure
Account 

Add: surplus (-) or deficit arising from other entities included in the group accounts
analysed into the amounts attributable to:
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GROUP BALANCE SHEET

Note 31 March 2007 31 March 2006
         £'000          £'000

Fixed Assets 
Intangible Assets 4 134  -
Tangible Fixed Assets
  Operational assets  
  - Council dwellings 1,444,414 1,227,276
  - Other land and buildings 297,366 328,948
  - Vehicles, plant and equipment 36,083 29,347
  - Infrastructure assets 157,321 147,140
  - Community assets 9,021 8,211
  Non-operational assets
  - Investment Properties 64,327 56,693
  - Surplus Properties 147,217 21,897

2,155,883 1,819,512
Loans made for the purchase and improvement of property  - 634
Other long term debtors 3,457  -
Long-term Investments 262,655 277,516
Total Fixed Assets 2,421,995 2,097,662

Current Assets
Deposits and other investments 109,300 62,800
Stock and work in progress 1,110 949
Landfill Allowances 31 708
Debtors - amounts due within one year 88,805 112,597
Payments in advance 1,221 1,614
Cash at Bank 988 1,337
Cash at Bank - (Paddington Bridge LTVA Account) 3,637 4,011
Petty cash holdings 503 537

205,595 184,553

Less Current Liabilities
Short term loans outstanding 872 9,554
Bank overdraft 2,780 3,924
Creditors 116,049 107,627
Landfill Allowances Liability to DEFRA 19 382
Deposits and receipts in advance 104,401 96,247
Other credit balances 96 62

224,217 217,796

Net Current Assets -18,622  -33,243

Total Assets less Current Liabilities 2,403,373 2,064,419

Long-term borrowing 229,915 210,764
Government grants-deferred account 156,830 134,694
Deferred capital income - sale of council dwellings 411 569
Provisions 17,463 21,678

404,619 367,705

Net Assets before Pensions Asset or Liability 1,998,754 1,696,714
Asset related to Defined Benefit Pension schemes -  -
Liability related to Defined Benefit Pension schemes -267,480 -248,750
Net Assets 1,731,274 1,447,964

Balances and Reserves:
Fixed Asset Restatement Account 1,182,450 911,663
Capital Financing Account 558,016 537,759
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve 2,057 15,749
Pensions Reserve -265,720 -247,530
Housing - Major Repairs Reserve 3,662 34,457
Capital Grants and Contributions Unapplied 98,749 64,681
Funds, balances and reserves
   General Fund - balance at the end of the year 66,864 59,362
   General Fund LMS - earmarked balances for schools 4,258 1,285
   Housing Revenue Account 57,399 48,139
   Direct Service Organisations Surpluses Account 173 168
   Housing Investment Reserve  - 7,146
   Other reserves (excluding trust funds) 23,962 14,907
   Collection Fund balance - Westminster City Council  69 266
   Group Income and Expenditure Reserve -665 -88
Group Balances and Reserves 1,731,274 1,447,964
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GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Note 2006/07 2005/06
 

£'000         £'000 £'000         £'000

Revenue Activities Net Cash Inflow(-) / Outflow 5 -60,470 -30,512

Servicing of Finance and Returns on Investments
Cash Outflows
 Interest Paid 15,937 16,015   

Cash Inflows
 Interest received -19,980 -17,545
Net Cash Inflow from Servicing of Finance -4,043 -1,530

Taxation 21 33

Capital Activities
Cash Outflows
 Purchase of fixed assets 131,482 119,407
 Deferred Charges 5,475 9,883
Long-term Loans 3,000  -
 Purchase of long-term investments 62,900 19,000

202,857 148,290
Cash Inflows  
 Sale of fixed assets 28,494 57,763
 Capital grants received 11,803 14,447
 Other capital cash receipts 56,829 35,765

97,126 107,975
105,731 40,315

Net cash inflow(-) / outflow before financing 41,239 8,306

Management of Liquid Resources
 Net increase / decrease (-) in short term deposits 14,850 34,265
 Net increase / decrease (-) in other liquid resources -46,911 -32,061 -732 33,533

Financing
Cash Outflows
 Repayments of amounts borrowed 28,582 30,109

Cash Inflows
 New loans raised 20,000 40,000
 New short term loans 18,250 21,750

38,250 61,750
-9,668 -31,641

Increase(-) / Decrease in cash and cash equivalents  -490 10,198
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NOTES TO THE GROUP ACCOUNTS

1 The operating expenditure and income of the subsidiary has been included within Housing Services.

2

3

4 No goodwill arose in respect of the subsidiary when the reporting authority set up the company.

5 Reconciliation of revenue cash flow

£’000 £’000 £’000 £’000

Surplus(-)/Deficit - Consolidated Revenue Account -7,502 -17,955
Surplus(-)/Deficit - Collection Fund 331 -4
Surplus(-)/Deficit - Housing Revenue Account -9,260 -8,194
Surplus(-)/Deficit - On Street Parking -33,285 -25,453
Surplus(-)/Deficit - CWH Operating loss 553 634

-49,163 -50,972
Less: Interest paid -15,937 -16,015

Contributions to provisions and reserves -30,240 -23,708
Contribution to capital outlay / principal repayments -2,004 -5,465

-48,181 -45,188

Depreciation -99 -131
-12,101 -3,960

Decrease(-) / Increase in stock and work in progress 161 -5
Decrease(-) / Increase in payments in advance -410 398

-109,793 -99,858
Add back: Interest received 19,873  17,545
 Payments to Capital Receipts Pool 5,217 6,934
 Contributions from provisions and reserves 66,239 48,652

91,329 73,131
-33,399 3,001
-8,292 -7,112

-315 326
-60,470  -30,512

6 Acquisitions during the period

There were no acquisitions of subsidiary entities during the period.

7 The Group Accounts have been re-stated for 2005/06 in accordance with the requirements of the SORP 2006.

 Increase / Decrease (-) in debtors
 Increase(-) / Decrease in deposits and receipts in advance
 Landfill Tax asset
 Revenue Activities Net Cash Inflow (-) / Outflow

Decrease / Increase (-) in creditors

Profits on the disposal of assets have not been included in the income of the relevant individual services, as the assets had been
declared surplus to requirements. They have therefore been disclosed separately.

Capital grants amortised have been included in the relevant individual services rather than being disclosed as other operating income.

2006/07 2005/06
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COMPARISON OF PERFORMANCE PLAN ESTIMATES AND OUTTUR N 2006/07

Cabinet Member/Expenditure Estimate Outturn Variation Main reasons for variations

£’000 £’000 £’000
General Fund
Health and Adult Social Services 78,079 81,334 3,255 Mainly arising from a prior year adjustments for Grant re Asylum

Seekers and additional activity for Mental Health and Learning
and Physical Disability.

Children's Services 57,178 56,441 -737 Reduced contribution to the North Westminster School deficit
offset by additional Family Support costs.

Community Protection & Licencing 19,268 18,861 -407 Delays in recruitment of Enforcement Licensing staff.

Planning 8,032 8,174 142 Special events - income shortfall.

Economic Development and  Transport -15,533 -17,057 -1,524 Reduction of bad debt provision for penalty charge notices
(windfall).

Finance and Support Services -37,402 -42,818 -5,416 Underspend on debt charges due to slippage on capital
programme; additional interest earnings from higher invested
balances; DSG funding shortfall and NNDR refund net of fees
including windfalls.

Housing (General Fund) 25,576 18,256 -7,320 Reduced rental payments and rebates and improved rent
collection.

Customer & Community Serrvices 13,580 13,866 286 Reduced revenue from BT wireless agreement and NNDR
savings on leisure centres.

Street Environment 59,749 60,277 528 Street Management - planned savings from merging street-based
client teams not delivered because of overlap with the Integrated
Street Management re-organisation.

Contingency 2,489  - -2,489 A contingency sum of £5.5 million was included within the
original budget to cover unforseen items and additional costs.
The variation represents the balance which was not allocated as
approved budget variations during the year.

Other General Fund Items 2,091 2,069 -22 Other General Fund Items includes the cost of Levies and PFI
grant income.

213,107 199,403 -13,704
 

Cabinet Member/Expenditure Estimate Outturn Variation Main reasons for variations

£’000 £’000 £’000

Housing Revenue Account -9,190 -9,260 -70 Additional interest on balances.

Parking Places Reserve Account  -  -  - This account holds the accumulated surpluses relating to on-
street parking facilities. Under the Road Traffic Regulation Act
1984, the application of any surplus from on-street parking is
limited to meeting the cost of providing and maintaining parking
facilities, highways improvement schemes and public passenger
transport services. In the financial year 2006/07, the cost of
providing these services exceeded the income from on-street
parking facilities.

The 2006/07 original spending estimates for the Performance Plan (General Fund) were set at £213.1 million (including contingencies). The
attached table details the reasons for outturn performance of £199.4 million against the plan.
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS
Balances

The surplus monies in a fund at the end of the financial year, which runs from 1 April to 31 March.

Business Unit

A Business Unit is an internal service centre which agrees to provide services under a Service Specification
developed by the Client.  The Business Unit's performance against the specification is monitored by the Client,
similar to external contracts.

Capital Charge

A charge to service revenue accounts to reflect the cost of fixed assets used in the provision of services.

Capital Expenditure

Payments for the acquisition, construction, enhancement or replacement of assets such as land, buildings, roads
and computer equipment.

Capital Financing

The annual repayments of principal and interest on monies borrowed to meet capital expenditure.

Capital Receipts

Income received from the sale of land, buildings and equipment.

Collection Fund

This account shows the income due from NNDR and Council Tax payers and the sums paid to the national NNDR
pool and to the precepting authority.

Community Assets

Assets that the local authority intends to hold in perpetuity, that have no determinable useful life, and that may have
restrictions on their disposal e.g. parks and open spaces.

Contingent Asset
A contingent asset is a possible asset arising from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the City Council’s control.

Contingent Liability

A contingent liability is either a possible obligation arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the City Council’s control, or a present
obligation where it is not probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Corporate and Democratic Core
The corporate and democratic core comprises all activities which local authorities engage in specifically because
they are elected, multi-purpose authorities.  The cost of these activities are thus over and above those which would
be incurred by a series of independent, single purpose, nominated bodies managing the same services.  It includes
corporate management and democratic representation and management.

Creditors
Amount of money owed by the City Council at 31 March, for goods received or services rendered but not yet paid
for.

Debtors
Amount of money owed to the City Council at 31 March, for goods and services provided by the Council but income
not yet received.

Deferred Charges
Expenditure which may properly be capitalised, but which does not give rise to tangible assets.  Examples are
renovation grants and capital grants to other organisations.
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS

Defined Benefit Scheme
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme other than a defined contribution scheme.  Usually, the scheme rules
define the benefits independently of the contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the
investments of the scheme.

Defined Contribution Scheme
A pension or other retirement benefit scheme into which an employer pays regular contributions fixed as an amount
or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme
does not have sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior
periods.

Depreciation
The measure of the wearing out, consumption or other reduction in the useful economic life of a fixed asset.

Direct Service Organisation
A unit operating within the Council's responsibility which has won a competitive tendering exercise to provide
services to the Council.

Exceptional Items
Material items which derive from events or transactions that fall within the ordinary activities of the authority, and
which need to be disclosed separately by virtue of their size or incidence to give fair presentation of the accounts.

Fixed Assets
Tangible assets that yield benefits to the local authority and the services it provides for a period of more than the
year.

General Fund
This is the main revenue account for the City Council. The net cost of all services paid for from Council Tax and
Central Government support is charged to this fund.

Housing Revenue Account
The Housing Revenue Account reflects a statutory obligation to account separately for local authority housing
provision, as defined in particular in Schedule 4 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.  It shows the
major elements of housing revenue expenditure – maintenance, administration, rent rebates – and capital asset
charges, and how these are met by rents, subsidy and other income.

Impairment
Impairment is a permanent reduction in the valuation of an asset, caused either by a consumption of economic
benefits (e.g. obsolescence, damage or adverse change in statutory environment), or a general fall in prices.

Infrastructure Assets
A class of fixed assets whose life is of indefinite length and which are not usually capable of being sold. Examples
of infrastructure assets are highways and footpaths.

Levies
Payments made to the London Pensions Fund Authority, the Environment Agency and the Lee Valley Regional
Park Authority.

National Non-Domestic Rate
Central Government took over the responsibility for setting the non-domestic rate on 1 April 1990.  Accordingly, the
tax is now known as the National Non-Domestic Rate or the NNDR.  Local authorities are responsible for the billing
and collection of the tax. The proceeds from the tax are pooled and redistributed to local authorities by Central
Government by reference to the resident population of each area.

Net Book Value
The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, i.e. their historical cost or current value, less
the cumulative amount provided for depreciation.

Net Realisable Value
The open market value of the asset in its existing use (or open market value in the case of non-operational assets),
less the expenses to be incurred in realising the assets.
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS

Non-Distributed Costs
Non-distributed costs is defined as comprising:

i) retirement benefit costs (past service costs, settlements and curtailments)
(NB: Current service pension costs is included in the total costs of services)

ii) the costs associated with unused shares of IT facilities
iii) the costs of shares of other long-term unused but unrealisable assets.

Non-Operational Assets
Fixed assets held by a local authority but not directly occupied, used or consumed in the delivery of services.
Examples of non-operational assets are investment properties and assets that are surplus to requirements, pending
sale or redevelopment.

Operational Assets
Fixed assets held and occupied, used or consumed by the local authority, in the direct delivery of those services for
which it has either a statutory or discretionary responsibility.

Parking Places Reserve Account
The Parking Places Reserve Account holds the accumulated surpluses relating to on-street parking facilities.  The
Council uses this as a source of funding for parking, public transport subsidies and highway improvements under
the restrictions laid down in the Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984.

Precepts
These are demands made upon the Collection Fund, by the Greater London Authority, for monies which it requires
to finance the services it provides.

Projected Unit Method – Pension Fund Valuation
An accrued benefits valuation method in which the scheme liabilities make allowance for projected earnings.  An
accrued benefits valuation method is a valuation method in which the scheme liabilities at the valuation date relate
to:

i) the benefits for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i.e. individuals who have ceased to be active members
but are entitled to benefits payable at a later date) and their dependants, allowing where appropriate for
future increases, and

ii) the accrued benefits for members in service on the valuation date.

Provisions
Monies set aside for liabilities and losses which are likely to be incurred but where the amounts or dates on which
they will arise are uncertain at this stage.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI)
A Government initiative that enables authorities to carry out capital projects, through partnership with the private
sector.

Prudential Code
Since 1 April 2004, local authorities have been subject to a self-regulatory “prudential system” of capital controls.
This gives authorities freedom to determine how much of their capital investment they can afford to fund by
borrowing. The objectives of the code are to ensure that local authorities capital investment plans are affordable,
prudent and sustainable, with Councils being required to set specific Prudential indicators.

Related Parties
Two or more parties are related parties when at any time during the financial period:

i) one party has direct or indirect control of the other party; or
ii) the parties are subject to common control from the same source; or
iii) one party has influence over the financial and operational policies of the other party, to an extent that the

other party might be inhibited from pursuing at all times its own separate interests; or
iv) the parties, in entering a transaction, are subject to influence from the same source, to such an extent that

one of the parties to the transaction has subordinated its own separate interests.

Advice from CIPFA is that related parties to a local authority include Central Government, bodies precepting or
levying demands on the Council Tax, members and chief officers of the authority and its pension fund.
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS

Related Party Transaction
A related party transaction is the transfer of assets or liabilities or the performance of services by, to or for a related
party, irrespective of whether a charge is made. Examples of related party transactions include:

i) the purchase, sale, lease, rental or hire of assets between related parties;
ii) the provision by a pension fund to a related party of assets of loans, irrespective of any direct economic

benefit to the pension fund;
iii) the provision of services to a related party, including the provision of pension fund administration services;
iv) transactions with individuals who are related parties of an authority or a pension fund, except those

applicable to other members of the community or the pension fund, such as Council Tax, rents and payments
of benefits.

Reserves
Amounts set aside for future expenditure on specific purposes.

Revenue Expenditure
Day to day payments on the running of Council services including salaries, wages, contract payments, supplies and
capital financing costs.

Revenue Support Grant
The main Government grant paid to local authorities.  It is intended to adjust for differences in needs between areas
so that, if all local authorities were to spend at the level which the Government assess that they need to spend, the
Council Tax would be the same across the whole country.
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FURTHER ENQUIRIES AND INFORMATION, INTERPRETING AND TRANSLATION ASSISTANCE

Further enquiries and Information
The Statement of Accounts sets out the details of Council’s financial activities and it’s financial position.
A simplified summary of the Accounts is being prepared to give an overview of the Council’s finances.
This will be available on the Council’s web-site - www.westminster.gov.uk.

Details of the Council’s 2007/08 budget are shown in the Guide to the Performance, Council Tax and Business
Rates 2007/08 leaflet and its Budget Book. Requests for copies of these documents or for further copies of this
Statement of Accounts should be made to Peter Hayday in the Finance Department, Westminster City Hall on
020 7641 1804. The Statement of Accounts is also available on the Council’s web-site as above.

Interpreting and Translation Assistance
If you would like to know more about the services the Council provides, please call our Translating service
on 020 7641 1472. If there is no one immediately available, please leave your name, telephone number, the
services you are interested in and the language you wish to use. The translating service staff will contact you as
soon as possible.

Pyetje dhe informacione të mëtejshme
Deklarata e Llogarive parashtron të dhënat e veprimtarive financiare të Bashkisë si dhe pozitën e saj financiare. Një
përmbledhje e thjeshtuar e Llogarive është në përgatitje e sipër për të paraqitur një vështrim të përgjithshëm të
financave të Bashkisë.  Kjo do të disponohet në faqen e internetit të Bashkisë - www.westminster.gov.uk

Të dhënat e buxhetit 2006/07 të Bashkisë  paraqiten në broshurën “Udhëzues mbi Ecurinë, Tatimet e Bashkisë dhe
Tarifat për Biznesin 2006/07” si dhe në Librin e Buxhetit.  Kërkesat për kopje të këtyre dokumentave apo për kopje
të tjera të kësaj Deklarate të Llogarive duhet t'i drejtohen Peter Hayday në Departamentin e Financave, Godina e
Bashkisë me numër telefoni 020 7641 1804.  Deklarata e Llogarive disponohet edhe në faqen e internetit të
Bashkisë si më sipër.

Ndihmë me Përkthimet me Shkrim dhe me Gojë
Nëse dëshironi të dini më tepër për shërbimet që siguron Bashkia, jeni të lutur të telefononi shërbimin tonë të
Përkthimeve në numrin 020 7641 1472.  Në rast se nuk ka njeri në dispozicion menjëherë, ju lutemi të lini emrin,
numrin e telefonit, shërbimet për të cilat jeni të interesuar si dhe gjuhën që dëshironi të përdorni. Personeli i
shërbimeve të përkthimit do t’ju kontaktojë sa më shpejt të jetë e mundur.

Enquêtes  additionnelles et Information.
Le statut des comptes divulgue les détails et l´actuelle position des activités financiéres du conseil. Un résumé
simplifié des comptes est en cours de préparation afin de donner une perspective des finançes du conseil. Ce
résumé sera disponible ã ládresse électronique  du Conseil -www.westminster.gov.uk

Les détails du budget du Conseil se rapportant à 2007 et 2008 sont démontrés dans le “Guide to the
Performance”,dans le livret des prix courants de 2007 et 2008 des taxes du Conseil et dans son livre de budget.
Pour solliciter des copies de ces documents,ou pour de futures copies de cette Déclaration de Comptes, faveur
s’adresser à Peter Hayday du département financier de Westminster Ccity Hall au numéro-020 7641 1472. La
déclaration des Comptes est aussi disponible à l´adresse électronique, (Web Site), citée auparavant.

Assistance d´Interprétation et de Traduction.
Si vous voulez avoir des renseignements supplémentaires à propos des services que le Conseil proportionne, síl
vous plait veuillez appeler notre service de traduction au numéro 020 7641 1472. S´il n`ya personne
immédiatement disponible, veuillez nous informez de votre nom, numéro de téléphonne, des services qui vous
intéressent et de la langue que vous souhaitez utiliser. Notre personnel du service de traduction entrera en contact
avec vous le plus vite possible.

Mais perguntas e informação
O Balancete (Statement of Accounts) apresenta os detalhes das actividades financeiras da Câmara Municipal
(Council) e a sua posição financeira. Está a ser preparado um resumo simplificado das Contas para dar uma visão
geral das finanças da Câmara Municipal, que estará disponível no website da Câmara Municipal
www.westminster.gov.uk.
Detalhes do orçamento de 2007/08 da Câmara Municipal são explicados no folheto intitulado Guia do
Desempenho, Imposto Camarário e Taxas de Negócios de 2007/08 (Guide to the Performance, Council Tax and
Business Rates 2006/07) e no seu Livro de Orçamento (Budget Book). Para pedir cópias destes documentos ou
mais cópias deste Balancete contacte Peter Hayday no Departamento de Finanças (Finance Department),
Westminster City Hall no número 020 7641 1804. O Balancete também está disponível no website da Câmara
Municipal acima indicado.
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FURTHER ENQUIRIES AND INFORMATION, INTERPRETING AND TRANSLATION ASSISTANCE

Assistência com interpretação e tradução
Se quiser saber mais sobre os serviços que a Câmara Municipal providencia, por favor telefone para o nosso
serviço de Tradução no número de telefone 020 7641 1472. Se não houver alguém disponível imediatamente, por
favor diga o seu nome, número de telefone, os serviços nos quais está interessado e a língua que quer usar. Os
funcionários do Serviço de Tradução contactá-lo-ão o mais depressa possível.

Información  y Consultas adicionales.
 El Estado de Cuentas (Statement of Accounts) presenta detalles de las actividades financieras del Concejo, así
como su posición financiera. Se está preparando un resumen simplificado de contabilidad para ofrecer una visión
de conjunto de los fondos del Concejo. Dicho documento estará disponible en el sitio web del Concejo -
www.westminster.gov.uk.

Detalles del presupuesto 2007/08 del Concejo se exponen en el folleto titulado Guía de Cumplimiento,
Contribuciones Domésticas y Comerciales 2007/08 (Guide to the Performance, Council Tax and Business Rates
2006/07) así como en su Libro de Presupuesto (Budget Book). Peticiones de copias de estos documentos o copias
adicionales de éste Estado de Cuentas deberán ser dirigidas a Peter Hayday en la Sección de Finanzas (Finance
Department), Westminster City Hall al teléfono 020 7641 1804. El Estado de Cuentas también está disponible en el
sitio web mencionado arriba.

Servicio de Interpretación y Traducción
Si desea enterarse mejor de los servicios proporcionados por el Concejo, le rogamos se comunique con nuestro
Servicio de Traducción al teléfono 020 7641 1472.  Si no hay nadie disponible inmediatamente, favor de dejar su
nombre, número telefónico, los servicios en los que está interesado(a) y el idioma que desea utilizar. El personal
del  Servicio de Traducción se comunicará con usted lo antes posible.
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Top 10 council numbers

1. Benefits 0800 072 0042

2. Council Tax 0845 302 3400

3. Environmental Action Line 020 7641 2000

4. Housing Options 020 7641 1000

5. Library Renewals 020 7641 1400

6. Parking 020 7823 4567

7. Senior Passport 020 7641 1444

8. Planning 020 7641 2513

9. Registering to vote 020 7641 2730

10. Social Services 020 7641 7535

Westminster City Council
Westminster City Hall
64 Victoria Street
London SW1E 6QP

Phone: 020 7641 6000
Minicom: 020 7641 8000
Email: info@westminster.gov.uk
Website: www.westminster.gov.uk




